
  
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov  

Planning Commission 
  
 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Date:   12/2/2024 
Time:  7:00 p.m. 
Location:  Zoom.us/join – ID# 858 7073 1001 and  
  City Council Chambers 
  751 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025 
 

Members of the public can listen to the meeting and participate using the following methods. 
 
How to participate in the meeting 

• Access the live meeting, in-person, at the City Council Chambers   
• Access the meeting real-time online at:  

zoom.us/join – Meeting ID# 858 7073 1001 
• Access the meeting real-time via telephone (listen only mode) at:  

(669) 900-6833 
Regular Meeting ID # 858 7073 1001 
Press *9 to raise hand to speak 

• Submit a written comment online up to 1-hour before the meeting start time: 
planning.commission@menlopark.gov* 
Please include the agenda item number related to your comment. 

 
*Written comments are accepted up to 1 hour before the meeting start time. Written messages are 
provided to the Planning Commission at the appropriate time in their meeting.  

Subject to change: The format of this meeting may be altered or the meeting may be canceled. You may 
check on the status of the meeting by visiting the city website menlopark.gov. The instructions for logging on 
to the webinar and/or the access code is subject to change. If you have difficulty accessing the webinar, 
please check the latest online edition of the posted agenda for updated information 
(menlopark.gov/agendas). 
  

  

https://zoom.us/join
https://zoom.us/join
http://menlopark.gov/
http://menlopark.gov/agendas


Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda 
December 2, 2024 
Page 2 

 

  
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov  

Regular Meeting 
 
A. Call To Order 

 
B. Roll Call 

 
C. Reports and Announcements 

 
D.  Public Comment  

 Under “Public Comment,” the public may address the Commission on any subject not listed on the 
agenda. Each speaker may address the Commission once under public comment for a limit of three 
minutes. You are not required to provide your name or City of residence, but it is helpful. The 
Commission cannot act on items not listed on the agenda and, therefore, the Commission cannot 
respond to non-agenda issues brought up under Public Comment other than to provide general 
information. 
 

E.  Consent Calendar 

E1. Architectural Control/Debora Ferrand/816 Santa Cruz Ave.: 
Consider and adopt a resolution to approve an architectural control permit for an attached pergola, a 
new wood fence, and other site improvements associated with an existing outdoor seating area at 
the rear of an existing commercial building in the SP-ECR-D (El Camino/Downtown Specific Plan-
Downtown Main Street Overlay) district; determine this action is categorically exempt under CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15301’s Class 1 exemption for existing facilities.  (Staff Report #24-051-PC) 

F.  Public Hearing 

F1. Use Permit/Mark Burbridge/351 Barton Pl.:  
Consider and adopt a resolution to approve a use permit to partially demolish an existing single-
story, single-family residence and construct first- and second-story additions and conduct interior 
modifications to an existing nonconforming structure on a substandard lot with regard to minimum 
lot width in the R-1-U (Single Family Urban Residential) zoning district at 351 Barton Place. The 
proposed project would remove the nonconforming portions of the existing structure and the 
additions would exceed 50 percent of the existing floor area, and is considered equivalent to new 
structure; determine this action is categorically exempt under CEQA Guidelines Section 15301’s 
Class 1 exemption for existing facilities. (Staff Report #24-052-PC) 

 
F2. Use Permit/Spiffy Pottery Studio/1919 Menalto Ave.: 

Consider and adopt a resolution to approve a use permit for a change of use from a dance studio 
to a pottery studio for a tenant suite within an existing commercial building that is substandard with 
regard to the minimum parking requirement in the C-MU (Neighborhood Mixed Use) zoning district 
at 1919 Menalto Avenue. The proposed pottery studio is considered a special use and is 
conditionally permitted subject to a use permit; determine this action is categorically exempt under 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15301’s Class 1 exemption for existing facilities. (Staff Report #24-053-
PC) 

  



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda 
December 2, 2024 
Page 3 

 

  
City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov  

 
G. Regular Business 

G1. Review of draft 2025 Planning Commission meeting dates. (Staff Report #24-054-PC). 
 
H. Informational Items 

H1. Future Planning Commission Meeting Schedule – The upcoming Planning Commission meetings 
are listed here, for reference. No action will be taken on the meeting schedule, although individual 
Commissioners may notify staff of planned absences. 

 
• Regular Meeting: December 16, 2024 

 
I.  Adjournment 
 

At every regular meeting of the Planning Commission, in addition to the public comment period 
where the public shall have the right to address the Planning Commission on any matters of public 
interest not listed on the agenda, members of the public have the right to directly address the 
Planning Commission on any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by the chair, either 
before or during the Planning Commission’s consideration of the item. 
 
At every special meeting of the Planning Commission, members of the public have the right to 
directly address the Planning Commission on any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by 
the chair, either before or during consideration of the item. For appeal hearings, appellant and 
applicant shall each have 10 minutes for presentations.  
 
If you challenge any of the items listed on this agenda in court, you may be limited to raising only 
those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written 
correspondence delivered to the City of Menlo Park at, or before, the public hearing. 
 
Any writing that is distributed to a majority of the Planning Commission by any person in connection 
with an agenda item is a public record (subject to any exemption under the Public Records Act) and 
is available by request by emailing the city clerk at jaherren@menlopark.gov. Persons with 
disabilities, who require auxiliary aids or services in attending or participating in Planning 
Commission meetings, may call the City Clerk’s Office at 650-330-6620. 
 
Agendas are posted in accordance with Cal. Gov. Code §54954.2(a) or §54956. Members of the 
public can view electronic agendas and staff reports by accessing the city website at 
menlopark.gov/agendas and can receive email notifications of agenda postings by subscribing at 
menlopark.gov/subscribe. Agendas and staff reports may also be obtained by contacting City Clerk 
at 650-330-6620. (Posted: 11/26/2024) 

mailto:jaherren@menlopark.gov
https://menlopark.gov/agendas
https://menlopark.gov/susbscribe


Community Development 

 

   

 
 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

 
 
 
STAFF REPORT 

Planning Commission    
Meeting Date:   12/2/2024 
Staff Report Number:  24-051-PC 
 
 
Consent Calendar:  Consider and adopt a resolution to approve an 

architectural control permit for an attached pergola, 
a new wood fence, and other site improvements 
associated with an existing outdoor seating area at 
the rear of an existing commercial building in the 
SP-ECR-D (El Camino/Downtown Specific Plan-
Downtown) zoning district at 816 Santa Cruz 
Avenue; determine this action is categorically 
exempt under CEQA Guidelines Section 15301’s 
Class 1 exemption for existing facilities.   

 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission adopt a resolution approving architectural control for an 
attached pergola, a new wood fence, and other site improvements associated with an existing outdoor 
seating area at the rear of an existing commercial building in the SP-ECR-D (El Camino/Downtown Specific 
Plan) zoning district. The proposed improvements are associated with an existing cafe and bakery at 816 
Santa Cruz Ave. (Mademoiselle Colette). The draft resolution, including the recommended actions and 
conditions of approval, is included as Attachment A. 

 

Policy Issues 
The proposed project is located in the El Camino Real-Downtown Specific Plan (SP-ECR/D) zoning district 
and the Downtown/Station Area Main Street Overlay land use designation. The guiding principles of the 
Specific Plan and the goals, policies, and programs of the City’s General Plan provide a framework for 
evaluating the architectural control request. The Specific Plan includes two applicable guiding principles: 
Generate Vibrancy and Sustain Menlo Park’s Village Character.  
 
Additionally, the City’s General Plan includes a number of goals, and associated policies used to implement 
those goals that provide guidance for decision-makers. These goals include: LU-3: Retain and enhance 
existing and encourage new neighborhood-serving commercial uses; LU-4: Promote and encourage 
existing and new business to be successful; and LU-5: Strengthen Downtown and the El Camino Real 
Corridor as a vital, competitive shopping area. Each architectural control review request is considered 
individually and the Planning Commission will need to consider whether the required architectural control 
findings identified in Menlo Park Municipal Code Section (MPMC) 16.69.020 can be made for the proposal.  
 

 

 



Staff Report #: 24-051-PC 
Page 2 

 

   

 
 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

Background 

Site location 
Using Santa Cruz Avenue in the east-west orientation, the property is located on the north side of Santa 
Cruz Avenue near the corner of Crane Street. The property is zoned SP-ECR/D (El Camino Real/Downtown 
Specific Plan). Within the Specific Plan, the property is in the Downtown (D) sub-district and the Downtown 
Station Area Main Street Overlay (DSAMSO) land use designation. The existing single-story building was 
constructed prior to adoption of the Specific Plan, around 1951. Three tenant suites (812, 814 and 816 
Santa Cruz Avenue) comprise the existing commercial building. Both the 812 and the 814 tenant suites are 
occupied by personal services (hair salons) and the subject tenant suite at 816 Santa Cruz Avenue is 
currently occupied by Madmoiselle Colette. A location map has been included as Attachment B.  
 
The surrounding lots are all part of the SP-ECR/D zoning district and within the D sub-district. Properties 
along Santa Cruz Avenue are located within the Downtown/Station Area “Main Street” Overlay (DSAMSO) 
land use designation (including the project site), while properties to the rear of the project site (fronting Oak 
Grove Avenue) are located within the Downtown/Station Area Retail/Mixed Use (DSARMU) land use 
designation. Surrounding properties near the subject property include a mix of commercial uses (primarily 
retail and restaurant uses). 
 

Project history 
In July 2015, an administrative permit request for outdoor seating for the rear patio area, and sale of beer 
and wine was approved for the restaurant use. The approval also included minor updates to the front and 
rear facades which were in substantial conformance with the existing building. 

 

Analysis 

Project description 
The applicant is proposing comprehensive exterior modifications to the existing rear enclosed patio, used 
for outdoor seating by the existing café/bakery. The exterior modifications would add a new attached 
wooden pergola, replace the existing wrought iron fence with a new six-foot tall wooden fence with a gate, 
and incorporate a wooden planter and bench within the outdoor seating area. The new pergola, fence, and 
planter and bench would be painted white. There would be no change to the existing footprint of the 
enclosed outdoor patio or modifications to the existing building. The project plans and project description 
letter are included as Attachment A, Exhibits A and B, respectively. 
 
The applicant’s proposal aligns with a number of goals as set forth in the General Plan, such as: 
 
• Goal LU-3 of the General Plan is meant to encourage neighborhood-serving commercial uses that would 

create a vibrant commercial corridor. The proposed renovations to the rear enclosed patio would update 
the existing outdoor seating area. The proposed project would align with Policy L-3.3 which seeks to 
preserve small businesses and enhance the character of the neighborhood. 

• Goal LU-4 of the General Plan is designed to encourage existing businesses to be successful. The 
applicant’s proposed outdoor modifications align with Policy LU-4.5 which allows modifications to 
businesses and structures that promote revenue generating uses. The applicant’s willingness to take on 
the cost of improvements would bring a fresh, updated appearance to the rear patio and outdoor seating 
area and create a welcoming secondary entrance to the restaurant. 

• Goal LU-5 of the General Plan is to strengthen the downtown and the El Camino Real corridor as a vital, 



Staff Report #: 24-051-PC 
Page 3 

 

   

 
 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

competitive shopping area while enhancing downtown’s atmosphere. The applicant’s exterior 
modifications combined with the existing restaurant use aligns with Policy LU-5.1 of ensuring a 
complimentary mix of uses with appropriate design. The applicant’s proposal would continue to 
contribute to a complementary mix of retail and restaurant uses along Santa Cruz Avenue, and a variety 
of uses within the downtown area. 

 
These goals work together to help fulfill a number of the Specific Plan’s guiding principles.  
 

Design and materials 
Currently, the single-story commercial building is developed with three suites, each distinguishable from one 
another along the front façade based on individual paint color, awnings and signage. The rear, in 
comparison, is plainer, with 812 and 814 painted beige, and 816 painted grey. The rear façade of the 
subject tenant suite (816) is distinguishable from the other two tenant suites with the existing grey paint 
color, and the black wrought iron fence with a gate and landscaping. Proposed exterior modifications would 
include replacing the existing wrought iron fence with a new six-foot tall white board and batten fence with a 
gate and a new attached red cedar pergola (painted white).  
 
The white pergola would pop out in contrast to the grey background and landscaping, creating visual 
interest. The pergola would also create sense of enclosure and provide some shading. Additionally, the 
applicant is proposing a 37-inch tall wooden planter and 18-inch tall bench in front of the planters, intended 
to elevate the outdoor seating experience, while adding additional seating. The fence would have a gate for 
accessing the rear patio from the public parking plaza. The brick/concrete patio flooring is proposed to 
remain. The proposed materials, finishes, and colors are shown on Sheet A-110 and A-111 of the plan set 
(Attachment A, Exhibit A). The project would not alter the existing enclosed outdoor patio footprint, existing 
gross floor area, or sidewalk between the project site and the parking plaza. 
 
Specific Plan Design Standards and Guidelines 
The Specific Plan includes a detailed set of design standards and guidelines. Compliance with the 
standards and guidelines is evaluated in the Standards and Guidelines Project Compliance Worksheet 
(Attachment A, Exhibit C). Guidelines related to ground floor treatment for commercial frontages, which are 
intended to provide for a pleasant pedestrian experience with visual interest, continuity for storefronts, and 
retail transparency, would be met. Select relevant guidelines are discussed below:  
 
E.3.5.19 (Guideline): Storefront elements such as windows, entrances and signage should provide clarity 
and lend interest to the façade. 
 

Complies: The existing building provides a well-defined rear façade with the proposed pergola and 
fencing which distinguishes the existing restaurant from the other tenant spaces. The proposed white 
pergola would stand out in the contrast of the grey background adding to the façade visual interest.   

 
E.3.6.03 (Guideline) Private and/or common open spaces are encouraged in all developments as part of 
building modulation and articulation to enhance building façade.  
 
 Complies: There is existing private open space in the form of outdoor seating which would be 
 modernized with a new pergola, fence, bench seating and fresh landscaping.  
  



Staff Report #: 24-051-PC 
Page 4 

 

   

 
 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

E.3.6.07 (Guideline) Landscaping of private open spaces should be attractive, durable and drought- 
resistant.  

Complies: The private open space would be landscaped to meet the guideline. 
 
Staff believes that the proposed changes would enhance the vitality of Downtown and provide an enhanced 
outdoor seating area for the existing business. Staff believes the proposed modifications to the existing 
commercial building would be consistent with the existing aesthetics of downtown. The proposed 
modifications would be compatible with the surrounding buildings. The proposed changes would comply 
with relevant El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan design standards and guidelines (many of which are 
not applicable because this is an existing building that is not being heavily modified), as documented in 
Attachment A, Exhibit C, and would provide a comprehensive modern update to the existing space. 
 
Parking 
The existing building complies with the Specific Plan parking requirements as the subject site is located in 
the downtown shared and unbundled parking area, where parking for the first 1.0 floor area ratio (FAR) of 
the building is covered by the public parking plazas. The FAR of the existing building is approximately 0.75 
and the subject property currently does not include parking on site, and no on-site parking is proposed. The 
subject property is located within one-half mile of a major transit stop (Caltrain Station). Per Assembly Bill 
2097, a development project located within a half mile of a major transit stop is not required to provide any 
parking. 
 

Correspondence 
Staff received one letter of support for the proposed project included in Attachment C.  
 

Conclusion 
Staff believes that the proposed design and materials would be generally compatible with the surrounding 
buildings in the downtown. The proposed design elements, such as the proposed wooden six-foot tall fence 
white fence with gate and new landscaping would provide an update to the building’s existing features while 
maintaining the building’s earlier appearance. Additionally, the new wooden pergola would enhance the 
building’s rear appearance, creating a welcoming atmosphere from the public parking plaza. The new 
exterior elements and modifications proposed as part of the project would comply with all relevant Specific 
Plan design standards and guidelines. The proposed project would be consistent with a number of goals 
and policies from the General Plan and the guiding principles of the Specific Plan. Staff recommends that 
the Planning Commission approve the proposed project. 

 

Impact on City Resources 
The project sponsor is required to pay Planning, Building and Public Works permit fees, based on the City’s 
Master Fee Schedule, to fully cover the cost of staff time spent on the review of the project. 
 

Environmental Review 
The Specific Plan process included detailed review of projected environmental impacts through a program 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR), as required by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), 
certified in April 2012.  
 
The proposed project is categorically exempt under Class 1 (Section 15301, “Existing Facilities”) of the 
current California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines, and as such, no additional environmental 



Staff Report #: 24-051-PC 
Page 5 

 

   

 
 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

analysis is required above and beyond the Specific Plan EIR. Relevant mitigation measures from the EIR’s 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) apply to projects within the Specific Plan; however, 
given the project’s limited scope of work, none of the mitigation measures apply to this project. The 
structure is over 50 years old, but in this case, mitigation measure (CUL 1) requiring a report from an 
architectural historian, would not apply, as the building has undergone significant changes over the years.  

 

Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. Public notification also consisted of publishing a notice in the local newspaper 
and notification by mail of owners and occupants within a 300-foot radius of the subject property. 
 

Appeal period 
The Planning Commission action will be effective after 15 days unless the action is appealed to the City 
Council, in which case the outcome of the application shall be determined by the City Council. 

 

Attachments 
A. Draft Planning Commission Resolution 

Exhibits to Attachment A 
A. Project Plans 
B. Project Description Letter 
C. Specific Plan Standards and Guidelines Compliance Worksheet 
D. Conditions of Approval  

B. Location Map 
C. Correspondence  
 

Disclaimer 
Attached are reduced versions of maps and diagrams submitted by the applicants. The accuracy of the 
information in these drawings is the responsibility of the applicants, and verification of the accuracy by City 
Staff is not always possible. The original full-scale maps, drawings and exhibits are available for public 
viewing at the Community Development Department. 
 
 
Report prepared by: 
Fahteen Khan, Associate Planner  
 

Report reviewed by: 
Corinna Sandmeier, Principal Planner 



ATTACHMENT A 

1 

PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 2024-XXX 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
MENLO PARK APPROVING AN ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL PERMIT 
FOR AN ATTACHED PERGOLA, NEW WOOD FENCE AND OTHER 
SITE IMPROVEMENTS ASSOCIATED WITH AN EXISTING OUTDOOR 
SEATING AREA FOR 816 SANTA CRUZ AVENUE IN THE SP-ECR/D 
(EL CAMINO REAL-DOWNTOWN SPECIFIC PLAN) ZONING DISTRICT. 

WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park (“City”) received an application requesting an 
architectural control permit for exterior modifications which include an attached pergola, new 
wood fence and other site improvements to an existing commercial building located in the 
SP-ECR/D (El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan) zoning district, (collectively, the 
“Project”), from Debora Ferrand (“Applicant”) and Anne Wilbur (“Owner”), located at 816 
Santa Cruz Avenue (APN 071-281-170) (“Property”). The Project architectural control permit 
request is depicted in and subject to the development plans and project description letter, 
which are attached hereto as Exhibit A and Exhibit B, respectively, and incorporated herein 
by this reference; and 

WHEREAS, the Property is located in the SP-ECR/D (El Camino Real/Downtown Specific 
Plan) zoning district, and the Downtown “D” sub-district, which supports a variety of uses 
including restaurant, retail, and service uses, and office and residential uses; and 

WHEREAS, the Property is designated as Downtown Station Area Main Street Overlay 
(DSAMSO) land use designation; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed Project would comply with applicable standards and guidelines 
of the SP-ECR/D zoning district, attached herein as Exhibit C; and  

WHEREAS, the proposed Project would involve physical modifications to the existing 
commercial building, which would provide an update to the rear of the site while maintaining 
a balanced and consistent appearance; and 

WHEREAS, the findings and conditions for the architectural control would ensure that all 
City requirements are applied consistently and correctly as part of the project’s 
implementation; and 

WHEREAS, the Project requires discretionary actions by the City as summarized above, 
and therefore the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA,” Public Resources Code 
Section §21000 et seq.) and CEQA Guidelines (Cal. Code of Regulations, Title 14, §15000 
et seq.) require a determination regarding the Project’s compliance with CEQA; and  

WHEREAS, the City is the lead agency, as defined by CEQA and the CEQA Guidelines, 
and is therefore responsible for the preparation, consideration, certification, and approval of 
environmental documents for the Project; and  

A1



Resolution No. 2024-XXX 

2 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from environmental review pursuant to CEQA Guidelines 
§15301 (Existing Facilities); and

WHEREAS, all required public notices and public hearings were duly given and held 
according to law; and 

WHEREAS, at a duly and properly noticed public hearing held on December 2, 2024, the 
Planning Commission fully reviewed, considered, and evaluated the whole of the record, 
including all public and written comments, pertinent information, documents and plans, 
prior to taking action regarding the proposed Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE MENLO PARK PLANNING COMMISSION HEREBY 
RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  Recitals.  The Planning Commission has considered the full record before it, 
which may include but is not limited to such things as the staff report, public testimony, and 
other materials and evidence submitted or provided, and the Planning Commission finds 
the foregoing recitals are true and correct, and they are hereby incorporated by reference 
into this Resolution. 

Section 2.  Architectural Control Permit.  The Planning Commission of the City of Menlo Park 
does hereby make the following Findings:  

The approval of the architectural control permit for a new attached pergola, new wood fence 
and other site improvements to the rear of the existing commercial building at 816 Santa Cruz 
Avenue suite is granted based on the following findings, which are made pursuant to Menlo 
Park Municipal Code Section 16.82.020: 

1. That the general appearance of the structure is in keeping with character of the
neighborhood, in that, the change of materials and exterior modifications will
comply with the SP-ECR/D zoning district objective standards, and will provide
visual interest along the streetscape.

2. That the development will not be detrimental to the harmonious and orderly
growth of the city, in that, the Project contains design modifications to an existing
commercial building. The Project’s design is generally consistent with all
applicable requirements of the City of Menlo Park Municipal Code. The General
Plan land use for the Property, Commercial Retail, is consistent with the existing
and proposed uses on the site. Therefore, the Project will not be detrimental to
the harmonious and orderly growth of the city.

3. That the development will not impair the desirability of investment or occupation
in the neighborhood, in that, the Project contains design modifications to an
existing commercial building, which involves a use that is consistent with the
applicable standards of the Zoning Ordinance for the project site. The proposed
Project is designed in a manner consistent with all applicable codes and

A2



Resolution No. 2024-XXX 

3 

ordinances. Therefore, the proposed Project would not impair the desirability of 
investment or occupation in the neighborhood. 

 
4. That the development provides adequate parking as required in all applicable 

city ordinances through the bundled parking program in the SP-ECR/D specific 
plan area. Additionally, the subject property is located within one-half mile of a 
major transit stop. Per Assembly Bill 2097, a development project located within 
a half mile of a major transit stop is not required to provide any parking spaces; 
however, the subject site is served by multiple public parking lots within the 
downtown area. 
 

5. That the development is consistent with any applicable specific plan; in that, 
the Project is located in the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan area and 
complies with applicable standards and guidelines of the Specific Plan.  

 
 

Section 3.  Architectural Control.  The Planning Commission approves Architectural Control 
No. PLN2023-00015, which is depicted in and subject to the development plans and project 
description letter, which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as 
Exhibit A and Exhibit B, respectively.  The Architectural Control is conditioned in 
conformance with the conditions attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference 
as Exhibit D.   
 
Section 4.  ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW.  The Planning Commission makes the following 
findings, based on its independent judgment after considering the Project, and having reviewed 
and taken into consideration all written and oral information submitted in this matter: 

 
A. The Project is categorically except from environmental review pursuant to Cal.  

Code of Regulations, Title 14, §15301 et seq. (Existing Facilities). 
 
Section 5.  SEVERIBILITY.  
If any term, provision, or portion of these findings or the application of these findings to a 
particular situation is held by a court to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions of these findings, or their application to other actions related to the proposed 
Project, shall continue in full force and effect unless amended or modified by the City. 

I, Kyle Perata, Assistant Community Development Director of the City of Menlo Park, do 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing Planning Commission Resolution was duly and 
regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said Planning Commission on December 2, 
2024, by the following votes: 

AYES:   

NOES:   

ABSENT:   

A3



Resolution No. 2024-XXX 

4 

ABSTAIN:   
 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said 
City on this ____ day of December 2024. 
 
PC Liaison Signature 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Kyle Perata 
Assistant Community Development Director 
City of Menlo Park 
 
 
Exhibits 

A. Project plans  
B. Project description letter 
C. Specific plan standards and guidelines compliance worksheet 
D. Conditions of approval 

A4



EXHIBIT A

A5



A6



A7



A8



A9



A10



9/5/23 

City of Menlo Park  
Community Development Department, Planning Division 

Project Description Letter 

This project is a Tenant Improvement and proposes to remodel the rear patio of the retail 
store named Mademoiselle Colette, located 816 Santa Cruz Ave. 
Mademoiselle Colette is a pastry shop inspired by traditional Parisian cafes with unique 
French flavors and an emphasis on stylish décor. 
The rear patio is currently used to sit customers for breakfast, lunch and aperitifs. The 
current condition of the patio is  pretty worn out and doesn’t reflect the elegant atmosphere 
we aspire to bring in our locations.   
We would like to remodel it and hence offer a better customer experience. 
The project proposes to replace the wrought iron fence with a board and batten wood fence 
to create a more intimate space and visually separate the patio from the sidewalk where the 
trash bins are located.    
We would like to add a wood planter to bring in more greenery and a wood bench to vary the 
seating options. 
Lastly, we would like to add a beautiful cedar pergola to protect the customers from the sun.  
We hope that these changes will create a more pleasant experience for our customers and 
generate an increase of income for our business. 

The project will include: 
1. Exiting wrought iron fence and steel gate to be removed
2. Installation of a new wood board and batten fence and wood gate, white color.
3. Installation of a new cedar wood pergola, white color.
4. Creation of wood planters and wood bench in natural wood.

There is no change to the existing floor covering (brick and concrete patio floor to remain) 
There is no change to the existing electrical, mechanical and plumbing installation. 
There is no change to the area of the Patio. 
There is no change to the area and the footprint of the patio 

EXHIBIT B

A11



Pictures of the existing Patio

 

A12



 

A13



Proposed project renderings 
Exterior 

 
 
Interior view 

 
 

A14



Menlo Park El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan Standards 
and Guidelines: 961 El Camino Real Compliance Worksheet 

Section Standard or 
Guideline 

Requirement Evaluation 

E.3.1 Development Intensity
E.3.1.01 Standard Business and Professional office (inclusive 

of medical and dental office) shall not 
exceed one half of the base FAR or public 
benefit bonus FAR, whichever is 
applicable. 

   Complies: 
Project is an existing full/limited 
service restaurant, and has no 
Professional or Business Office 
use. 

E.3.1.02 Standard Medical and Dental office shall not exceed 
one third of the base FAR or public benefit 
bonus FAR, whichever is applicable. 

   Not applicable: 
   No medical or dental office proposed at 
   this time. 

E.3.2 Height
E.3.2.01 Standard Roof-mounted mechanical equipment, 

solar panels, and similar equipment may 
exceed the maximum building height, but 
shall be screened from view from publicly- 
accessible spaces. 

Complies: 
Project has no new rooftop equipment 
proposed. 

E.3.2.02 Standard Vertical building projections such as 
parapets and balcony railings may extend 
up to 4 feet beyond the maximum façade 
height or the maximum building height, 
and shall be integrated into the design of 
the building. 

Not Applicable: 
It is an existing building, no change in 
height, and no existing or proposed 
parapet. 

Standard Rooftop elements that may need to 
exceed the maximum building height due 
to their function, such as stair and elevator 
towers, shall not exceed 14 feet beyond 
the maximum building height. Such rooftop 
elements shall be integrated into the 
design of the building. 

Complies: 

Project is well below height limit and has 
no access to the roof. 

E.3.3 Setbacks and Projections within Setbacks
E.3.3.01 Standard Front setback areas shall be developed 

with sidewalks, plazas, and/or landscaping 
as appropriate. 

Not Applicable: 
The front building wall abuts the Santa 
Cruz Avenue with minimal setback. 

E.3.3.02 Standard Parking shall not be permitted in front 
setback areas. 

Not Applicable: 
No on-site parking. 

E.3.3.03 Standard In areas where no or a minimal setback is 
required, limited setback for store or lobby 
entry recesses shall not exceed a 
maximum of 4-foot depth and a maximum 
of 6-foot width. 

Not Applicable: 
The building is in a no or limited setback 
area. No changes are proposed to the 
front entry. 

E.3.3.04 Standard In areas where no or a minimal setback is 
required, building projections, such as 
balconies, bay windows and dormer 
windows, shall not project beyond a 
maximum of 3 feet from the building face 
into the sidewalk clear walking zone, 
public right-of-way or public spaces, 
provided they have a minimum 8-foot 
vertical clearance above the sidewalk 
clear walking zone, public right-of-way or 
public space. 

  Complies: 

It is an existing building, there are no 
building projections extending into the 
sidewalk. Building projections such as 
balconies, bay windows and dormer 
windows are not proposed.  

EXHIBIT C

A15



Menlo Park El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan Standards 
and Guidelines: 961 El Camino Real Compliance Worksheet 

 

 

 

E.3.3.05 Standard In areas where setbacks are required, 
building projections, such as balconies, 
bay windows and dormer windows, at or 
above the second habitable floor shall not 
project beyond a maximum of 5 feet from 
the building face into the setback area. 

  Complies: 

It is an existing building, there are no 
building projections extending into the 
sidewalk. Building projections such as 
balconies, bay windows and dormer 
windows are not proposed. 

Section Standard or 
Guideline 

Requirement Evaluation 

E.3.3.06 Standard The total area of all building projections 
shall not exceed 35% of the primary 
building façade area. Primary building 
façade is the façade built at the property or 
setback line. 

Complies:  

It is an existing building. No existing or 
proposed building projections. 

E.3.3.07 Standard Architectural projections like canopies, 
awnings and signage shall not project 
beyond a maximum of 6 feet horizontally 
from the building face at the property line 
or at the minimum setback line. There 
shall be a minimum of 8-foot vertical 
clearance above the sidewalk, public right- 
of-way or public space. 

Complies:  

It is an existing building. No existing or 
proposed building projections. 

E.3.3.08 Standard No development activities may take place 
within the San Francisquito Creek bed, 
below the creek bank, or in the riparian 
corridor. 

  Complies: 
No development activities proposed within 
the San Francisquito Creek bed, below the 
creek bank, or in the riparian corridor. 

E.3.4 Massing and Modulation 
E.3.4.1 Building Breaks 
E.3.4.1.01 Standard The total of all building breaks shall not 

exceed 25 percent of the primary façade 
plane in a development. 

  Not Applicable:  
Required only for buildings south of Live 
Oak Avenue. 
 

E.3.4.1.02 Standard Building breaks shall be located at ground 
level and extend the entire building height. 

  Not Applicable:  
Required only for buildings south of Live 
Oak Avenue. 
 

E.3.4.1.03 Standard In all districts except the ECR-SE zoning 
district, recesses that function as building 
breaks shall have minimum dimensions of 
20 feet in width and depth and a maximum 
dimension of 50 feet in width. For the 
ECR-SE zoning district, recesses that 
function as building breaks shall have a 
minimum dimension of 60 feet in width and 
40 feet in depth. 

  Not Applicable:  

The subject property is in the zoning 
district: ECR-D and it is an existing 
building and is not proposing a façade 
modification. 

E.3.4.1.04 Standard Building breaks shall be accompanied with 
a major change in fenestration pattern, 
material and color to have a distinct 
treatment for each volume. 

  Not Applicable:  
Required only for buildings south of Live 
Oak Avenue. 

E.3.4.1.05 Standard In all districts except the ECR-SE zoning 
district, building breaks shall be required 
as shown in Table E3. 

  Not Applicable:  
Required only for buildings south of Live 
Oak Avenue. 
 

A16



Menlo Park El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan Standards 
and Guidelines: 961 El Camino Real Compliance Worksheet 

 

 

 

Section Standard or 
Guideline 

Requirement Evaluation 

E.3.4.1.06 Standard In the ECR-SE zoning district, and 
consistent with Table E4 the building 
breaks shall: 
• Comply with Figure E9; 
• Be a minimum of 60 feet in width, 

except where noted on Figure E9; 
• Be a minimum of 120 feet in width at 

Middle Avenue; 
• Align with intersecting streets, except 

for the area between Roble Avenue 
and Middle Avenue; 

• Be provided at least every 350 feet in 
the area between Roble Avenue and 
Middle Avenue; where properties under 
different ownership coincide with this 
measurement, the standard side 
setbacks (10 to 25 feet) shall be applied, 
resulting in an effective break of 
between 20 to 50 feet. 

• Extend through the entire building height 
and depth at Live Oak Avenue, Roble 
Avenue, Middle Avenue, Partridge 
Avenue and Harvard Avenue; and 

• Include two publicly-accessible building 
breaks at Middle Avenue and Roble 
Avenue. 

  Not Applicable:  

 The subject property is in the Downtown 
“D” sub-district and the building is existing. 

E.3.4.1.07 Standard In the ECR-SE zoning district, the Middle 
Avenue break shall include vehicular 
access; publicly-accessible open space with 
seating, landscaping and shade; retail and 
restaurant uses activating the open space; 
and a pedestrian/bicycle connection to 
Alma Street and Burgess Park. The Roble 
Avenue break shall include publicly-
accessible open space 
with seating, landscaping and shade. 

  Not Applicable:  
The subject property is in the Downtown 
“D” sub-district and the building is existing. 

E.3.4.1.08 Guideline In the ECR-SE zoning district, the breaks at 
Live Oak, Roble, Middle, Partridge and 
Harvard Avenues may provide vehicular 
access. 

  Not Applicable:  
The subject property is in the Downtown 
“D” sub-district and the building is existing. 

E.3.4.2 Façade Modulation and Treatment 
E.3.4.2.01 Standard Building façades facing public rights-of- 

way or public open spaces shall not 
exceed 50 feet in length without a minor 
building façade modulation. At a minimum 
of every 50’ façade length, the minor 
vertical façade modulation shall be a 
minimum 2 feet deep by 5 feet wide recess 
or a minimum 2 foot setback of the building 
plane from the primary building 
façade. 

  Not Applicable:  
The existing building is 16'-11" tall, and is 
a single story. The width of the tenant 
space is approximately 15'. 

 

A17



Menlo Park El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan Standards 
and Guidelines: 961 El Camino Real Compliance Worksheet 

 

 

 

Section Standard or 
Guideline 

Requirement Evaluation 

E.3.4.2.02 Standard Building façades facing public rights-of- 
way or public open spaces shall not 
exceed 100 feet in length without a major 
building modulation. At a minimum of 
every 100 feet of façade length, a major 
vertical façade modulation shall be a 
minimum of 6 feet deep by 20 feet wide 
recess or a minimum of 6 feet setback of 
building plane from primary building 
façade for the full height of the building. 
This standard applies to all districts except 
ECR NE-L and ECR SW since those two 
districts are required to provide a building 
break at every 100 feet. 

  Not Applicable:  

The existing width of the tenant space is 
approximately 15’. 

E.3.4.2.03 Standard In addition, the major building façade 
modulation shall be accompanied with a 4- 
foot minimum height modulation and a 
major change in fenestration pattern, 
material and/or color. 

   Not Applicable:  
There is no change to the existing building 
other than the proposed addition of the 
attached pergola. 

 
E.3.4.2.04 Guideline Minor façade modulation may be 

accompanied with a change in fenestration 
pattern, and/or material, and/or color, 
and/or height. 

  Not Applicable:  
There is no change to the existing building 
other than the proposed addition of the 
attached pergola. 

 
E.3.4.2.05 Guideline Buildings should consider sun shading 

mechanisms, like overhangs, bris soleils 
and clerestory lighting, as façade 
articulation strategies. 

Not Applicable: 
There are no shading strategies 
proposed. Existing building to 
remain. 
 

E.3.4.3 Building Profile 
E.3.4.3.01 Standard The 45-degree building profile shall be set 

at the minimum setback line to allow for 
flexibility and variation in building façade 
height within a district. 

Not Applicable: 
Building height doesn't change and is 
well below height limit and 45 degree 
requirement. 
 

E.3.4.3.02 Standard Horizontal building and architectural 
projections, like balconies, bay windows, 
dormer windows, canopies, awnings, and 
signage, beyond the 45-degree building 
profile shall comply with the standards for 
Building Setbacks & Projection within 
Setbacks (E.3.3.04 to E.3.3.07) and shall 
be integrated into the design of the 
building. 

Complies: 
No items listed are provided. 

E.3.4.3.03 Standard Vertical building projections like parapets 
and balcony railings shall not extend 4 feet 
beyond the 45-degree building profile and 
shall be integrated into the design of the 
building. 

Not applicable: 

There are no projections proposed. 

E.3.4.3.04 Standard Rooftop elements that may need to extend 
beyond the 45-degree building profile due 
to their function, such as stair and elevator 
towers, shall be integrated into the design 
of the building. 

Not applicable: 
There are no new rooftop elements 
proposed. 

E.3.4.4 Upper Story Façade Length 

A18



Menlo Park El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan Standards 
and Guidelines: 961 El Camino Real Compliance Worksheet 

 

 

 

E.3.4.4.01 Standard Building stories above the 38-foot façade 
height shall have a maximum allowable 
façade length of 175 feet along a public 
right-of-way or public open space. 

Not applicable: 

The existing building is below 39 feet.  

E.3.5 Ground Floor Treatment, Entry and Commercial Frontage 
Ground Floor Treatment 

Section Standard or 
Guideline 

Requirement Evaluation 

E.3.5.01 Standard The retail or commercial ground floor shall 
be a minimum 15-foot floor-to-floor height 
to allow natural light into the space. 

Not Applicable: 
No changes are proposed to the first floor 
height. Existing building to remain. 
 

E.3.5.02 Standard Ground floor commercial buildings shall 
have a minimum of 50% transparency 
(i.e., clear-glass windows) for retail uses, 
office uses and lobbies to enhance the 
visual experience from the sidewalk and 
street. Heavily tinted or mirrored glass 
shall not be permitted. 

Complies: 
 
  The existing front façade complies. No   
  changes are proposed to the front    
  facade. 

 

   Guideline Buildings should orient ground-floor retail 
uses, entries and direct-access residential 
units to the street. 

Complies: 
The restaurant’s main entry faces Santa 
Cruz Avenue, and has a secondary 
access from the public parking lot. 
 

E.3.5.04 Guideline Buildings should activate the street by 
providing visually interesting and active 
uses, such as retail and personal service 
uses, in ground floors that face the street. 
If office and residential uses are provided, 
they should be enhanced with landscaping 
and interesting building design and 
materials. 

Complies: 
The existing single-story building’s tenant 
suite at 816 Santa Cruz Avenue, is used 
as an existing full/limited service 
restaurant, which help in activating the 
street. The main entry will be facing Santa 
Cruz Avenue, has a secondary access 
from the public parking lot. 

 
E.3.5.05 Guideline For buildings where ground floor retail, 

commercial or residential uses are not 
desired or viable, other project-related 
uses, such as a community room, fitness 
center, daycare facility or sales center, 
should be located at the ground floor to 
activate the street. 

Not applicable: 

It is an existing full/limited service 
restaurant. 

E.3.5.06 Guideline Blank walls at ground floor are 
discouraged and should be minimized. 
When unavoidable, continuous lengths of 
blank wall at the street should use other 
appropriate measures such as 
landscaping or artistic intervention, such 
as murals. 

Complies:  

Blank walls are minimized on the ground 
floor with the addition of the pergola to the 
rear facade. 

E.3.5.07 Guideline Residential units located at ground level 
should have their floors elevated a 
minimum of 2 feet to a maximum of 4 feet 
above the finished grade sidewalk for 
better transition and privacy, provided that 
accessibility codes are met. 

Not applicable: 

No residential units are proposed. 

E.3.5.08 Guideline Architectural projections like canopies and 
awnings should be integrated with the 
ground floor and overall building design to 
break up building mass, to add visual 
interest to the building and provide shelter 
and shade. 

Not applicable: 

There are no projections proposed. 

A19



Menlo Park El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan Standards 
and Guidelines: 961 El Camino Real Compliance Worksheet 

 

 

 

Building Entries 
E.3.5.09 Standard Building entries shall be oriented to a 

public street or other public space. For 
larger residential buildings with shared 
entries, the main entry shall be through 
prominent entry lobbies or central 
courtyards facing the street. From the 
street, these entries and courtyards 
provide additional visual interest, 
orientation and a sense of invitation. 

Complies:  

Building entry is oriented to the public 
street along Sana Cruz Avenue and a 
secondary access is available from the 
parking lot to the rear. 

Section Standard or 
Guideline 

Requirement Evaluation 

E.3.5.10 Guideline Entries should be prominent and visually 
distinctive from the rest of the façade with 
creative use of scale, materials, glazing, 
projecting or recessed forms, architectural 
details, color, and/or awnings. 

Not Applicable:  
It is an existing building proposed to 
remain. 

E.3.5.11 Guideline Multiple entries at street level are 
encouraged where appropriate. 

Complies:  
There are two entries, one in the front 
along Santa Cruz Avenue and the other 
from the rear public parking lot.  

E.3.5.12 Guideline Ground floor residential units are 
encouraged to have their entrance from 
the street. 

Not applicable: 
No residential unit/s are proposed. 

E.3.5.13 Guideline Stoops and entry steps from the street are 
encouraged for individual unit entries 
when compliant with applicable 
accessibility codes. Stoops associated 
with landscaping create inviting, usable 
and visually attractive transitions from 
private spaces to the street. 

Not applicable: 
No residential unit/s are proposed.  

E.3.5.14 Guideline Building entries are allowed to be 
recessed from the primary building façade. 

  Complies:  
The building entrance facing Santa Cruz 
Avenue is considered as the primary 
façade and is recessed. 
 

Commercial Frontage 
E.3.5.15 Standard Commercial windows/storefronts shall be 

recessed from the primary building façade 
a minimum of 6 inches 

Not applicable: 
The building is existing and built prior to 
the introduction of the Specific Plan. 
 

E.3.5.16 Standard Retail frontage, whether ground floor or 
upper floor, shall have a minimum 50% of 
the façade area transparent with clear 
vision glass, not heavily tinted or highly 
mirrored glass. 

Not applicable: 

The building is existing and built 
prior to the introduction of the 
Specific Plan. 

E.3.5.17 Guideline Storefront design should be consistent 
with the building’s overall design and 
contribute to establishing a well-defined 
ground floor for the façade along streets. 

Not applicable: 

The building is existing and built prior to 
the introduction of the Specific Plan. 

E.3.5.18 Guideline The distinction between individual 
storefronts, entire building façades and 
adjacent properties should be maintained. 

 Not applicable: 

The building is existing. 

E.3.5.19 Guideline Storefront elements such as windows, 
entrances and signage should provide 
clarity and lend interest to the façade. 

Complies:  
Project meets this guildeline. 

A20



Menlo Park El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan Standards 
and Guidelines: 961 El Camino Real Compliance Worksheet 

 

 

 

E.3.5.20 Guideline Individual storefronts should have clearly 
defined bays. These bays should be no 
greater than 20 feet in length. Architectural 
elements, such as piers, recesses and 
projections help articulate bays. 

Partly Complies: 

What is lacking, clearly defined 
bays and/or repetition of 
bays/storefronts as well as piers, 
projections or other visual cues that 
provide the scale and identity of 
retail frontage indicated by this 
guideline and the drawings and 
photographic images on page E33 
of the Specific Plan. For this 
reason, it cannot be determined 
that the proposal would be 
consistent with this guideline. 

 
E.3.5.21 Guideline All individual retail uses should have direct 

access from the public sidewalk. For 
larger retail tenants, entries should occur 
at lengths at a maximum at every 50 feet, 
consistent with the typical lot size in 
downtown. 

  Not Applicable:  

Retail use is not being proposed. 
However, the full/limited service restaurant  
will have direct access to the public 
sidewalk. 

E.3.5.22 Guideline Recessed doorways for retail uses should 
be a minimum of two feet in depth. 
Recessed doorways provide cover or 
shade, help identify the location of store 
entrances, provide a clear area for out- 
swinging doors and offer the opportunity 
for interesting paving patterns, signage 
and displays. 

Complies:  

The existing recessed doorway provides 
cover, shade, and help in identifing the 
location of the front entrance. 

Section Standard or 
Guideline 

Requirement Evaluation 

E.3.5.23 Guideline Storefronts should remain un-shuttered at 
night and provide clear views of interior 
spaces lit from within. If storefronts must 
be shuttered for security reasons, the 
shutters should be located on the inside of 
the store windows and allow for maximum 
visibility of the interior. 

Complies:  

Per the applicant: No shutters are 
proposed as part of the proposed design. 

E.3.5.24 Guideline Storefronts should not be completely 
obscured with display cases that prevent 
customers and pedestrians from seeing 
inside. 

Complies:  
Per the applicant: No shutters are 
proposed as part of the proposed design. 
 

E.3.5.25 Guideline Signage should not be attached to 
storefront windows. 

  Complies:  
  Per the applicant signage is not included    
  in submittal. 
 

E.3.6 Open Space 

A21



Menlo Park El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan Standards 
and Guidelines: 961 El Camino Real Compliance Worksheet 

 

 

 

E.3.6.01 Standard Residential developments or Mixed Use 
developments with residential use shall 
have a minimum of 100 square feet of 
open space per unit created as common 
open space or a minimum of 80 square 
feet of open space per unit created as 
private open space, where private open 
space shall have a minimum dimension of 
6 feet by 6 feet. In case of a mix of private 
and common open space, such common 
open space shall be provided at a ratio 
equal to 1.25 square feet for each one 
square foot of private open space that is 
not provided. 

Not applicable:  

No residential use proposed. 

 

E.3.6.02 Standard Residential open space (whether in 
common or private areas) and accessible 
open space above parking podiums up to 
16 feet high shall count towards the 
minimum open space requirement for the 
development. 

Not applicable:  

No residential use proposed. 

 

E.3.6.03 Guideline Private and/or common open spaces are 
encouraged in all developments as part of 
building modulation and articulation to 
enhance building façade. 

Complies:  

Private open space in the form of outdoor 
seating is existing to the rear of the 
property and proposed for modification. 

 
E.3.6.04 Guideline Private development should provide 

accessible and usable common open 
space for building occupants and/or the 
general public. 

Complies:  

Open space is provided in the rear. 

E.3.6.05 Guideline For residential developments, private open 
space should be designed as an extension 
of the indoor living area, providing an area 
that is usable and has some degree of 
privacy. 

Not applicable:  

No residential use proposed. 
 

E.3.6.06 Guideline Landscaping in setback areas should 
define and enhance pedestrian and open 
space areas. It should provide visual 
interest to streets and sidewalks, 
particularly where building façades are 
long. 

Complies: 

New landscape proposed to the rear of the 
property with addition of planters. 

 

E.3.6.07 Guideline Landscaping of private open spaces 
should be attractive, durable and drought- 
resistant. 

  Complies.  
  The private open space will be landscaped   
  to meet this guideline. 
 

E.3.7 Parking, Service and Utilities 
General Parking and Service Access 

Section Standard or 
Guideline 

Requirement Evaluation 

E.3.7.01 Guideline The location, number and width of parking 
and service entrances should be limited to 
minimize breaks in building design, 
sidewalk curb cuts and potential conflicts 
with streetscape elements. 

  Not applicable:  
Service entrances and parking is not 
proposed. 

A22



Menlo Park El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan Standards 
and Guidelines: 961 El Camino Real Compliance Worksheet 

 

 

 

E.3.7.02 Guideline In order to minimize curb cuts, shared 
entrances for both retail and residential 
use are encouraged. In shared entrance 
conditions, secure access for residential 
parking should be provided. 

  Not applicable: 

Curb cuts are not being proposed. 

 

E.3.7.03 Guideline When feasible, service access and loading 
docks should be located on secondary 
streets or alleys and to the rear of the 
building. 

  Not applicable:  

Loading docks are not proposed or 
needed. 

E.3.7.04 Guideline The size and pattern of loading dock 
entrances and doors should be integrated 
with the overall building design. 

   Not applicable:  

   Loading docks are not proposed   

   or needed. 

 
E.3.7.05 Guideline Loading docks should be screened from 

public ways and adjacent properties to the 
greatest extent possible. In particular, 
buildings that directly adjoin residential 
properties should limit the potential for 
loading-related impacts, such as noise. 
Where possible, loading docks should be 
internal to the building envelope and 
equipped with closable doors. For all 
locations, loading areas should be kept 
clean. 

   Not applicable:  
   Loading docks are not proposed   
   or needed.  

E.3.7.06 Guideline Surface parking should be visually 
attractive, address security and safety 
concerns, retain existing mature trees and 
incorporate canopy trees for shade. See 
Section D.5 for more compete guidelines 
regarding landscaping in parking areas. 

Not applicable: 
No onsite parking. 

Utilities 
E.3.7.07 Guideline All utilities in conjunction with new 

residential and commercial development 
should be placed underground. 

Not applicable: 
  It is an existing building.  
 

E.3.7.08 Guideline Above ground meters, boxes and other 
utility equipment should be screened from 
public view through use of landscaping or 
by integrating into the overall building 
design. 

   Complies:  

The applicant has indicated that  
only the existing gas meter is to 
remain. No additional meter or 
utility equipment is proposed. 

 
Parking Garages 
E.3.7.09 Standard To promote the use of bicycles, secure 

bicycle parking shall be provided at the 
street level of public parking garages. 
Bicycle parking is also discussed in more 
detail in Section F.5 “Bicycle Storage 
Standards and Guidelines.” 

  Not applicable:  

A parking garage is not proposed. 

 

E.3.7.10 Guideline Parking garages on downtown parking 
plazas should avoid monolithic massing by 
employing change in façade rhythm, 
materials and/or color. 

  Not applicable:  

A parking garage is not proposed. 

 
 

A23



Menlo Park El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan Standards 
and Guidelines: 961 El Camino Real Compliance Worksheet 

 

 

 

Section Standard or 
Guideline 

Requirement Evaluation 

E.3.7.11 Guideline To minimize or eliminate their visibility and 
impact from the street and other significant 
public spaces, parking garages should be 
underground, wrapped by other uses (i.e. 
parking podium within a development) 
and/or screened from view through 
architectural and/or landscape treatment. 

  Not applicable:  

A parking garage is not proposed. 
 

 

E.3.7.12 Guideline Whether free-standing or incorporated into 
overall building design, garage façades 
should be designed with a modulated 
system of vertical openings and pilasters, 
with design attention to an overall building 
façade that fits comfortably and compatibly 
into the pattern, articulation, scale and 
massing of surrounding building character. 

  Not applicable:  

A parking garage is not proposed. 
 

E.3.7.13 Guideline Shared parking is encouraged where 
feasible to minimize space needs, and it is 
effectively codified through the plan’s off- 
street parking standards and allowance for 
shared parking studies. 

  Not applicable:  

A parking garage is not proposed. 

 

E.3.7.14 Guideline A parking garage roof should be 
approached as a usable surface and an 
opportunity for sustainable strategies, 
such as installment of a green roof, solar 
panels or other measures that minimize 
the heat island effect. 

  Not applicable:  

A parking garage is not proposed. 

 

E.3.8 Sustainable Practices 
Overall Standards 
E.3.8.01 Standard Unless the Specific Plan area is explicitly 

exempted, all citywide sustainability codes 
or requirements shall apply. 

  Tentatively Complies: 
  Staff will confirm compliance at the   
  building permit stage. 

Overall Guidelines 
E.3.8.02 Guideline Because green building standards are 

constantly evolving, the requirements in 
this section should be reviewed and 
updated on a regular basis of at least 
every two years. 

  Tentatively Complies: 
  Staff will confirm compliance at the   
  building permit stage. 

Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) Standards 
 
 

A24



Menlo Park El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan Standards 
and Guidelines: 961 El Camino Real Compliance Worksheet 

 

 

 

Section Standard or 
Guideline 

Requirement Evaluation 

E.3.8.03 Standard Development shall achieve LEED 
certification, at Silver level or higher, or a 
LEED Silver equivalent standard for the 
project types listed below. For LEED 
certification, the applicable standards 
include LEED New Construction; LEED 
Core and Shell; LEED New Homes; LEED 
Schools; and LEED Commercial Interiors. 
Attainment shall be achieved through 
LEED certification or through a City- 
approved outside auditor for those projects 
pursing a LEED equivalent standard. The 
requirements, process and applicable fees 
for an outside auditor program shall be 
established by the City and shall be 
reviewed and updated on a regular basis. 
LEED certification or equivalent standard, 
at a Silver lever or higher, shall be 
required for: 
• Newly constructed residential 

buildings of Group R (single-family, 
duplex and multi-family); 

• Newly constructed commercial 
buildings of Group B (occupancies 
including among others office, 
professional and service type 
transactions) and Group M 
(occupancies including among others 
display or sale of merchandise such 
as department stores, retail stores, 
wholesale stores, markets and sales 
rooms) that are 5,000 gross square 
feet or more; 

• New first-time build-outs of 
commercial interiors that are 20,000 
gross square feet or more in buildings 
of Group B and M occupancies; and 

• Major alterations that are 20,000 
gross square feet or more in existing 
buildings of Group B, M and R 
occupancies, where interior finishes 
are removed and significant upgrades 
to structural and mechanical, 
electrical and/or plumbing systems 
are proposed. 

All residential and/or mixed use 
developments of sufficient size to require 
LEED certification or equivalent standard 
under the Specific Plan shall install one 
dedicated electric vehicle/plug-in hybrid 
electric vehicle recharging station for every 
20 residential parking spaces provided. 
Per the Climate Action Plan the complying 
applicant could receive incentives, such as 
streamlined permit processing, fee 
discounts, or design templates. 

  Not applicable:  
Proposed project is not among the project 
types requiring LEED. 

Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) Guidelines 

A25



Menlo Park El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan Standards 
and Guidelines: 961 El Camino Real Compliance Worksheet 

 

 

 

Section Standard or 
Guideline 

Requirement Evaluation 

E.3.8.04 Guideline The development of larger projects allows 
for more comprehensive sustainability 
planning and design, such as efficiency in 
water use, stormwater management, 
renewable energy sources and carbon 
reduction features. A larger development 
project is defined as one with two or more 
buildings on a lot one acre or larger in 
size. Such development projects should 
have sustainability requirements and GHG 
reduction targets that address 
neighborhood planning, in addition to the 
sustainability requirements for individual 
buildings (See Standard E.3.8.03 above). 
These should include being certified or 
equivalently verified at a LEED-ND 
(neighborhood development), Silver level 
or higher, and mandating a phased 
reduction of GHG emissions over a period 
of time as prescribed in the 2030 
Challenge. 
The sustainable guidelines listed below 
are also relevant to the project area. They 
relate to but do not replace LEED 
certification or equivalent standard rating 
requirements. 

  Not applicable:  
The proposed project does not meet the 
definition of a larger development project. 

Building Design Guidelines 
E.3.8.05 Guideline Buildings should incorporate narrow floor 

plates to allow natural light deeper into the 
interior. 

Not applicable: 
Existing floor plate to remain. 

E.3.8.06 Guideline Buildings should reduce use of daytime 
artificial lighting through design elements, 
such as bigger wall openings, light 
shelves, clerestory lighting, skylights, and 
translucent wall materials. 

Partially Complies 
The existing building features large 
windows in the strorefront natural 
sunlight into the space. 

E.3.8.07 Guideline Buildings should allow for flexibility to 
regulate the amount of direct sunlight into 
the interiors. Louvered wall openings or 
shading devices like bris soleils help 
control solar gain and check overheating. 
Bris soleils, which are permanent sun- 
shading elements, extend from the sun- 
facing façade of a building, in the form of 
horizontal or vertical projections 
depending on sun orientation, to cut out 
the sun’s direct rays, help protect windows 
from excessive solar light and heat and 
reduce glare within. 

Partially Complies: 
Windows face northeast which is a 
favorable solar orientation. 

E.3.8.08 Guideline Where appropriate, buildings should 
incorporate arcades, trellis and 
appropriate tree planting to screen and 
mitigate south and west sun exposure 
during summer. This guideline would not 
apply to downtown, the station area and 
the west side of El Camino Real where 
buildings have a narrower setback and 
street trees provide shade. 

  Not applicable:  

This project is on the west side of El 
Camino Real. Pergola will be provided to 
the rear. 

E.3.8.09 Guideline Operable windows are encouraged in new 
buildings for natural ventilation. 

Not applicable: 
No operable windows provided; however, 

A26



Menlo Park El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan Standards 
and Guidelines: 961 El Camino Real Compliance Worksheet 

 

 

 

this is not a new building. Also, it is not 
clear that operable windows would be 
suited for restaurants. 

Section Standard or 
Guideline 

Requirement Evaluation 

E.3.8.10 Guideline To maximize use of solar energy, buildings 
should consider integrating photovoltaic 
panels on roofs. 

Not applicable: 
There appears to be limited space on the 
roof. Staff will confirm compliance with all 
City codes at building permit stage. 
 

E.3.8.11 Guideline Inclusion of recycling centers in kitchen 
facilities of commercial and residential 
buildings shall be encouraged. The 
minimum size of recycling centers in 
commercial buildings should be 20 cubic 
feet (48 inches wide x 30 inches deep x 24 
inches high) to provide for garbage and 
recyclable materials. 

Complies: 
Recycling containers will be included in the 
trash enclosure. 

Stormwater and Wastewater Management Guidelines 
E.3.8.12 Guideline Buildings should incorporate intensive or 

extensive green roofs in their design. 
Green roofs harvest rain water that can be 
recycled for plant irrigation or for some 
domestic uses. Green roofs are also 
effective in cutting-back on the cooling 
load of the air-conditioning system of the 
building and reducing the heat island 
effect from the roof surface. 

Not applicable: 
Existing building/roof to remain. 

E.3.8.13 Guideline Projects should use porous material on 
driveways and parking lots to minimize 
stormwater run-off from paved surfaces. 

Not applicable: 
No paved areas. 

Landscaping Guidelines 
E.3.8.14 Guideline Planting plans should support passive 

heating and cooling of buildings and 
outdoor spaces. 

  Complies: 
  Project will meet this guideline. 

E.3.8.15 Guideline Regional native and drought resistant 
plant species are encouraged as planting 
material. 

  Complies: 
  Project will meet this guideline. 

E.3.8.16 Guideline Provision of efficient irrigation system is 
recommended, consistent with the City's 
Municipal Code Chapter 12.44 "Water- 
Efficient Landscaping". 

Complies: 

Project will meet this guideline. 

Lighting Standards 
E.3.8.17 Standard Exterior lighting fixtures shall use fixtures 

with low cut-off angles, appropriately 
positioned, to minimize glare into dwelling 
units and light pollution into the night sky. 

Complies: 
Project meets this guideline. 

E.3.8.18 Standard Lighting in parking garages shall be 
screened and controlled so as not to 
disturb surrounding properties, but shall 
ensure adequate public security. 

Not applicable. 

Lighting Guidelines 
E.3.8.19 Guideline Energy-efficient and color-balanced 

outdoor lighting, at the lowest lighting 
levels possible, are encouraged to provide 
for safe pedestrian and auto circulation. 

TBD:  
Per applicant project will meet this 
guideline. Compliance with City codes to 
be verified at building permit stage. 

 
E.3.8.20 Guideline Improvements should use ENERGY 

STAR-qualified fixtures to reduce a 
building’s energy consumption. 

TBD:  

A27



Menlo Park El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan Standards 
and Guidelines: 961 El Camino Real Compliance Worksheet 

Per applicant project will meet this 
guideline. Compliance with City codes to 
be verified at building permit stage. 

E.3.8.21 Guideline Installation of high-efficiency lighting 
systems with advanced lighting control, 
including motion sensors tied to dimmable 
lighting controls or lighting controlled by 
timers set to turn off at the earliest 
practicable hour, are recommended. 

TBD:  
Per applicant project will meet this 
guideline. Compliance with City codes to 
be verified at building permit stage. 

Green Building Material Guidelines 

Section Standard or 
Guideline 

Requirement Evaluation 

E.3.8.22 Guideline The reuse and recycle of construction and 
demolition materials is recommended. The 
use of demolition materials as a base 
course for a parking lot keeps materials 
out of landfills and reduces costs. 

TBD:  
Per applicant project will meet this 
guideline. Compliance with City codes to 
be verified at building permit stage. 

E.3.8.23 Guideline The use of products with identifiable 
recycled content, including post-industrial 
content with a preference for post- 
consumer content, are encouraged. 

TBD:  
Per applicant project will meet this 
guideline. Compliance with City codes to 
be verified at building permit stage. 

E.3.8.24 Guideline Building materials, components, and 
systems found locally or regionally should 
be used, thereby saving energy and 
resources in transportation. 

TBD:  
Per applicant project will meet this 
guideline. Compliance with City codes to 
be verified at building permit stage. 

E.3.8.25 Guideline A design with adequate space to facilitate 
recycling collection and to incorporate a 
solid waste management program, 
preventing waste generation, is 
recommended. 

TBD:  
Per applicant project will meet this 
guideline. Compliance with City codes to 
be verified at building permit stage. 

E.3.8.26 Guideline The use of material from renewable 
sources is encouraged. 

TBD:  
Per applicant project will meet this 
guideline. Compliance with City codes to 
be verified at building permit stage. 

A28



816 Santa Cruz Avenue – Attachment A, Exhibit D 

PAGE: 1 of 2 

LOCATION: 816 Santa 
Cruz Avenue 

PROJECT NUMBER: 
PLN2023-00015 

APPLICANT: Debora 
Ferrand 

OWNER: Anne Wilbur 

PROJECT CONDITIONS: 

1. The architectural control permit shall be subject to the following standard conditions:

a. Development of the project shall be substantially in conformance with the plans
prepared by M+E Design Collaborative, consisting of six plan sheets, dated received
November 22, 2024 and approved by the Planning Commission on December 4, 2024,
except as modified by the conditions contained herein, subject to review and approval
of the Planning Division.

b. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicants shall comply with all Sanitary District,
Menlo Park Fire Protection District, and utility companies’ regulations that are directly
applicable to the project.

c. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicants shall comply with all requirements of
the Building Division, Engineering Division, and Transportation Division that are directly
applicable to the project.

d. Prior to building permit issuance, if applicable, the applicant shall submit a plan for any
new utility installations or upgrades for review and approval by the Planning,
Engineering and Building Divisions. All utility equipment that is installed outside of a
building and that cannot be placed underground shall be properly screened by
landscaping. The plan shall show exact locations of all meters, back flow prevention
devices, transformers, junction boxes, relay boxes, and other equipment boxes.

e. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall pay all fees incurred through staff
time spent reviewing the application.

f. Heritage trees in the vicinity of the construction project shall be protected pursuant to
the Heritage Tree Ordinance.

g. The applicant or permittee shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Menlo
Park or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action, or proceeding
against the City of Menlo Park or its agents, officers, or employees to attack, set aside,
void, or annul an approval of the Planning Commission, City Council, Community
Development Director, or any other department, committee, or agency of the City
concerning a development, variance, permit, or land use approval which action is
brought within the time period provided for in any applicable statute; provided, however,
that the applicant’s or permittee’s duty to so defend, indemnify, and hold harmless shall
be subject to the City’s promptly notifying the applicant or permittee of any said claim,
action, or proceeding and the City’s full cooperation in the applicant’s or permittee’s
defense of said claims, actions, or proceedings.

h. Notice of Fees Protest – The applicant may protest any fees, dedications, reservations,
or other exactions imposed by the City as part of the approval or as a condition of
approval of this development. Per California Government Code 66020, this 90-day
protest period has begun as of the date of the approval of this application

2. Approve the architectural control permit subject to the following project-specific conditions:

a. The applicant shall adhere to and/or implement all mitigation measures which apply to
this Project and were adopted as a part of the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting
Programs (MMRPs) for the ConnectMenlo General Plan and the Downtown Specific

EXHIBIT D

A29



816 Santa Cruz Avenue – Attachment A, Exhibit D 

PAGE: 2 of 2 

LOCATION: 816 Santa 
Cruz Avenue 

PROJECT NUMBER: 
PLN2023-00015 

APPLICANT: Debora 
Ferrand 

OWNER: Anne Wilbur 

PROJECT CONDITIONS: 

Plan. Failure to meet these requirements may result in delays to the building permit 
issuance, stop work orders during construction, and/or fines. 

 
 

A30



City of Menlo Park

816 Santa Cruz Avenue
Location Map

Date: 12/2/2024 Drawn By:4,000 FNK Checked By: CDS1: Sheet: 1Scale:

ATTACHMENT B

B1



From: secretary <secretary@hihp.com> 

Sent: Tuesday, October 17, 2023 2:17 PM 

To: Khan, Fahteen N 

Subject: Applica&on Submi(al No&ce - Architectural Control/Deborah Ferrand/816 

Santa Cruz Ave MP 

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Unless you recognize 

the sender's email address and know the content is safe, DO NOT click links, open 

attachments or reply.

A(n: Planning Division – City of Menlo Park 

We are wri&ng with regard to the applica&on made by Mademoiselle Colle(e to install an a(ached 

pergola at the rear of the premises, located at 816 Santa Cruz Ave.  Our building, 1143 Crane Street, 

overlooks the rear of Mademoiselle Colle(e’s.  This business is an asset to downtown MP adding 

vibrancy and draw, unfortunately lost in the a9ermath of the pandemic.  We fully support Mademoiselle 

Collet’s applica&on to install a pergola. 

Thank you 

Karen 

Karen J. Uribe 

Knob Hill Mines, Inc. 

KarenUribe@hihp.com 

1143 Crane Street, Suite 200 (650) 328-0820 

Menlo Park, CA 94025           (650) 323-5390 fax.

This message is intended only for the use of the individual or entity to which it is addressed and may contain information that is 

privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law.  If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby 

notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited.  If you  have received this 

communication in error, please immediately notify us by telephone and return the original message to us at the above address 

by email.  Thank you. 

ATTACHMENT C

C1



Community Development 

 

   

 
 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

Planning Commission    
Meeting Date:   12/2/2024 
Staff Report Number:  24-052-PC 
 
Public Hearing:  Consider and adopt a resolution to approve a use 

permit to partially demolish an existing single-story, 
single-family residence and construct first- and 
second-story additions and conduct interior 
modifications to an existing nonconforming 
structure on a substandard lot with regard to 
minimum lot width in the R-1-U (Single Family 
Urban Residential) zoning district at 351 Barton 
Place. The proposed project would remove the 
nonconforming portions of the existing structure 
and the additions would exceed 50 percent of the 
existing floor area, and is considered equivalent to 
new structure; determine this action is categorically 
exempt under CEQA Guidelines Section 15301’s 
Class 1 exemption for existing facilities.   

 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission adopt a resolution approving a use permit to partially 
demolish an existing one-story, single-family residence and construct first- and second-story additions and 
conduct interior modifications to an existing nonconforming structure on a substandard lot with regard to 
minimum lot width in the R-1-U (Single Family Urban Residential) zoning district at 351 Barton Place. The 
proposed project would remove the nonconforming portions of the existing structure. The proposed 
additions would exceed 50 percent of the existing floor area, and therefore, the proposal is considered 
equivalent to new structure. The draft resolution, including the recommended actions and conditions of 
approval, is included as Attachment A. 

 

Policy Issues 
Each use permit request is considered individually. The Planning Commission should consider whether the 
required use permit findings can be made for the proposed project.  

 

Background 

Site location 
The subject property is located on Barton Place, a cul-de-sac located on the west side of Barton Way 
between Gilbert Avenue and Concord Drive in The Willows neighborhood. 
 
The neighborhood features a variety of architectural styles, including Mediterranean, craftsman, ranch, and, 
traditional. Many of the older homes in the vicinity of the project are single-story ranch style with front-
loading one- or two-car garages. A number of the surrounding residences have recently been remodeled or 



Staff Report #: 24-052-PC 
Page 2 

 

   

 
 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

replaced with newer two-story residences. A location map is included as Attachment B. 

 

Analysis 

Project description 
The subject property is a substandard lot with regard to the minimum lot width, being 54 feet, six inches 
wide where a minimum of 65 feet is required. The property is currently occupied by an approximately 1,413-
square-foot, one-story, single-family residence with an attached front loading one-car garage built in 
approximately 1947. The right side of the garage is nonconforming with a setback of 4.5 feet from the 
property line where 5.5 feet is required.  
 
The applicant is proposing to demolish the attached garage and front porch and construct first- and second-
story additions which would conform to all required setbacks, eliminating the nonconforming element. The 
garage would be brought forward so that the front façade of the garage would be approximately 20.5 feet 
from the front property line. A new full-width covered front porch would be added to the front façade. The 
remodeled and expanded residence would contain four bedrooms and two and one-half bathrooms. The 
expanded and relocated garage would contain a single covered parking space. While the proposed garage 
would be forward of the main house, the effect on the streetscape would remain similar to the existing 
configuration of a front-loading single-car garage and to nearby homes with similar configurations.  As the 
residence was originally constructed with one covered parking space, the applicant is permitted to retain the 
nonconforming parking configuration. The driveway would continue to provide a second unofficial parking 
space within the front setback, which would not meet the off-street parking requirement but would provide 
some flexibility. 
 
The applicant is proposing to expand the existing driveway from a width of 10 feet to a width of 16 feet; 
however, Menlo Park Municipal Code (MPMC) Section 13.04.050 (6) prohibits driveways or curb cuts from 
being located within two feet of the extension of the prolonged property line. Recommended condition of 
approval 2.a would require a two-foot separation between the right-side property line and the driveway to 
bring the project into compliance with the Municipal Code and to soften the impact of the proposed driveway 
and garage.  
  
The proposed residence would meet all Zoning Ordinance requirements for setbacks, lot coverage, floor 
area limit (FAL), daylight plane, and height. Of particular note with regard to Zoning Ordinance 
requirements: 
• The total proposed FAL would be 2,255 square feet where a maximum of 2,800 square feet is permitted. 
• The total proposed building coverage would be 1,866 square feet (34.9 percent), where a maximum of 

1,872 square feet (35 percent) is permitted. 
• Three new skylights are proposed that exceed 12 feet in height from floor to ceiling, which is counted as 

200% toward the FAL for 15 additional square feet of floor area. 
  

The project plans and the applicant’s project description letter are included as Attachment A, Exhibits A and 
B respectively. A data table summarizing parcel and project attributes is included as Attachment C. 
 

Design and materials 
The proposed alteration and expansion would update the exterior of the residence to a modern farmhouse 
style with the addition of a full-width shed roof front porch. The entire existing façade would be replaced with 
vertical board and batten siding. The front door would be stained wood and garage door would be painted 
metal, both with painted wood trim to match the siding. Windows on the front facade are proposed to be 



Staff Report #: 24-052-PC 
Page 3 

 

   

 
 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

vinyl with sculptured grid inserts between the glass panes; windows on the remaining three sides would be 
a combination of sculpted insert grids and clear glass. The existing open gable roof style would be 
expanded to the addition where majority of the roof material would be composition shingle with standing 
seam metal as an accent material on the front porch. 
 
The proposed project would feature a number of first and second story windows along the right side façade, 
including a group of windows that would follow the proposed new staircase to the second floor. The sill 
heights for two of the second story windows would be approximately 1.9 feet from the finished floor. The sill 
height of the window at the upper landing within the staircase would be 3.6 feet in height. As mentioned in 
the correspondence section, the neighboring property owner at 355 Barton Place expressed concern about 
loss of privacy in their side yard (which abuts the subject property’s right side property line) from the new 
window placement. While the sill heights for the windows are relatively low, one window is at the upper 
landing within the stairwell and the two lower windows are in the corners of the two upstairs bedrooms. The 
location of the windows could alleviate some potential privacy concerns raised by the neighbor. Additionally, 
the proposed windows would be approximately 25 to 34 feet away from the neighboring residence and a 
number of mature London plane trees (heritage trees #184 and 185) located on the 355 Barton property 
would provide screening between the residences. The applicant also indicates they plan to install window 
blinds on the staircase windows and plant shrubs along the shared fence to increase privacy.  
 

Trees and landscaping 
The applicant has submitted an arborist report (Attachment A, Exhibit C), detailing the species, size, and 
conditions of on-site and nearby trees. A total of 10 trees were assessed, both on and adjacent to the 
property, of which two are heritage trees. Three non-protected trees are proposed to be removed due to 
conflicts with the proposed design.  
 

Table 1: Tree summary and disposition 

Tree number Species Size (DBH, in 
inches) Disposition Notes 

181 Mock orange 6 
Remove - 

Construction 
Non-heritage 

182 Mock orange 6.5 
Remove – 

Construction 
Non-heritage 

183 Mock orange 10 Remove – 
Construction 

Non-heritage 

184* London plane 22 Preserve Heritage 

185* London plane 15 Preserve Heritage 

186* Camellia 6 Preserve Non-heritage 

187* White birch 14 Preserve Non-heritage 

188 African fern pine 12.5 Preserve Non-heritage 

189 African fern pine 12 Preserve Non-heritage 

190** Chinese elm 2.5 Preserve Non-heritage 

*Indicates off-site tree 



Staff Report #: 24-052-PC 
Page 4 

 

   

 
 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

**Indicates street tree 

 
All standard Menlo Park heritage tree protection measures would be implemented and ensured as part of 
condition 1h. 
 
Correspondence 
The applicant indicates that they conducted neighborhood outreach, the results of which are included in the 
project description letter (Attachment A, Exhibit B). Neighbors generally expressed approval for the 
proposed project. One adjoining neighbor at 355 Barton Place expressed concern about loss of privacy 
from the proposed staircase windows along the right façade. The applicant states in their letter that they will 
install window blinds in those windows and plant landscape screening to help mitigate their privacy 
concerns. Staff has received no additional correspondence from the public. 
 

Conclusion 
Staff believes that the design, scale, and materials of the proposal are generally compatible with the 
surrounding neighborhood’s varied architectural styles, and would result in a consistent aesthetic approach 
as many homes in the area have been expanded with second story additions. The proposed new front 
porch would connect the house to the street and the board and batten siding on the façade would be an 
architecturally interesting addition to the streetscape. The second story windows on the right side façade 
would have relatively low sill heights, but the locations of the windows in the corners of the bedrooms and 
within the stairwell would likely reduce privacy impacts. While not a requirement of the use permit, the 
applicant has indicated they intend to install window blinds on the staircase windows as well as plant 
landscape screening along the property line between the two properties. The applicant’s proposal would not 
be out of scale for the neighborhood and would comply with all applicable Zoning Ordinance requirements, 
including building coverage and setbacks. 

 

Impact on City Resources 
The project sponsor is required to pay Planning, Building and Public Works permit fees, based on the City’s 
Master Fee Schedule, to fully cover the cost of staff time spent on the review of the project. 
 

Environmental Review 
The project is categorically exempt under Class 1 (Section 15301, “Existing Facilities”) of the current 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines. 

 

Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. Public notification also consisted of publishing a notice in the local newspaper 
and notification by mail of owners and occupants within a 300-foot radius of the subject property. 
 

Appeal Period 
The Planning Commission action will be effective after 15 days unless the action is appealed to the City 
Council, in which case the outcome of the application shall be determined by the City Council. 
  



Staff Report #: 24-052-PC 
Page 5 

 

   

 
 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

 

 

Attachments 
A. Draft Planning Commission Resolution approving the use permit 

Exhibits to Attachment A 
 A. Project Plans  

B. Project Description Letter  
 C. Arborist Report  
 D.  Conditions of Approval 
B. Location Map 
C. Data Table  
 
Report prepared by: 
Connor Hochleutner, Assistant Planner  
 

Report reviewed by: 
Corinna Sandmeier, Principle Planner 



ATTACHMENT A

PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 2024- XXX 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
MENLO PARK APPROVING A USE PERMIT TO PARTIALLY 
DEMOLISH AN EXISTING SINGLE-STORY, SINGLE-FAMILY 
RESIDENCE AND CONSTRUCT FIRST- AND SECOND-STORY 
ADDITIONS GREATER THAN 50-PERCENT OF THE EXISTING 
FLOOR AREA AND CONDUCT INTERIOR MODIFICATIONS TO AN 
EXISTING NONCONFORMING STRUCTURE ON A SUBSTANDARD 
LOT WITH REGARD TO MINIMUM LOT WIDTH IN THE R-1-U 
(SINGLE FAMILY URBAN RESIDENTIAL) ZONING DISTRICT AT 351 
BARTON PLACE. 

WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park (“City”) received an application requesting a use 
permit to partially demolish an existing single-story, single-family residence and construct 
first- and second-story additions greater than 50-percent of the existing floor area and 
conduct interior modifications to an existing nonconforming structure on a substandard 
lot with regard to minimum lot width in the R-1-U (Single Family Urban Residential) zoning 
district (collectively, the “Project”) from Krista and Mark Burbridge (“Applicant and 
“Owners”) located at 351 Barton Place (APN 062-342-140) (“Property”). The Project use 
permit is depicted in and subject to the development plans and project description letter, 
which are attached hereto as Exhibit A and Exhibit B, respectively, and incorporated 
herein by this reference; and 

WHEREAS, the Property is located in the Single Family Urban Residential (R-1-U) 
district. The R-1-U district supports single-family residential uses; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed project would comply with all objective standards of the R-1-U 
district; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed project would remove the nonconforming elements of the 
existing structure and bring the residence into compliance with all Zoning Ordinance 
requirements; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed project would remain nonconforming with regard to the parking 
configuration where one covered space would be provided and at least one covered and 
one uncovered parking space are required; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed Project was reviewed by the Engineering, Building and 
Transportation Divisions and found to be in compliance with City standards; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed Project was reviewed by the City Arborist and found to be in 
compliance with the Heritage Tree Ordinance, and proposes standard tree protection 
mitigation measures and project-specific tree protection mitigation measures as 

A1



Resolution No. 2024-XXX 
 

described in the arborist report (incorporated herein as Exhibit C) to adequately protect 
heritage trees in the vicinity of the project; and 

WHEREAS, the Project, requires discretionary actions by the City as summarized above, 
and therefore the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA,” Public Resources Code 
Section §21000 et seq.) and CEQA Guidelines (Cal. Code of Regulations, Title 14, 
§15000 et seq.) require analysis and a determination regarding the Project’s 
environmental impacts; and  

WHEREAS, the City is the lead agency, as defined by CEQA and the CEQA Guidelines, 
and is therefore responsible for the preparation, consideration, certification, and approval 
of environmental documents for the Project; and  

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from environmental review pursuant to CEQA 
Guidelines§15301 (Existing Facilities); and 

WHEREAS, all required public notices and public hearings were duly given and held 
according to law; and 

WHEREAS, at a duly and properly noticed public hearing held on December 2, 2024, 
the Planning Commission fully reviewed, considered, and evaluated the whole of the 
record including all public and written comments, pertinent information, documents and 
plans, prior to taking action regarding the Project. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE MENLO PARK PLANNING COMMISSION HEREBY 
RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  Recitals.  The Planning Commission has considered the full record before it, 
which may include but is not limited to such things as the staff report, public testimony, 
and other materials and evidence submitted or provided, and the Planning Commission 
finds the foregoing recitals are true and correct, and they are hereby incorporated by 
reference into this Resolution. 

Section 2.  Conditional Use Permit Findings.  The Planning Commission of the City of Menlo 
Park does hereby make the following Findings:   

The approval of the use permit for first and second-story additions where the additions 
would exceed 50-percent of the existing floor area on a substandard lot with regard to 
minimum lot width is granted based on the following findings, which are made pursuant to 
Menlo Park Municipal Code Section 16.82.030: 

1. That the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the use applied for will, 
under the circumstance of the particular case, not be detrimental to the health, 
safety, morals, comfort and general welfare of the persons residing in the 

A2



Resolution No. 2024-XXX 
 

neighborhood of such proposed use, or injurious or detrimental to property and 
improvements in the neighborhood or the general welfare of the city because: 

a. Consideration and due regard were given to the nature and condition of 
all adjacent uses and structures, and to general plans for the area in 
question and surrounding areas, and impact of the application hereon; in 
that, the proposed use permit is consistent with the R-1-U zoning district 
and the General Plan because two-story residences that are adding more 
than 50-percent new floor area are allowed to be constructed on 
substandard lots subject to granting of a use permit and provided that the 
proposed residence conforms to applicable zoning standards, including, 
but not limited to, minimum setbacks, maximum floor area limit, and 
maximum building coverage. The addition of a second floor would be 
appropriate for the neighborhood as a number of other residences have 
been expanded to include a second story and the second story addition 
would comply with applicable setbacks, daylight plane, and height 
requirements. 

 
Section 3.  Conditional Use Permit.  The Planning Commission approves Use Permit 
No. PLN2024-00035, which use permit is depicted in and subject to the development 
plans and project description letter, which are attached hereto and incorporated herein 
by this reference as Exhibit A and Exhibit B, respectively.  The Use Permit is 
conditioned in conformance with the conditions attached hereto and incorporated herein 
by this reference as Exhibit D.   
 
Section 4.  ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW.  The Planning Commission makes the following 
findings, based on its independent judgment after considering the Project, and having 
reviewed and taken into consideration all written and oral information submitted in this matter: 

 
1. The Project is categorically exempt from environmental review pursuant to Cal. Code 

of Regulations, Title 14, §15301 et seq. (Existing facilities) 

Section 5.  SEVERABILITY  

If any term, provision, or portion of these findings or the application of these findings to a 
particular situation is held by a court to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions of these findings, or their application to other actions related to the Project, 
shall continue in full force and effect unless amended or modified by the City. 

I, Kyle Perata, Assistant Community Development Director of the City of Menlo Park, do 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing Planning Commission Resolution was duly 
and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said Planning Commission on 
December 2, 2024, by the following votes: 

AYES:   

A3



Resolution No. 2024-XXX 
 

NOES:  

ABSENT:   

ABSTAIN:  
 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of 
said City on this ______ day of December, 2024. 
 
PC Liaison Signature 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Kyle Perata 
Assistant Community Development Director  
City of Menlo Park 
 
Exhibits 

A. Project plans  
B. Project description letter  
C. Arborist report 
D. Conditions of approval 

 

A4



Date

Project No.

Sheet No.

Co
ve

r S
he

et

C 
 a 

 r 
 o 

 l  
e  

    
M 

  i 
  c

   a
   e

  l 
  i 

  a
   n

A 
r c

 h 
i t 

e c
 t e

 c 
t u

 r 
a l

  D
 e 

s i
 g 

n e
 r

cm
ica

eli
@

gm
ail

.co
m 

  -
   6

50
 . 7

40
 60

50

07/28/2024

2401

INDEX
Date Submittal

Project  For:
Burbridge Residence

351 Barton Place
Menlo Park
CA 94025

1

Use
Permit

351 Barton Place - Menlo Park - CA 94025

Residential

Carole Micaelian

Krista and Mark Burbank

R1U

Residential

R1U

5,350 5,350 7,000 / exemption
66.77 66.77 65
83.82 83.82 100

20 22 20
20 20.75 20
8.5 8.5 5.4
5.5 4.5 5.5
1,872 1,644 1,872
35 30 35

2,252 1,405 2,800

0 0
1,468 1,092
524 0
260 313

2,8002,252 1,405
2821'-11" 15'-11"

two- exempt oneone one

two
off-site

8 on site

4 on site
none

4 on site

8 on site

Scope of Work
This project consists of a one story and two story additions.
Scope includes:
1. Demolition of the existing nonconforming Garage structure,

(encroaching on side setback)
2. Demolition of the existing Porch.
3. Demolition of the roof structure above the side yard deck.
4. Removing the side yard deck and relocating it in the rear yard.
5. Building a new Porch at the Entrance of the house in the front

yard and extending the existing roof.
6. Building a new one car Garage correcting the side setback.

Extending the first- floor in the rear yard to add a Family room,
Half-bath, laundry area, closets and staircase.

7. Building a second-floor addition above part of the new first-floor,
to accommodate two bedrooms and one bathroom.

8. Modification of the window in Bedroom 2, impacted by the
remodel.

9. Replacing four existing windows: one in Living Room, one in Dining
Room, and two in Bedroom 1.

10. New composition shingle roof on the entire house.
The goal of the project is to concentrate the new construction in one
location side and rear yard, keeping the entire existing living space "as
is". No remodel involved in the existing house aside from changing five
windows.

Index
1. Cover Sheet
2. Area Plan & Streetscape
3. Existing Site Plan
4. Proposed Site Plan
5. Existing Floor Plan and Existing Elevations
5.1 Demolition Plan and Section on Skylights
6. Proposed Floor Plans
7. Proposed Elevations and Sections
8. Existing and Proposed Roof Plans
9. Proposed Floor Area Diagram and Area Calculations
9.1 Existing Floor Area Diagram - Area Calculations
10. Color and Materials Board
11. Impervious Calculations and Worksheet
12. Survey
13. Tree Protection Plan

- Project Description Letter
- Application Form
- Arborist Report
- Photos of the property- refer to sheet A1
- Photos of Adjacent Properties- refer to sheet A2
- Impervious Area Worksheet and Stormwater Checklist
- Photo rendering
- Neighborhood Outreach Packet and Feedback summary
- Historical Evaluation w. Photos
- Architectural Drawings authorization

Location Map

Project Site

Addition For:
The Burbridge Family

351 Barton Place
Menlo Park, CA94025

351 Barton Place

351 Barton Place

APN:

Zoned:

Type of Construction:

Existing # of Stories for all structures:

Occupancies (house and garage)

Total Site Area:

(E) Floor Area
(E) Attached Garage  & Laundry Area

(E) Floor Area Total

(E) Floor Area
(E) Skylights >12ft ceiling height

Proposed First Floor Addition
Proposed Garage
Proposed Second Floor Addition

(N) Floor Area Total

FAL Allowed
Max. 2nd story 50% FAL

Two Story Max. Coverage Allowed 35%

(E) Covered Entry Porch & Covered Deck
(E) Building Coverage
(E) Total Coverage

Proposed Entry Porch
Proposed Building Coverage
Proposed Total Coverage

Max allowable building height = 28'-0"
One & Two Story Daylight Plane -  M.P. zoning 16.67.020

Front Setback = 20'-0"
Rear Setback = 20'-0"
Side Setback = 5'-6" (Calculated 10% of Minimum Width)
M.P.Zoning 16.04.430

Per GIS map- Not in Flood Zone Area

Required Two Parking Stalls (9'x18') not in Tandem:
Min. one covered parking  & one uncovered parking stall complying with the
front or side setbacks.

Project Data
062342140

R-1-U

V-B

1

R-3/U

5,350 sf

1,092 sf
313 sf

1,405 sf

1,092 sf
15 sf

361 sf
260 sf
524 sf

2,252 sf

2,800 sf
1,400 sf

1,872 sf

233 sf
1,411 sf
1,644 sf

150 sf
1,722 sf
1,872 sf

Photos of the property 

Entrance Porch to be demolished

Garage to be demolished

Right Side Yard: Deck to be relocated,
Roof structure above deck to be demolished

Left Side Yard, with corner windows in Bedroom 1
to be replaced

Rear Yard with corner windows in Bedroom 2 to be
demolished and closed off.

1 10/14/2024

11

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Condition of Approval
A tree Protection Verification Letter from Project Arborist is required
before issuing the associated demolition and Building Permits.
a. Tree protection should be installed in compliance with City Tree

Protection requirements and project-specific recommendations in the
Arborist Report.

b. The Project Arborist should visit the property, verify that the
protection measures comply, take photos, and prepare a brief
verification letter for City Arborist review.

c. For Tree protection verification:
i. tree protection fencing needs signage;
ii. there should be a plan for providing consistent irrigation to the trees

before, during and after construction (this helps trees tolerate root
loss better);

iii. tree protection zones need mulch and/or plywood soil compaction
protection.

The Project Arborist must also provide monthly tree protection monitoring
inspections during active demolition and construction.
During these inspections, the Project Arborist should monitor the
condition of the trees, verify the compliance of the tree protection
measures, provide recommendations for any necessary maintenance and
impact mitigation and prepare monthly reports for City Arborist Review.

1

2

2 11/18/2024

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

2 2

2

EXHIBIT A

A5



Date

Project No.

Sheet No.

Ar
ea

 P
lan

 &
 S

tre
ets

ca
pe

Ph
oto

s o
f N

eig
hb

or
ho

od
 H

ou
se

s

C 
 a 

 r 
 o 

 l  
e  

    
M 

  i 
  c

   a
   e

  l 
  i 

  a
   n

A 
r c

 h 
i t 

e c
 t e

 c 
t u

 r 
a l

  D
 e 

s i
 g 

n e
 r

cm
ica

eli
@

gm
ail

.co
m 

  -
   6

50
 . 7

40
 60

50

07/28/2024

2401

INDEX
Date Submittal

Project  For:
Burbridge Residence

351 Barton Place
Menlo Park
CA 94025

2

Use
Permit

N

Area Plan & Street Scape

347 Barton Place 355 Barton Place

60.09
RP

339 Barton Place
two story

335 Barton Place
two story

331 Barton Place
two story

329 Barton Place
one story

343 Barton Place
one story

347 Barton Place
one story

501 Gilbert Avenue
two story

355 Barton Place
two story

499 Gilbert Avenue
one story

57.23
RP

57.23
RP

347 

351 355

Barton Place

B
ar

to
n 

W
ay

60.09
RP

65.59
RP

501 Gilbert Ave. 499 Gilbert Ave.

34'

62.73
RP

52.23
RP

Window Placement @ Second Floor

62.73
RP

52.23
RP

34'
66.59
RP

54.42
RP

13'

@First Floor

@First Floor

Window Placement @ First Floor

13'

25'
@2nd Floor

47
'

69'

47'

54.42
RP

355

Deck

W

W

W

W

W

W

W. Full height

W

Doors

W

W

351 355

W
W

W

W

W

34'

351347

25'

Overhang

351 355

Aerial View of Barton Place & Neighborhood Photos

P.L. P.L.

Gilbert Avenue

15" Birch
#187

6" Lemon

12" A.Fern Pine
#188

12" Syc
Heritage #185

15" Syc
Heritage #184

6" Camelia
#186

12" A.Fern Pine
#189

Diagram of Average Lot Depth : 101.5 ft

Diagram of Lot Width: 54'-6"

54'-6" min. Width

27.00'

28.01'

66.77'

102.00'

83.82'

8
4
.4

1
'

8
4
.5

'

8
7
.0

1
'

8
9
.2

5

9
1
.8

3

9
4
.7

5

9
7
.3

9
9
.3

3

1
0
0
.8

3

1
0
1
.7

5

83.82 + 84.41 + 84.5 + 87.01 + 89.25 + 91.83 + 94.75 +
 97.3 + 99.33 + 100.83 +101.75 + 102.0 = 1,116.78 / 11 = 101.5 ft

Minimum Lot Depth : 100ft

20
'-0

"

Minimum Lot Width : 65ft

1 10/14/2024

1

1

2 11/18/2024

2

2

A6



R-45.00'27.00'

R-40.00'
28.01'

2
0
'-0

"
R
ea

r
S
et

ba
ck

54'-6" min. Width 10% = 5'-5"

Covered
Deck
(212sf)

5'-6"
Side

Setback

Covered Parking
10ftx20ft

5'-5"
Side

Setback

20
'-0

"
Fr

on
t 
Se

tb
ac

k

5'-6"
Side

Setback

Existing Site Plan

N

20
'-0

"

Date

Project No.

Sheet No.

Si
te 

An
aly

sis
Ex

ist
ing

 S
ite

 P
lan

C 
 a 

 r 
 o 

 l  
e  

    
M 

  i 
  c

   a
   e

  l 
  i 

  a
   n

A 
r c

 h 
i t 

e c
 t e

 c 
t u

 r 
a l

  D
 e 

s i
 g 

n e
 r

cm
ica

eli
@

gm
ail

.co
m 

  -
   6

50
 . 7

40
 60

50

07/28/2024

2401

INDEX
Date Submittal

Project  For:
Burbridge Residence

351 Barton Place
Menlo Park
CA 94025

3

66.77'

102.00'83.82'

Roof structure above deck
to be demolished

Garage Roof & Exterior walls
to be demolished

Porch Area to
be demolished
and replaced

Areas of Demolition

10'-10"

 Barton Place

6ft Wood fence

Gate

Main Sewer

GM
EM
WM

S
Gas Meter

Electric Meter

Water Meter

G
M

EM

W
M S

A/C A/C Condenser & Pad

A/C

15" Birch
#187

6" Lemon

12" A.Fern Pine
#188

12" Syc
Heritage #185

15" Syc
Heritage #184

Driveway

A/C to be re-located

Gate

7ft Wood fence

Wood deck & steps
20" above grade
to be disassembled
and re-located

6" J.maple
to be removed

Edge of Eave
Exterior wall below roof

Setback

Fence and Gate

5" M.Crape
Myrtle

2" Chinese
Elm
#190

10" M.Pittosporum
#183

6.5" M.Pittosporum
#182
6" M.Pittosporum
#181

Multi-trunk PIttosporum
to be removed

Legend

6" Camelia
#186

12" A.Fern Pine
#189

Use
Permit

2
0
'-1

0
"

15'-8"

4'-6"

4'-8"

(E)Gas Meter location
to remain

26
'-5

"

4
1
'-6

"

(*.**)  Elevation - based on the survey

8'-614"

C.S.

C.S. Crawl Space Access

9'-0"

(Refer to Arborist Report page 8)
TREE PROTECTION RECOMMENDATIONS:
PLEASE NOTE: Once the project is approved with the tree protection recommendations outlined, from "Arborist Report"
any changes to the protection measures must be approved by the City Arborist.

Pre-Demolition Phase

• Irrigation: As soon as possible, start irrigating along the east property line fence. Irrigation
increases the resilience of the off-site trees (#184-186) and will mitigate water stress that
may result from root pruning. A temporary option with soaker hoses may be used - the
hoses should be left at a slow drip rate for 8 hours once a month.
• Inform all contractors and subcontractors of the significance of protecting the Heritage and
City trees, as the financial consequences for tree damage may be significant (City fines are
assessed based on the appraised values of the trees, not including claims from off-site tree
owners). A pre-construction meeting may be needed to review the tree protection
measures and work plan before demolition begins.
• Inform the Project Arborist of the start date of the project. The City requires regular
inspections (e.g. 4 week intervals) to ensure that the project is adhering to the tree
protection recommendations, and that fencing remains in place throughout construction.
• Ensure that temporary protection measures are installed before equipment arrives or
demolition begins. The side yard, rear yard, and landscape area next to the driveway
should be protected where they are highlighted in the tree protection plan. If possible, keep
the concrete walkway next to the garage, otherwise it shall be replaced with one of the
options below. Fencing, mulch, straw wattle, and plywood shall be used as follows:
- Fencing: Install temporary tree protection fencing to enclose the highlighted areas.
The City of Menlo Park requires 6’ tall chain link fencing mounted on 8’ tall, 2”
diameter galvanized posts, driven 24” into the ground and spaced no more than 10’
apart. Attach signs to the fencing that state “TREE PROTECTION FENCE - DO
NOT MOVE OR REMOVE WITHOUT APPROVAL FROM CITY ARBORIST.”
- Straw wattle & wood chips: Wrap the trunks of the on-site trees with straw wattle, up
to 6’ above grade or to the lowest branch. Secure the wattle to the trunk without
directly screwing or nailing it in. Cover the soil/landscape area with a 4” thick layer
of wood chips, optionally adding plywood on top. (Landscape fabric may be placed
down on the soil first to make it easier to remove the wood chips later, or the wood
chips can be simply left in place afterwards.)
- Plywood: Put down sheets of plywood along the side yard between the proposed
addition and the property line.
• Once the tree protection measures are completed, the Project Arborist must inspect and
provide a verification letter to the City before the demolition or building permit is issued.
• The tree protection measures are to remain in location throughout the project. To modify
the protection measures, contact the Project Arborist to submit a request in writing to the
City. Only the City Arborist can authorize removal of the protection measures at the end of
the project.

Construction Phase

• Note: in general, if root or branch pruning is needed, the pruning must be supervised by the
Project Arborist.
• The addition foundation shall be dug by hand or with water- or air-assisted tools, leaving
the roots in place for the Project Arborist to review. Once they have been reviewed, they
can be cleanly cut with sharp tools (handsaw, Sawzall, or circular saw). Make the smallest
possible cut – perpendicular to the length of the root rather than at a diagonal. Roots must
then be covered and kept moist until the soil is backfilled. Additional recommendations may
be provided based on the extent of root pruning.
• At any time, if damage occurs to any tree, immediately consult the Project Arborist for
recommendations on how to mitigate the damage.
• When construction is completed but before fencing is removed, contact the City Arborist for
a final inspection.

Post-Construction Phase

• If the project arborist deems it necessary, supplemental irrigation should be provided for
one growing season after construction is completed (~9 months). For details, see the
“Irrigation” recommendation under the Pre-Demolition Phase section.
• To avoid further impact to the off-site trees (#184-186), avoid activities that disturb the area
between the addition and the property line fence for several years after the addition project
is completed. Activities include but are not limited to trenching for irrigation, installing hardscape,
and drainage installation.

Before Site Preparation, Demolition
Construction :
Refer to Tree Protection
Recommendations and Actions and
Tree Protection Plan

(Refer to Arborist Report Page 4)
Special Tree Protection Actions for  Trees #184 &185,

Actions : For several years after the project is complete avoid hardscaping or other
disturbing activities between the proposed addition and the property line.
Begin irrigating along the property line to increase tree resilience.
Leave existing concrete walkway by Garage if possible (root protection); otherwise
cover newly exposed soil with plywood or wood chips. Protect the area between the
addition and property line with mulch or plywood, to remain throughout construction.
Once the deck is removed, hand dig along proposed foundation; leave roots for
arborist review and recommendations. Roots shall be cut with harp tools and kept
moist  till backfilled.

1 10/14/2024

1

1

42.68

Concrete pathway to remain
per Tree Protection Recommendation

Concrete blocks to remain to
be extended

1

2 11/18/2024

2

2

A7



R-45.00'27.00'

R-40.00'28.01'

2
0
'-0

"
R
ea

r
S
et

ba
ck

54'-6" min. Width 10% = 5'-6"

5'-6"
Side

Setback

5'-6"
Side

Setback

2
0
'-0

"
Fr

on
t 
Se

tb
ac

k

5'-6"
Side

Setback

Proposed Site Plan

20
'-0

"

Date

Project No.

Sheet No.

Si
te 

An
aly

sis
Pr

op
os

ed
 S

ite
 P

lan

C 
 a 

 r 
 o 

 l  
e  

    
M 

  i 
  c

   a
   e

  l 
  i 

  a
   n

A 
r c

 h 
i t 

e c
 t e

 c 
t u

 r 
a l

  D
 e 

s i
 g 

n e
 r

cm
ica

eli
@

gm
ail

.co
m 

  -
   6

50
 . 7

40
 60

50

07/28/2024

2401

INDEX
Date Submittal

Project  For:
Burbridge Residence

351 Barton Place
Menlo Park
CA 94025

4
1
5
'-2

"
1
st

 f
lo

or
 a

dd
iti

on

66.77'

102.00'83.82'

14'-6"
2nd floor addition

3
8
'-3

"
2
nd

 f
lo

or
 a

dd
iti

on

12'-0"
1st floor addition

29'-1"

Second Floor Addition
14.5 x 38.25 - stair (3.5x13) = 519 sf

 (N)Garage
15.1666 x 12 +6.333 x 11.5 =

255 sf

Proposed Porch
5.16 x 29 = 150 sf
W. Extended Roof

First Floor Addition
32 x 11.5 = 368 sf + 2 sf =
370 sf

Two Story Addition

One Story Addition

5
3
'-5

"
1
st

 f
lo

or
 a

dd
iti

on

(N)Deck

6
'-0

"
1
3
'-1

1
"

 Barton Place

16'-0"
Driveway

W
M S

G
M

EM

6" Lemon

15" Syc

5" M.Crape
Myrtle

A
/C

A
/C

Main Sewer

GM
EM
WM

S
Gas Meter

Electric Meter

Water Meter

A/C A/C Condenser & Pad
Proposed location

Edge of Eave
Exterior wall below roof

Setback

Fence and Gate

6ft Wood fence

Gate

7ft Wood fence

Legend

15" Birch
#187

12" A.Fern Pine
#188

12" Syc
Heritage #185

15" Syc
Heritage #184

2" Chinese
Elm
#190

6" Camelia
#186

12" A.Fern Pine
#189

Covered Parking
10ftx20ft

(E)Gas Meter location
to remain

5'-10"

5'-6"

20
'-5

1 2"

(N)A/C Pad location

(*.**)  Elevation - based on the survey

Existing House

Trellis

2
0
'-1

0
"

2
0
'-0

"

Proposed 2nd
Story

Proposed
1st Story
Addition

Proposed
1st Story
Addition 4

'-1
0
"

2
0
'-0

"

California Roof

3
'-3

"

C.S.

C.S. Crawl Space Access

N

(N) Screening bush

Enlarged driveway

Use
Permit

1 10/14/2024

1

Before Site Preparation, Demolition
Construction :
Refer to Tree Protection
Recommendations and Actions and
Tree Protection Plan

1

(Refer to Arborist Report page 8)
TREE PROTECTION RECOMMENDATIONS:
PLEASE NOTE: Once the project is approved with the tree protection recommendations outlined, from "Arborist Report"
any changes to the protection measures must be approved by the City Arborist.

Pre-Demolition Phase

• Irrigation: As soon as possible, start irrigating along the east property line fence. Irrigation
increases the resilience of the off-site trees (#184-186) and will mitigate water stress that
may result from root pruning. A temporary option with soaker hoses may be used - the
hoses should be left at a slow drip rate for 8 hours once a month.
• Inform all contractors and subcontractors of the significance of protecting the Heritage and
City trees, as the financial consequences for tree damage may be significant (City fines are
assessed based on the appraised values of the trees, not including claims from off-site tree
owners). A pre-construction meeting may be needed to review the tree protection
measures and work plan before demolition begins.
• Inform the Project Arborist of the start date of the project. The City requires regular
inspections (e.g. 4 week intervals) to ensure that the project is adhering to the tree
protection recommendations, and that fencing remains in place throughout construction.
• Ensure that temporary protection measures are installed before equipment arrives or
demolition begins. The side yard, rear yard, and landscape area next to the driveway
should be protected where they are highlighted in the tree protection plan. If possible, keep
the concrete walkway next to the garage, otherwise it shall be replaced with one of the
options below. Fencing, mulch, straw wattle, and plywood shall be used as follows:
- Fencing: Install temporary tree protection fencing to enclose the highlighted areas.
The City of Menlo Park requires 6’ tall chain link fencing mounted on 8’ tall, 2”
diameter galvanized posts, driven 24” into the ground and spaced no more than 10’
apart. Attach signs to the fencing that state “TREE PROTECTION FENCE - DO
NOT MOVE OR REMOVE WITHOUT APPROVAL FROM CITY ARBORIST.”
- Straw wattle & wood chips: Wrap the trunks of the on-site trees with straw wattle, up
to 6’ above grade or to the lowest branch. Secure the wattle to the trunk without
directly screwing or nailing it in. Cover the soil/landscape area with a 4” thick layer
of wood chips, optionally adding plywood on top. (Landscape fabric may be placed
down on the soil first to make it easier to remove the wood chips later, or the wood
chips can be simply left in place afterwards.)
- Plywood: Put down sheets of plywood along the side yard between the proposed
addition and the property line.
• Once the tree protection measures are completed, the Project Arborist must inspect and
provide a verification letter to the City before the demolition or building permit is issued.
• The tree protection measures are to remain in location throughout the project. To modify
the protection measures, contact the Project Arborist to submit a request in writing to the
City. Only the City Arborist can authorize removal of the protection measures at the end of
the project.

Construction Phase

• Note: in general, if root or branch pruning is needed, the pruning must be supervised by the
Project Arborist.
• The addition foundation shall be dug by hand or with water- or air-assisted tools, leaving
the roots in place for the Project Arborist to review. Once they have been reviewed, they
can be cleanly cut with sharp tools (handsaw, Sawzall, or circular saw). Make the smallest
possible cut – perpendicular to the length of the root rather than at a diagonal. Roots must
then be covered and kept moist until the soil is backfilled. Additional recommendations may
be provided based on the extent of root pruning.
• At any time, if damage occurs to any tree, immediately consult the Project Arborist for
recommendations on how to mitigate the damage.
• When construction is completed but before fencing is removed, contact the City Arborist for
a final inspection.

Post-Construction Phase

• If the project arborist deems it necessary, supplemental irrigation should be provided for
one growing season after construction is completed (~9 months). For details, see the
“Irrigation” recommendation under the Pre-Demolition Phase section.
• To avoid further impact to the off-site trees (#184-186), avoid activities that disturb the area
between the addition and the property line fence for several years after the addition project
is completed. Activities include but are not limited to trenching for irrigation, installing hardscape,
and drainage installation.

(Refer to Arborist Report Page 4)
Special Tree Protection Actions for  Trees #184 &185,

Actions : For several years after the project is complete avoid hardscaping or other
disturbing activities between the proposed addition and the property line.
Begin irrigating along the property line to increase tree resilience.
Leave existing concrete walkway by Garage if possible (root protection); otherwise
cover newly exposed soil with plywood or wood chips. Protect the area between the
addition and property line with mulch or plywood, to remain throughout construction.
Once the deck is removed, hand dig along proposed foundation; leave roots for
arborist review and recommendations. Roots shall be cut with harp tools and kept
moist  till backfilled.

1

Gate

(E) Concrete pathway
1

2 11/18/2024

2

2

2

A8



Date

Project No.

Sheet No.

Ex
ist

ing
 F

loo
r P

lan
Ex

ist
ing

 E
lev

ati
on

s

C 
 a 

 r 
 o 

 l  
e  

    
M 

  i 
  c

   a
   e

  l 
  i 

  a
   n

A 
r c

 h 
i t 

e c
 t e

 c 
t u

 r 
a l

  D
 e 

s i
 g 

n e
 r

cm
ica

eli
@

gm
ail

.co
m 

  -
   6

50
 . 7

40
 60

50

07/28/2024

2401

INDEX
Date Submittal

Project  For:
Burbridge Residence

351 Barton Place
Menlo Park
CA 94025

5

LIVING AREA

BEDROOM 1 BEDROOM  2

Existing South Elevation - Street Side

12
3.75

Existing Floor Plan Existing West Elevation - Left Side

12
3.75

1
6
'-1

"

CL

CL

BATHROOM

DINING AREA

KITCHEN

DECK

PORCH
GARAGE

LAUNDRY AREA

DN

W.H.

DN

DN

DN

DW

29'-7"

SK

SK

16'-2"

3
6
'-1

1
"

1
3
'-0

"

13'-0" 3'-7" 11'-2"

1
3
'-0

"

A.A.

A.A.     Attic Access
SK.     Skylight
W.H.    Water Heater
W  Washer
D Dryer
DN    Step Down

6
'-1

1
"

1
5
'-2

"

28'-7"

2
4
'-8

"
1
6
'-2

"

12'-0"

1
6
'-2

"
7
'-6

"

45
45

PL

PL

Daylight Plane
One Story

1
2
'-6

"

45

PL

Daylight Plane
One Story

1
2
'-6

"

45

PL

Existing East Elevation - Right Side

Existing North Elevation - Rear Yard

8
'-0

"

8
'-0

"

1
6
'-1

"

1
2
'-4

"

5'-5"5'-5"
Side setback
10% of
min. lot width

Side setback
10% of
min. lot width

2
8
'-0

"
M

ax
. 

H
ei

gh
t

2
8
'-0

"
M

ax
. 

H
ei

gh
t

SK

Use
Permit

N

5'-5"
Side setback
10% of
min. lot width

9'-0"

5'-5"
Side setback
10% of
min. lot width

1
2
'-6

"

1
1

1 10/14/2024

A9



Date

Project No.

Sheet No.

De
mo

liti
on

  P
lan

C 
 a 

 r 
 o 

 l  
e  

    
M 

  i 
  c

   a
   e

  l 
  i 

  a
   n

A 
r c

 h 
i t 

e c
 t e

 c 
t u

 r 
a l

  D
 e 

s i
 g 

n e
 r

cm
ica

eli
@

gm
ail

.co
m 

  -
   6

50
 . 7

40
 60

50

10/14/2024

2401

INDEX
Date Submittal

Project  For:
Burbridge Residence

351 Barton Place
Menlo Park
CA 94025

5.1

LIVING AREA

BEDROOM 1 BEDROOM  2

Demolition  Plan

CL

CL

BATHROOM

DINING AREA

KITCHEN

DECK

PORCH

GARAGE

W.H.

DN

DW

29'-7"

SK

SK

16'-2"

3
6
'-1

1
"

1
3
'-0

"

13'-0" 3'-7" 11'-2"

1
3
'-0

"

A.A.

A.A.     Attic Access
SK.     Skylight
W.H.    Water Heater
W Washer
D Dryer
DN    Step Down

Demolition involved as noted

6
'-1

1
"

1
5
'-2

"

28'-7"
2
4
'-8

"
1
6
'-2

"

13'-0"

SK

Use
Permit

N

Demolish Carport
structure: posts
& Roof

Demolish Garage:
Exterior walls, roof &
concrete Slab

6
'-1

"
1
6
'-1

1
"

Replace (E)
corner window

Create (N) opening
for (N) window

Remove (E)
Garage door

Porch (E) slab to remain &
to be extended.
Demolish post & roof
structure above Porch

Remove (E)
corner window

Demolish Deck  &
steps - Save
material for
relocated Deck

Replace (E)
window

Remove appliances
Washer/Dryer & Water
Heater

Remove (E) door

Replace (E)
window

Remove (E) door

Remove (E) door
& step

Remove (E) upper
& lower cabinet
to be relocated

Demolish
Exterior wall

Demolish
Interior wall

8
'-8

"

A10



LIVING AREA

BEDROOM 1 BEDROOM  2

Proposed First Floor- Floor Plan 1/4" = 1'-0"

CL

CL

BATHROOM

DINING AREA

KITCHEN

FAMILY ROOM

PORCH GARAGE

DN

DN

41'-1"

SK

3
6
'-1

1
"

1
3
'-0

"

13'-0" 3'-7" 11'-2"

1
3
'-0

"

A.A.6
'-1

1
"

1
5
'-2

"

28'-7"

1
1
'-2

"

11'-0"

2
0
'-9

"

1
5
'-2

"

2
1
'-0

"

3
8
'-3

"

UP

Date

Project No.

Sheet No.

Pr
op

os
ed

 F
irs

t &
 S

ec
on

d F
loo

r -
  F

loo
r P

lan
s

C 
 a 

 r 
 o 

 l  
e  

    
M 

  i 
  c

   a
   e

  l 
  i 

  a
   n

A 
r c

 h 
i t 

e c
 t e

 c 
t u

 r 
a l

  D
 e 

s i
 g 

n e
 r

cm
ica

eli
@

gm
ail

.co
m 

  -
   6

50
 . 7

40
 60

50

07/28/2024

2401

INDEX
Date Submittal

6

slope
3.75:12

SK

SK

slope
3.75:12

slope
2:12

SK SK

BEDROOM 3

BEDROOM 4

1
2
'-2

"

13'-6"
11'-0"

3'-6"4'-9"

slope
  3.75:12

1
2
'-2

"

13'-6"

1
2
'-1

"

D
N

CL

BATH 2

Proposed Second Floor- Floor Plan 1/4" = 1'-0"

14'-6"

DN

3
8
'-3

"

slope
  3.75:12

D
N

bu
ilt

-in
 lo

w
 c

ab
in

et
s

(N)raised roof
Built on top of (E)roof  structurure
metal roof

7
'-4

"

12'-0"

3'-3"

1
2 BATH

3
'-4

"
1
0
'-1

"

9
'-9

"

5
3
'-5

"

2
1
'-6

"

3'-6"

A
A

A
A

Tankless
W.H.

CL

W
/D

6
'-1

0
"

 F
ul

l
he

ig
ht

pa
nt

ry

Fu
ll 

he
ig

ht
ca

bi
ne

t

5
3
'-5

"

9
'-9

"
9
'-9

"

lo
w
er

 /u
pp

er
 c

ab
in

et
 +

co
un

te
rt

op

Li
ne

n
ca

bi
ne

t

closet

C
oa

t
cl

os
et

3'-10"

7'-2"

14'-6"

6
'-0

"

DECK

BB BB BB BB(N)window(R)window

(R
)w

in
do

w

(R)window (R)window

Wood Deck
Relocated

max. 21" above grade

8x8
post

4
'-1

0
"

2'-7" 8'-0" 8'-0"8'-0" 2'-6"

1
5
'-2

"
8
"

1
'-4

"

1
'-0

"

max. 15" above
grade

Project  For:
Burbridge Residence

351 Barton Place
Menlo Park
CA 94025

N

(R)window      Retrofit new window in an existing opening a window

(N)window      New window in new opening  in an existing wall

                   New wall

Use
Permit

2
0
'-0

"
M

in
. 
C
LR

1 10/14/2024

1

1
5
'-2

"

1

8
"

8
"

1

1

A11



Date

Project No.

Sheet No.

Pr
op

os
ed

 F
irs

t &
 S

ec
on

d F
loo

r -
  F

loo
r P

lan
Pr

op
os

ed
 E

lev
ati

on
s

C 
 a 

 r 
 o 

 l  
e  

    
M 

  i 
  c

   a
   e

  l 
  i 

  a
   n

A 
r c

 h 
i t 

e c
 t e

 c 
t u

 r 
a l

  D
 e 

s i
 g 

n e
 r

cm
ica

eli
@

gm
ail

.co
m 

  -
   6

50
 . 7

40
 60

50

07/28/2024

2401

INDEX
Date Submittal

7

Proposed South Elevation - Street Side 1/4" = 1'-0"

12
3.75

Proposed West Elevation - Left Side 1/4" = 1'-0"

45 45
PL

Daylight Plane
Two Story

1
9
'-6

"

PL

5'-5"5'-5"
Side setback
10% of
min. lot width

Side setback
10% of
min. lot width

2
8
'-0

"
M

ax
. 

H
ei

gh
t

45 45
PL PL

Daylight Plane
Two Story

1
9
'-6

"
Proposed East Elevation - Right Side 1/4" = 1'-0"

Proposed North Elevation - Rear Yard 1/4" = 1'-0"

8
'-0

"

8
'-3

" 8
'-4

"

FAMILY ROOM

GARAGE

Proposed Section AA 1/4" = 1'-0"

low wall

trellis

W/D

8
'-6

"

12
3.75

8
'-0

"

Proposed Section BB 1/4" = 1'-0"

FAMILY ROOM
BEDROOM 2MASTER  BEDROOM closet

9
'-4

5
8
"

8
'-0

"

2
0
'-3

5
8
"

2
1
'-1

1
"

2
1
'-1

1
"

8
'-0

"

8
'-4

"

6
'-1

0
"

6
'-1

0
"

6
'-1

0
"

6
'-1

0
"

71 2
"

8
'-0

"

BEDROOM 4

2
2
"

2
2
"

2
'-1

1 2
"

3
'-6

"

Project  For:
Burbridge Residence

351 Barton Place
Menlo Park
CA 94025

Board & Batten
Siding

Board & Batten
Siding

Board & Batten
Siding- replacing
(E)siding

(N)Composition Shingles
Replacing (E)Composition
roof

(N)Composition Shingles
Replacing (E)Composition
roof

(N)standing seam metal
roof

Board & Batten Siding

Composition shingles
roof

Composition shingles
roof

Composition shingles
roof

Board & Batten
Siding- replacing
(E)siding

Board & Batten
siding

attic

Trellis

Closet

BEDROOM 4BEDROOM 3 2
2
"

6
'-1

0
"

2
2
"

6
'-1

0
"

Opening to
Kitchen

Opening to Hallway

door to
Bath 2

2
2
"

Board & Batten Siding

Use
Permit

5'-5"
Side setback
10% of
min. lot width

5'-5"
Side setback
10% of
min. lot width

1
1

1 10/14/2024

8
'-0

"
1
'-0

"
8
'-4

"

1
'-1

0
"

1
'-1

0
"

1
4
'-6

"

1
'-1

0
"

1
'-1

0
"

1
'-0

"
9
'-4

"

2
1
'-1

1
"

8
'-0

"

1
'-0

"
8
'-4

"

5
'-0

"

1
'-1

0
"

1
'-1

0
"

3
'-7

"

3
'-1

0
"

1
'-1

0
"

2
'-2

"

4'-10" 1'-4"

A12



Existing Roof Plan 1/4" = 1'-0"

Date

Project No.

Sheet No.

Ex
ist

ing
 R

oo
f &

 P
ro

po
se

d R
oo

f

C 
 a 

 r 
 o 

 l  
e  

    
M 

  i 
  c

   a
   e

  l 
  i 

  a
   n

A 
r c

 h 
i t 

e c
 t e

 c 
t u

 r 
a l

  D
 e 

s i
 g 

n e
 r

cm
ica

eli
@

gm
ail

.co
m 

  -
   6

50
 . 7

40
 60

50

07/28/2024

2401

INDEX
Date Submittal

8

Proposed Roof Plan 1/4" = 1'-0"

slope
3.75:12

SK

slope
3.75:12

slope
3.75:12

slope
3.75:12

slope
2:12

slope
3.75:12

slope
3.75:12

SK

SK

slope
3.75:12

SK

slope
3.75:12

slope
3.75:12

Covered Deck
212 sf
to be demolished

SK

SK

Project  For:
Burbridge Residence

351 Barton Place
Menlo Park
CA 94025

N

3
6
'-1

1
"

12'-0"

3
8
'-3

"

7'-6"

Two Story Addition

One Story Addition

29'-1"

26'-7"

1
5
'-2

"

Ridge

R
id

ge

R
id

ge

(N)California roof - transition slope and material

14'-6"

4
'-1

0
"

3
1
'-5

"
1
1
'-8

"
(N)Built-up roof above existing roof structure
Standing seam metal roof

(N)Porch extended roof

3
6
'-1

1
"

29'-1"

29'-7"

13'-0"

12'-6"

slope
3.75:12

slope
3.75:12

5
'-4

"

Areas of Demolition

1
6
'-4

"
2
4
'-8

"

Ridge

R
id

ge

R
id

ge

Ridge

(E)Garage
320 sf
to be demolished

(E)Porch
40 sf
to be demolished

(E) roof composition
shingles

to be replaced
(N) roof composition

shingles
Two Story Structure

(N) roof composition
shingles

(N) roof composition
shingles

(N) Wood trellis

(N) roof composition
shingles

One Story Structure

Use
Permit

1 10/14/2024

1'-0"
Eave

1'-0"
Eave

1'-0"
Eave

1'-0"
Eave

1
'-0

"
Ea

ve
1
'-0

"
Ea

ve

A13



1
6
'-1

"

Date

Project No.

Sheet No.

Flo
or

 A
re

a D
iag

ra
ms

 F
irs

t &
 S

ec
on

d F
loo

rs
Ar

ea
 C

alc
ula

tio
ns

C 
 a 

 r 
 o 

 l  
e  

    
M 

  i 
  c

   a
   e

  l 
  i 

  a
   n

A 
r c

 h 
i t 

e c
 t e

 c 
t u

 r 
a l

  D
 e 

s i
 g 

n e
 r

cm
ica

eli
@

gm
ail

.co
m 

  -
   6

50
 . 7

40
 60

50

07/28/2024

2401

INDEX
Date Submittal

Project  For:
Burbridge Residence

351 Barton Place
Menlo Park
CA 94025

9

Use
Permit

N

36.9 x 29.6
1,092 sf

Existing House

29'-1"

3
6
'-1

1
"

A

31.40 X 11.50
361sf

B

3
1
'-5

"

11'-6"

15.8 x 12.00
190 sf

C1

2
2
'-0

"

12'-0"

R-45.00'27.00'

R-40.00'28.01'

66.77'

102.00'83.82'

AREA
Area A
Area B
Area C1
Area C2
Area D
-Area S
Area SK1
Area SK2
Area SK3

TOTAL PROPOSED SQUARE FOOTAGE:

Max. Allowed SQUARE FOOTAGE:

36'-11" X 29'-7"
31'-5" X 11'-6"
15'-10" X 12'-0"
6'-2" X 11'-6"
14'-6" X 38'-3"
8'-7" X 3'-6"
2'-10" X 3'-10"
1'-6" X 1'-6"
1'-6" X 1'-6"

DIMENSIONS SQUARE  FOOTAGE
1,092

361
190

70
554
-30
11
2
2

2,252

2,850

5
'-2

"

First Floor - Floor Area Diagram Second Floor - Floor Area Diagram

14.50 x 38.25
554 sf

D

3
8
'-3

"

14'-6"

R-45.00'27.00'

R-40.00'28.01'

66.77'

102.00'83.82'

No attic space with height >5'-0"

29'-7"

29.0x 5.16
150 sf

P

P

3'-6"

8
'-7

"

3.50 x 8.60
30 sf

(to deduct from second
floor area)

S

S

1
5
'-1

0
"

6
'-2

"

6.16 x 11.50
70 sf

C2

2
2
'-0

"

12'-0"

C2

70 +190=260 sf

(Proposed Garage)

524 sf

(Proposed Upper Floor)

D - S

S

11'-6"

C1

Chimney
1'-2" X 5'-2"

6 sf

Walls
8" X 2'-6"

3 sf

Walls
8" X 2'-6"

3 sf

AREA
Area W1
Area W2
Area Ch

TOTAL COVERED AREAS SQUARE FOOTAGE:
TOTAL FIRST FLOOR SQUARE FOOTAGE:
(Areas A + B + C1 + C2 + P- W1)

TOTAL PROPOSED COVERAGE

Max. Allowed COVERAGE:

0'-8" X 2'-6"
0'-8" X 2'-6"
1'-2" X 5'-2"

DIMENSIONS SQUARE  FOOTAGE
3
3
6

12
1,860

1,872

1,872

P

W1

W2

Ch

W1

150 sf - 3sf = 147 sf
(Proposed Porch)

1
2
'-0

"

(E)Skylight @
Kitchen
DIM: 36x42

(E)Skylight @
Bathroom
Dim: 22x22(E)Skylight @

Corridor
Dim:20x20

1'-6" 1'-6"

3'-10"

Skylight
1'-6" X 1'-6"

2 sf

Sk2

Skylight
1'-6" X 1'-6"

2 sf

Sk3
Skylight

3'-10" X 2'-10"
11 sf

Sk1

Section @ Skylight for Height Determination

SK1
SK2

SK3

1 10/14/2024

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

A14



Date

Project No.

Sheet No.

Ex
ist

ing
 F

loo
r A

re
a D

iag
ra

ms
Flo

or
 A

re
a C

alc
ula

tio
ns

C 
 a 

 r 
 o 

 l  
e  

    
M 

  i 
  c

   a
   e

  l 
  i 

  a
   n

A 
r c

 h 
i t 

e c
 t e

 c 
t u

 r 
a l

  D
 e 

s i
 g 

n e
 r

cm
ica

eli
@

gm
ail

.co
m 

  -
   6

50
 . 7

40
 60

50

07/28/2024

2401

INDEX
Date Submittal

Project  For:
Burbridge Residence

351 Barton Place
Menlo Park
CA 94025

9.1

Use
Permit

N

36.9 x 29.6

6'-0"

3
6
'-1

1
"

A

12.5 X 16.16
P2

1
6
'-2

"

12'-6"

8
'-8

"

13'-0"

R-45.00'27.00'

R-40.00'28.01'

66.77'

102.00'83.82'

AREA
Area A
Area B1
Area B2

TOTAL EXISTING SQUARE FOOTAGE:

Max. Allowed SQUARE FOOTAGE:

36'-11" X 29'-7"
12'-6" X 16'-0"
13'-0" X 8'-8"

DIMENSIONS SQUARE  FOOTAGE
1,092

200
113

1,405

2,850

5
'-2

"

Existing - Floor Area Diagram
No attic space with height >5'-0"

29'-7"

6.0x 5.16
31 sf

P1

P1

Chimney
1'-2" X 5'-2"

6 sf

Walls
8" X 2'-6"

3 sf

W1

Ch

2 11/18/2024

13 X 8.66
B2

1
6
'-0

"

12.5 X 16
B1

AREA
Area P1
Area P2
Area Ch

TOTAL COVERED AREAS SQUARE FOOTAGE:
TOTAL FIRST FLOOR SQUARE FOOTAGE:

TOTAL EXISTING COVERAGE

Max. Allowed COVERAGE:

6'-0" X 5'-2"
16'-2" X 12'-6"
1'-2" X 5'-2"

DIMENSIONS SQUARE  FOOTAGE
31

202
6

239
1,405

1,644

1,872

A15



Date

Project No.

Sheet No.

Co
lor

 &
 M

ate
ria

ls 
Bo

ar
d

C 
 a 

 r 
 o 

 l  
e  

    
M 

  i 
  c

   a
   e

  l 
  i 

  a
   n

A 
r c

 h 
i t 

e c
 t e

 c 
t u

 r 
a l

  D
 e 

s i
 g 

n e
 r

cm
ica

eli
@

gm
ail

.co
m 

  -
   6

50
 . 7

40
 60

50

07/28/2024

2401

INDEX
Date Submittal

Project  For:
Burbridge Residence

351 Barton Place
Menlo Park
CA 94025

10

Use
Permit

In
Progress

(E) & (N) Roof Finish - Composition Shingles - similar to Certainteed Landmark - Charcoal Black

(N) Porch Roof - Standing  Seam  Metal Roof - Grey

(E) & (N)  - Wall Siding - Board & Batten - White

(N)  - Sliding Windows or Hung Windows - Similar to Milgard Tuscany

(N)  - Sliding patio doors - Similar to Milgard Tuscany (Windows and Doors Frame color White interior and Black exterior

Grids on Sliding Windows White interior and Black Exterior

Black Garage Door with Windows (N) Porch Floor Finish Natural stone GreyColor Palette

A16



Date

Project No.

Sheet No.

Im
pe

rvi
ou

s C
alc

ula
tio

ns
 &

 W
or

ks
he

et

C 
 a 

 r 
 o 

 l  
e  

    
M 

  i 
  c

   a
   e

  l 
  i 

  a
   n

A 
r c

 h 
i t 

e c
 t e

 c 
t u

 r 
a l

  D
 e 

s i
 g 

n e
 r

cm
ica

eli
@

gm
ail

.co
m 

  -
   6

50
 . 7

40
 60

50

07/28/2024

2401

INDEX
Date Submittal

Project  For:
Burbridge Residence

351 Barton Place
Menlo Park
CA 94025

11

R-45.00'27.00'

66.77'

102.00'83.82'

5,350

R-45.00'27.00'

R-40.00'
28.01'

66.77'

102.00'83.82'

R-40.00'
28.01'

1,722 sf

Permeable
Pavers

Driveway

Pervious
Wood Deck

Replaced w. (N)Pervious

87 sf (E)Pervious

Compacted sand

Alley- pathway

Paved impervious
Walkway 133sf

N

Permeable
Pavers

Driveway

2,050 sf

Compacted sand

Alley- pathway

Concrete

Steps and landing 22 sf

1,877

3,473

35%

Replaced w. (N)Impervious

573sf (E)Impervious

Replaced w. (N)Impervious

80sf (E)Pervious

Replaced w. (N)Impervious

100sf (E)Pervious

Replaced w. (N)Impervious
46sf (E)Impervious

619

328

0

Replaced w. (N)Impervious

148sf (E)Pervious

947

328

3,145

2,205

41%

Concrete

Steps and landing 22 sf

Existing Proposed

Use
Permit

A17



A18



A19



C a r o l e M i c a e l i a n - A r c h i t e c t u r a l D e s i g n e r - M e n l o P a r k
c m i c a e l i @ g m a i l . c o m - 6 5 0 7 4 0 6 0 5 0

City of Menlo Park August,1st 2024

Planning Department

701 Laurel Street

Menlo Park, CA 94025

Re: Krista and Mark Burbridge

351 Barton Place

Menlo Park, CA 94025

Zoning: R1-U

APN: 062342140

Project Scope of Work:

The proposed project is to demolish the existing Garage, (encroaching on the side setback), demolish the

Side Covered deck and Front Porch, and preserve the entire single-story living space of the existing house

(2br. 1 bath).

Build a new one car Garage, with an addition on the first and second floors. The proposed house will

have 4 bedrooms, 2.5 baths, a Family Room, a laundry area, more storage, and an extended welcoming

front Porch.

The Architectural Style: Modern Farmhouse

Roof Material: Composition roof with Standing Seam Metal on Porch

Exterior Siding: Board and Batten Siding (Hardiplank or Vinyl)

Construction Methods: Concrete slab for Garage and Porch, Raised floor foundation for

living spaces. Conventional wood framing.

Exterior Paint Color: White

Exterior Roof Color: Black and Grey

Doors and Windows: Exterior Black/Interior White

Due to the unusual lot shape and the location of the existing house, the site allows for only one covered
parking and is exempt from the second parking space requirement.

The basis for the site layout and location of the proposed addition is to correct the side setback of the
Garage and build a two-story addition with a minimal impact on the neighbors' privacy while preserving
the character of the existing house and improving the use of the space.
The home requires a Use Permit because of the substandard depth of the lot and because it is a
two-story addition.
Thank you for your consideration and for reviewing this project.
Regards,
Carole Micaelian

EXHIBIT B

A20



A21



Summary of the Neighborhood Outreach

Single Family Design Review for 351 Barton Place.

On June 30th, 2024, we delivered Packets to the neighbors (9) with addresses located on the court: 329,

331, 335, 339, 343, 347 & 355 Barton Place, and the two neighbors 499 and 501 Gilbert Avenue sharing

the rear fence. The name and address list are on the Feedback Spreadsheet.

The Packet contained a letter with a description of the project, and an invitation to attend an open

house, on-site to review the full-scale plans and have a chance to comment on the project, and

reduced-size plans of the existing and proposed.

The open house was held on July 28th, 2024 in front of the house, from 1 to 2 pm:

All the neighbors listed above visited us during the Open House to review the blueprints and discuss the

project with our architect, except:

- 329 Gilbert, who did not attend but gave positive feedback ahead of time, via email.

- 501 Gilbert, left Packet in the hands of the renters living at this location and emailed the owner a copy

of the Packet, but did not receive a response.

Overall, we received positive feedback from our neighbors for the proposed project, (Refer to the

Feedback Spreadsheet with comments collected at the meeting) except for Rob and Wendy Trice @ 355

Barton Place. They had concerns about the windows on the staircase facing their hallway at the first floor

and reducing their privacy as they use the side yard as their backyard.

Rob Trice: (355 Barton Place) followed up with an email explaining his viewpoints and concerns on the

project.

Date: 08/01/2024

Carole Micaelian responded to the email with actions that will be taken to accommodate Rob Trice’s

concerns. Date: 08/06/2024

Attached documents:

A copy of the Packet with letter to the neighbors

The spreadsheet with the neighbor’s communication

A copy of the email exchange with Rob Trice

08/01/2024

Krista and Mark Burbridge

A22



July 15, 2024

To the Neighbors of

Krista and Mark Burbridge

351 Barton Place

Menlo Park, CA94025

RE: Home remodel and addition at 350 Barton Place, Menlo Park

Dear Neighbor:

We are writing to let you know that we are planning to remodel and build an addition to our house

located at 351 Barton Place.

The project will include extending the existing front porch and building a new Garage to correct setbacks,

with an addition on the first and second floors.

We are in the process of preparing the Planning Application Submittal to the City of Menlo Park, but we

would also like our neighbors to be aware of our plans for our dream home. You can see the proposed

Design Development Drawings dated 07/14/2024 included in this letter. If you would like more details

and additional information, then please join us at an onsite meeting (351 Barton Place) on Sunday, July

28th between 1 and 2 pm

During the in-person meeting, you will be able to view our blueprint drawings and have a chance to

submit your input on our project. You are welcome to contact us remotely by sending an email to

markburbridge@gmail.com

We are happy to answer any questions you may have.

Sincerely,

Krista & Mark Burbridge

A23



Pr
op

os
ed

 S
ide

 - 
W

es
t  E

lev
ati

on

Proposed Street - South Elevation
Proposed Rear - North Elevation

351 Barton Place

Proposed Side - East Elevation

Project  for  Burbridge Residence - First & Second Floor Additions - - - 351 Barton Place - Menlo Park - CA 94025

N

A24



R-45.00'27.00'

R-40.00'
28.01'

APN:

Zoned:

Type of Construction:

Existing # of Stories for all structures:

Occupancies (house and garage)

Total Site Area:

(E) Floor Area

(E) Attached Garage  & Laundry Area

(E) Floor Area Total

FAL

Max. 2nd story 50% FAL

Max. Building Coverage Allowed 40%

Two Story Max. Coverage Allowed 35%

(E) Covered Entry Porch =40 sf

(E) Covered Deck =212 sf

(E) Total Coverage

Max allowable building height = 28'-0"

One & Two Story Daylight Plane -  M.P. zoning 16.67.020

Front Setback = 20'-0"

Rear Setback = 20'-0"

Side Setback = 5'-5" (Calculated 10% of Minimum Width)

M.P.Zoning 16.04.430

Per GIS map- Not in Flood Zone Area

Required Two Parking Stalls (9'x18') not in Tandem:

Min. one covered parking  & one uncovered parking stall complying with the

front or side setbacks.

Project Data
062342140

R-1-U

V-B

1

R-3/U

5,350 sf

1,092 sf

320 sf

1,412sf

2,800 sf

1,400 sf

2,140sf

1,875sf

1,664sf

2
0
'-
0
"

R
e
a
r

S
e
t
b
a
c
k

slope

3.75:12

54'-6" min. Width 10% = 5'-5"

SK

slope

3.75:12

slope

3.75:12

Covered

Deck

(212sf)

5'-5"

Side

Setback

Parking Stall

Uncovered

9ftx18ft

5'-5"

Side

Setback2
0
'-
0
"

F
r
o
n
t
 S

e
t
b
a
c
k

5'-5"

Side

Setback

Existing Site Plan

N

2
0
'-
0
"

Date

Project No.

Sheet No.

Pr
oje

ct 
Da

ta
Ex

ist
ing

 S
ite

 P
lan

/ R
oo

f P
lan

C 
 a 

 r 
 o 

 l  
e  

    
M 

  i 
  c

   a
   e

  l 
  i 

  a
   n

A 
r c

 h 
i t 

e c
 t e

 c 
t u

 r 
a l

  D
 e 

s i
 g 

n e
 r

cm
ica

eli
@

gm
ail

.co
m 

  -
   6

50
 . 7

40
 60

50

07/14/2024

2401

INDEX
Date Submittal

Project  For:
Burbridge Residence

351 Barton Place
Menlo Park
CA94025

1

66.77'

102.00'83.82'

SK

SK

Porch Area to be demolished

Garage to be demolished

and replaced

Porch Area to

be demolished

and replaced

Areas of Demolition

Design
Development

Drawings

10'-10"

A25

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text



R-45.00'27.00'

R-40.00'
28.01'

APN:

Zoned:

Type of Construction:

Existing # of Stories for all structures:

Occupancies (house and garage)

Total Site Area:

(E) Floor Area

(E) Attached Garage  & Laundry Area

(E) Floor Area Total

(E) Floor Area

Proposed First Floor Addition

Proposed Garage

Proposed Second Floor Addition

(N) Floor Area Total

FAL

Max. 2nd story 50% FAL

Max. Building Coverage Allowed 40%

Two Story Max. Coverage Allowed 35%

(E) Covered Entry Porch

(E) Covered Deck

(E) Total Coverage

Proposed Entry Porch

Proposed Total Coverage

Max allowable building height = 28'-0"

One & Two Story Daylight Plane -  M.P. zoning 16.67.020

Front Setback = 20'-0"

Rear Setback = 20'-0"

Side Setback = 5'-5" (Calculated 10% of Minimum Width)

M.P.Zoning 16.04.430

Per GIS map- Not in Flood Zone Area

Required Two Parking Stalls (9'x18') not in Tandem:

Min. one covered parking  & one uncovered parking stall complying with the

front or side setbacks.

Project Data
062342140

R-1-U

V-B

1

R-3/U

5,350 sf

1,092 sf

320 sf

1,412 sf

1,092 sf

370 sf

255 sf

519 sf

2,236 sf

2,800 sf

1,400 sf

2,140sf

1,875sf

40sf

212sf

1,664sf

133sf

1,850 sf

2
0
'-
0
"

R
e
a
r

S
e
t
b
a
c
k

slope

3.75:12

54'-6" min. Width 10% = 5'-5"

SK

slope

3.75:12

slope

3.75:12

5'-5"

Side

Setback

5'-5"

Side

Setback

2
0
'-
0
"

F
r
o
n
t
 S

e
t
b
a
c
k

5'-5"

Side

Setback

Proposed Site Plan

N

2
0
'-
0
"

Date

Project No.

Sheet No.

Pr
oje

ct 
Da

ta
Pr

op
os

ed
 S

ite
 P

lan
/ R

oo
f P

lan

C 
 a 

 r 
 o 

 l  
e  

    
M 

  i 
  c

   a
   e

  l 
  i 

  a
   n

A 
r c

 h 
i t 

e c
 t e

 c 
t u

 r 
a l

  D
 e 

s i
 g 

n e
 r

cm
ica

eli
@

gm
ail

.co
m 

  -
   6

50
 . 7

40
 60

50

07/14/2024

2401

INDEX
Date Submittal

Project  For:
Burbridge Residence

351 Barton Place
Menlo Park
CA94025

Design
Development

Drawings

2
1
5
'-
2
"

1
s
t
 f
lo

o
r
 a

d
d
it
io

n

1
'-
0
"

66.77'

102.00'83.82'

slope

3.75:12

slope

2:12
slope

3.75:12

slope

3.75:12

14'-6"

2nd floor addition

3
8
'-
3
"

2
n
d
 f
lo

o
r
 a

d
d
it
io

n

SK

SK

12'-0"

1st floor addition

4
'-
9
"

29'-7"

Second Floor Addition

14.5 x 38.25 - stair (3.5x13) =

519 sf

 (N)Garage

15.1666 x 12 +6.333 x 11.5

= 255 sf

Proposed Porch

4.75 x 28 = 133 sf

First Floor Addition

32 x 11.5 = 368 sf + 2 sf =

370 sf

Second Floor Addition

First Floor Addition

5
3
'-
5
"

1
s
t
 f
lo

o
r
 a

d
d
it
io

n

(N)Deck

1
5
'-
1
1
"

4
'-
0
"

 Barton Place

16'-2"

Driveway

A26

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text



Date

Project No.

Sheet No.

Ex
ist

ing
 F

loo
r P

lan
Ex

ist
ing

 E
lev

ati
on

s

C 
 a 

 r 
 o 

 l  
e  

    
M 

  i 
  c

   a
   e

  l 
  i 

  a
   n

A 
r c

 h 
i t 

e c
 t e

 c 
t u

 r 
a l

  D
 e 

s i
 g 

n e
 r

cm
ica

eli
@

gm
ail

.co
m 

  -
   6

50
 . 7

40
 60

50

05/14/2024

2401

INDEX
Date Submittal

Project  For:
Burbridge Residence

351 Barton Place
Menlo Park
CA94025

3

LIVING AREA

BEDROOM 1 BEDROOM  2

Existing South Elevation

12

3.75

Existing Floor Plan Existing West Elevation

12

3.75

1
5

'-
1

1
"

CL

CL

BATHROOM

DINING AREA

KITCHEN

DECK

PORCH
GARAGE

LAUNDRY AREA

DN

W.H.

DN

DN

DN

DW

29'-7"

SK

SK

16'-2"

3
6

'-
1

1
"

1
3

'-
0

"

13'-0" 3'-7" 11'-2"

1
3

'-
0

"

A.A.

A.A.     Attic Access

SK.     Skylight

W.H.    Water Heater

W  Washer

D Dryer

DN    Step Down

6
'-
1

1
"

1
5

'-
2

"

28'-7"

2
4

'-
8

"
1

6
'-
2

"

12'-0"

1
6

'-
2

"
7

'-
6

"

45

45

45

45

PL PL

Daylight Plane

Two Story

Daylight Plane

One Story

1
2

'-
6

"

1
9

'-
6

"

45

45

45

PL

Daylight Plane

Two Story

Daylight Plane

One Story

1
2

'-
6

"

1
9

'-
6

"

45

PL

Existing East Elevation

Existing North Elevation

1
5

'-
1

1
"

8
'-
0

"

8
'-
0

"

1
5

'-
1

1
"

1
2

'-
2

"

5'-5"5'-5"

Side setback

10% of

min. lot width

Side setback

10% of

min. lot width

2
8

'-
0

"

M
a
x
. 
H
e
ig

h
t

2
8

'-
0

"

M
a
x
. 
H
e
ig

h
t

SK

Design
Development

Drawings

A27

http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text



LIVING AREA

BEDROOM 1 BEDROOM  2

Proposed First Floor- Floor Plan 1/4" = 1'-0"

CL

CL

BATHROOM

DINING AREA

KITCHEN

FAMILY ROOM

PORCH GARAGE

DN

DN

41'-1"

SK

3
6

'-
1

1
"

1
3

'-
0

"

13'-0" 3'-7" 11'-2"

1
3

'-
0

"

A.A.

6
'-
1

1
"

1
5

'-
2

"

28'-7"

1
1

'-
2

"

11'-0"

2
0

'-
9

"

1
5

'-
2

"

2
1

'-
0

"

3
8

'-
3

"

UP

Date

Project No.

Sheet No.

Pr
op

os
ed

 F
irs

t &
 S

ec
on

d F
loo

r -
  F

loo
r P

lan
Pr

op
os

ed
 E

lev
ati

on
s

C 
 a 

 r 
 o 

 l  
e  

    
M 

  i 
  c

   a
   e

  l 
  i 

  a
   n

A 
r c

 h 
i t 

e c
 t e

 c 
t u

 r 
a l

  D
 e 

s i
 g 

n e
 r

cm
ica

eli
@

gm
ail

.co
m 

  -
   6

50
 . 7

40
 60

50

07/06/2024

2401

INDEX
Date Submittal

Project  For:
Burbridge Residence

351 Barton Place
Menlo Park
CA94025

4

slope

3.75:12

SK

SK

slope

3.75:12

slope

2:12

SK
SK

BEDROOM 3

BEDROOM 4

1
2

'-
2

"

13'-6"
11'-0"

3'-6"4'-9"

slope

  3.75:12

1
2

'-
2

"

13'-6"

1
2

'-
1

"

D
N

CL

BATH 2

Proposed Second Floor- Floor Plan 1/4" = 1'-0"

14'-6"

DN

3
8

'-
3

"

slope

  3.75:12

D
N

b
u
il
t
-
in

 l
o
w
 c

a
b
in

e
t
s

(N)raised roof

Built on top of (E)roof  structurure

metal roof

7
'-
4

"

12'-0"

3'-3"

1
2 BATH

3
'-
4

"
1

0
'-
1

"

9
'-
9

"

5
3

'-
5

"

2
1

'-
6

"

Design
Development

Drawings

3'-6"

A
A

A
A

Tankless

W.H.

CL

W
/D

6
'-
1

0
"

 F
u
ll

h
e
ig

h
t

p
a
n
t
r
y

F
u
ll
 h

e
ig

h
t

c
a
b
in

e
t

5
3

'-
5

"

9
'-
9

"
9

'-
9

"

lo
w
e
r
 /
u
p
p
e
r
 c

a
b
in

e
t
 +

c
o
u
n
t
e
r
t
o
p

L
in

e
n

c
a
b
in

e
t

closet

C
o
a
t

c
lo

s
e
t

3'-10"

7'-2"

14'-6"

1
5

'-
1

1
"

DECK

BB BB BB BB

A28

http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
http://www.autodsys.com
AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text



Date

Project No.

Sheet No.

Pr
op

os
ed

 F
irs

t &
 S

ec
on

d F
loo

r -
  F

loo
r P

lan
Pr

op
os

ed
 E

lev
ati

on
s

C 
 a 

 r 
 o 

 l  
e  

    
M 

  i 
  c

   a
   e

  l 
  i 

  a
   n

A 
r c

 h 
i t 

e c
 t e

 c 
t u

 r 
a l

  D
 e 

s i
 g 

n e
 r

cm
ica

eli
@

gm
ail

.co
m 

  -
   6

50
 . 7

40
 60

50

07/14/2024

2401

INDEX
Date Submittal

Project  For:
Burbridge Residence

351 Barton Place
Menlo Park
CA94025

5

Proposed South Elevation 1/4" = 1'-0"

12

3.75

Proposed West Elevation 1/4" = 1'-0"

45

45

45

PL

Daylight Plane

Two Story

Daylight Plane

One Story

1
2

'-
6

"

1
9

'-
6

"

45

PL

5'-5"5'-5"

Side setback

10% of

min. lot width

Side setback

10% of

min. lot width

2
8

'-
0

"

M
a
x
. 
H
e
ig

h
t

45 45

45

PL PL

Daylight Plane

Two Story

Daylight Plane

One Story

1
2

'-
6

"

1
9

'-
6

"

Proposed East Elevation 1/4" = 1'-0"

Proposed North Elevation 1/4" = 1'-0"

1
5

'-
1

1
"

8
'-
0

"

8
'-
3

"

6
'-
8

"

8
'-
6

"

FAMILY ROOMGARAGE

Proposed Section AA 1/4" = 1'-0"

low wall

trellis

W/D

8
'-
6

"

12

3.75

8
'-
0

"

Proposed Section BB 1/4" = 1'-0"

FAMILY ROOM
BEDROOM 2MASTER  BEDROOM closet

9
'-
6

"
8

'-
0

"

2
0

'-
5

"

2
0

'-
5

"

2
0

'-
5

"

8
'-
0

"

8
'-
6

"

6
'-
1

0
"

6
'-
1

0
"

6
'-
1

0
"

6
'-
1

0
"

7
5

8
"

8
'-
0

"

Design
Development

Drawings

A29

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text

AutoCAD SHX Text



A30



From: Carole Micaelian cmicaeli@gmail.com
Subject: Re: Feedback on house plans

Date: August 6, 2024 at 1:05 PM
To: Rob Trice robtrice3@gmail.com
Cc: kristaburbridge@gmail.com, markburbridge@gmail.com, wendy millet wendymt@gmail.com

Hi Rob and Wendy,

Thank you for attending the open house meeting last Sunday and for sharing your feedback on the project.

We are committed to considering neighborhood input carefully. I have addressed a few points from your email below, with my comments
highlighted in blue for clarity.

I hope the proposed actions will address your concerns. If you have any further questions, please feel free to reach out.

Best regards,

Carole
650 7406050

Carole, Krista & Mark:

Thank you for organizing the get together on Sunday and the opportunity to discuss your plans to expand the house. Wendy and I
recognize those are tight quarters for you and can certainly see why you would want to expand the house so we want to help you make this
happen. Obviously, the plans that you have drawn up impact us more than other neighbors and so we hope that you will take our concerns
into consideration.

Carole, we appreciate you for explaining the plans and how they overlay against our house and thank you so that the upper story windows
won’t look directly into the bathrooms. I will also say that seeing that the second story will start from the original house foundation (as
opposed from the front of the extended garage) gives us relief that the amount of afternoon/evening sunlight loss will be minimal to us.

As we mentioned our primary remaining concerns are about the loss of privacy and light pollution. And to be clear our concerns have
nothing to do with you as neighbors as we have no issues with you or any habits you have. (As opposed to the kid who used to live behind
you or Jay and Janet who played the drums ;-)). It is more about minimizing the amount of privacy loss and light pollution compared with
what we have enjoyed for the last twenty years plus in the house. While we don’t spend as much time in the house as we used to, the back
patio has been a very special element of the house that we both have enjoyed— along with friends and guests— quite a bit over the years. 
You mentioned your "back patio," but it is actually situated in your side yard. Typically, side yards with side setbacks are considered less
private compared to backyards with rear setbacks, which generally have a minimum of 20 feet on each side. Fortunately, the mature trees
and shrubs you have provide effective screening and privacy, helping to accommodate the layout of your house.
From a privacy perspective, the second story windows and the middle two of the four staircase windows you have in your current design
may look down on our first floor hallway, bedroom/office and the back bathroom.
The proposed windows are situated 34 to 40 feet away from your first-floor windows. This distance significantly reduces the visual impact,
making it quite difficult to see through the glass.
As we explained, even the addition of the raised back patio has caused us to have to be more careful about conversations we have in our
backyard the last few years. We usually check to see if someone is on the porch or if the door is open so we can assess whether we can
speak freely or not. If you have open windows five and a half feet from our fence, we won’t have any way to check whether someone is able
to listen or not.
I understand that the current "raised patio" is an open space adjacent to the shared fence, which likely reduces your privacy in the side
yard. In the proposed plan, we will enclose that space, which in my view, should improve your privacy. 
With the addition of the side setback, and the walls, you and your neighbor will no longer hear conversations from both directions even
through open windows. 
Additionally, the overhang above your patio helps prevent sound from traveling vertically to the second floor across your property.
From a light pollution perspective, I believe you are adding seven new windows that will cast light from five and a half feet away into our
backyard, onto our exposed first story and the second story master bathroom. The long first story hallway window is from the house when it
was built 73 years ago and we have kept it intact as you can look the window out from the bedroom and office/bedroom onto the backyard
to get nice light and greenery. The roof over our patio should block out the ability to see our hallway (and into the office/bedroom) from your
second story but the second and/or third stairway windows probably will look directly in. 

All this is to say we would hope you would consider just two things:

1. Minimizing the four staircase windows— particularly the second and third windows We recognize you want air circulation but could you
achieve that with just a top and bottom window for instance? 
Krista and Mark feel strongly about the design and window locations, as I mentioned at the meeting, this design is already a shrinked
version of what they invesioned originally along their staircase. They also plan to install blinds on their windows to mitigate the issue of "light
pollution."
2. Planting privacy plants to supplement the trees we have on our side of the fence, perhaps something like vertical like Italian cypress
trees that won’t take much of your walkway space? 
Krista and Mark are willing to plant screening shrubs to help with your privacy. The arborist working on this project will recommend suitable
evergreen shrubs that can thrive in this area of the yard and provide effective screening along the staircase windows.
Also, as a reminder, please let us know what you would like to do about the leaning fence. If your contractor would like to take it down to
have a bit more room to work, we’re fine with that. If not, let’s work together to get it fixed before the storms come.

Thanks again for your consideration. If you would like to discuss further please feel free to give me a call or we can arrange a time to meet. I
am, however, headed out of town on Saturday for about ten days.

On Thu, Aug 1, 2024 at 11:44 AM Rob Trice <robtrice3@gmail.com> wrote:
Carole, Krista & Mark:

Thank you for organizing the get together on Sunday and the opportunity to discuss your plans to expand the house. Wendy and I
recognize those are tight quarters for you and can certainly see why you would want to expand the house so we want to help you make
this happen. Obviously, the plans that you have drawn up impact us more than other neighbors and so we hope that you will take our

A31

mailto:Micaeliancmicaeli@gmail.com
mailto:Micaeliancmicaeli@gmail.com
mailto:Tricerobtrice3@gmail.com
mailto:Tricerobtrice3@gmail.com
mailto:kristaburbridge@gmail.com
mailto:markburbridge@gmail.com
mailto:milletwendymt@gmail.com
mailto:milletwendymt@gmail.com
https://www.plantclearance.com/italian-cypress-24-box/?gad_source=1&gclid=CjwKCAjw5Ky1BhAgEiwA5jGujreRFDCYLXfDMXURcU2MBYMU3Ln0CfaL8_KDU9Zl_ZY1tPHUAkPNgBoCaVUQAvD_BwE
mailto:robtrice3@gmail.com


this happen. Obviously, the plans that you have drawn up impact us more than other neighbors and so we hope that you will take our
concerns into consideration.

Carole, we appreciate you for explaining the plans and how they overlay against our house and thank you so that the upper story
windows won’t look directly into the bathrooms. I will also say that seeing that the second story will start from the original house
foundation (as opposed from the front of the extended garage) gives us relief that the amount of afternoon/evening sunlight loss will be
minimal to us.

As we mentioned our primary remaining concerns are about the loss of privacy and light pollution. And to be clear our concerns have
nothing to do with you as neighbors as we have no issues with you or any habits you have. (As opposed to the kid who used to live
behind you or Jay and Janet who played the drums ;-)). It is more about minimizing the amount of privacy loss and light pollution
compared with what we have enjoyed for the last twenty years plus in the house. While we don’t spend as much time in the house as we
used to, the back patio has been a very special element of the house that we both have enjoyed— along with friends and guests— quite
a bit over the years. 

From a privacy perspective, the second story windows and the middle two of the four staircase windows you have in your current design
may look down on our first floor hallway, bedroom/office and the back bathroom. As we explained, even the addition of the raised back
patio has caused us to have to be more careful about conversations we have in our backyard the last few years. We usually check to see
if someone is on the porch or if the door is open so we can assess whether we can speak freely or not. If you have open windows five
and a half feet from our fence, we won’t have any way to check whether someone is able to listen or not.

From a light pollution perspective, I believe you are adding seven new windows that will cast light from five and a half feet away into our
backyard, onto our exposed first story and the second story master bathroom. The long first story hallway window is from the house when
it was built 73 years ago and we have kept it intact as you can look the window out from the bedroom and office/bedroom onto the
backyard to get nice light and greenery. The roof over our patio should block out the ability to see our hallway (and into the
office/bedroom) from your second story but the second and/or third stairway windows probably will look directly in. 

All this is to say we would hope you would consider just two things:

1. Minimizing the four staircase windows— particularly the second and third windows We recognize you want air circulation but could you
achieve that with just a top and bottom window for instance? 

2. Planting privacy plants to supplement the trees we have on our side of the fence, perhaps something like vertical like Italian cypress
trees that won’t take much of your walkway space? 

Also, as a reminder, please let us know what you would like to do about the leaning fence. If your contractor would like to take it down to
have a bit more room to work, we’re fine with that. If not, let’s work together to get it fixed before the storms come.

Thanks again for your consideration. If you would like to discuss further please feel free to give me a call or we can arrange a time to
meet. I am, however, headed out of town on Saturday for about ten days.

Regards,

Rob (and Wendy!)     

Rob Trice
m: +1 (650) 580 3869
robtrice3@gmail.com

A32

https://www.plantclearance.com/italian-cypress-24-box/?gad_source=1&gclid=CjwKCAjw5Ky1BhAgEiwA5jGujreRFDCYLXfDMXURcU2MBYMU3Ln0CfaL8_KDU9Zl_ZY1tPHUAkPNgBoCaVUQAvD_BwE
mailto:robtrice3@gmail.com


Proposed addition at 351 Barton Place, Menlo Park August 8, 2024 
0044-001 Page 1 

Michelia Arboriculture, LLC | 2320 Hoytt Ct, Pinole, CA 94564 | 925-515-1362 | jennifer@micheliarborist.com 

August 8, 2024 

Mark Burbridge 
351 Barton Place 
Menlo Park, CA 
(650) 353-8484 |  markburbridge@gmail.com

Dear Mark, 

This arborist report addresses your proposed addition project at 351 Barton Place, Menlo Park.  
I referenced the following for this project:  

• Topographic survey by Lea & Craze Engineering, Inc. (dated December 3, 2023)
• Site plan set by Carole Micaelian (dated July 28, 2024)
• Documents or codes from the City of Menlo Park

o Heritage Trees Ordinance (Chapter 13.24)
o Street Trees Ordinance (Chapter 13.20)
o Heritage Tree Ordinance Administrative Guidelines (companion document to the

Ordinance)
o Heritage Tree Removal Permit Application
o 2022 Arborist Report Requirements Large Projects (email clarification on

January 30, 2024)
• Site visit on July 8, 2024

Site & Project Summary 
 Your property is on the east side of Menlo Park in a small residential cul-de-sac. The lot totals 
5,350 sq. ft., with a one-story single-family home. The house covers 1,092 sq. ft. while its one-
car garage covers an additional 320 sq. ft. The garage was built such that it extends into the 
current side setback, and the area east of the garage has been paved with concrete. Behind the 
garage, a covered deck extends almost to the back of the house. Decomposed granite 
pathways circle the back yard, connecting to flagstone paths in the front yard.  

The proposed project will demolish the garage, deck, and front porch. The new garage will be 
constructed in a similar footprint while respecting the side setback. The porch will extend further 
into the front yard.  In place of the deck, a two-story addition will be constructed to expand the 
living areas. The materials of the existing deck will be reused to construct a smaller deck 
extending off the back of the addition. Lastly, the existing driveway will be widened so that cars 
can park side by side.  
I reviewed ten trees for this report, consisting of:  

• Two Heritage off-site London planetrees to the east,
• One recently planted Chinese elm street tree at the front, and
• Seven non-Heritage trees (including two African fern pines, three pittosporums, and an

off-site camellia and birch)

The three pittosporums are in the landscape area east of the driveway, which will be paved as 
part of the driveway extension (Figure 1). They are the only trees that will be removed for the 
project. The two Heritage London planetrees (Platanus x hispanica) are the largest trees near 
the proposed work area. Besides the camellia, they are also the closest trees to the proposed 
addition. Although the species has a high tolerance to root pruning, the health of these two trees 
has been affected by fungal leaf diseases. Construction must proceed with caution, using a mix 

EXHIBIT C

A33

mailto:markburbridge@gmail.com


Proposed addition at 351 Barton Place, Menlo Park  August 8, 2024 
0044-001 Page 2 

 

Michelia Arboriculture, LLC | 2320 Hoytt Ct, Pinole, CA 94564 | 925-515-1362 | jennifer@micheliarborist.com 

of trunk & root protection 
measures, supplemental 
irrigation, and excavation by 
hand. Construction impact to the 
other trees is limited in 
comparison.  
 
Assuming that the tree protection 
recommendations are followed, 
the project will have a low to 
moderate impact on the heritage 
trees, and a low impact on the 
remaining trees that will be 
preserved.  
 
Limitations 
This report is based on the plans 
that were provided and assumes 
that the tree locations are 
accurately surveyed. Trees #186 
& 190 were not surveyed at the 
time of my site visit; I 
approximately located them on 
my tree protection plan. Their 
precise locations do not affect the 
recommendations in this report.  I 
did not review other plans such as 
grading, utility, or drainage plans.  
If the City requires additional 
details that further impact trees, 
this report may need to be 
revised.  
 
The tree assessment provided by 
this report represents a snapshot in time of the trees’ conditions. It is not possible for arborists to 
predict long-term tree condition. Changes in weather/climate or environmental alterations can 
present unexpected impacts on the health and stability of trees (e.g. storm events, severe 
drought or heat, landscaping, repairs, irrigation reduction, other changes especially on adjacent 
properties).  Because of these reasons, it is also not possible for arborists to guarantee that 
trees will not fail. To live with trees means to accept a certain level of risk, which can only be 
fully eliminated by removing the trees.  
 
  

Figure 1. The hedge at the lower right is made up of three non-heritage 
trees (#181-183) and will be removed to expand the driveway. The 
neighbor’s London planetrees (#184, 185) at the center are the only 
Heritage trees nearby.   

A34



Proposed addition at 351 Barton Place, Menlo Park  August 8, 2024 
0044-001 Page 3 

 

Michelia Arboriculture, LLC | 2320 Hoytt Ct, Pinole, CA 94564 | 925-515-1362 | jennifer@micheliarborist.com 

Tree Inventory Table 
The tree inventory table includes individual tree data as required by the City of Menlo Park. The 
data is explained as follows:  
 

ID # # assigned to each tree, correlating with a metal tag affixed to their trunks. Off-site trees 
were not physically tagged if their trunks were not accessible from the property. 

Species Common & botanical name  

DBH Diameter at Breast Height (4.5’ above ground) in inches; measured with a diameter 
tape visually estimated where trunk was inaccessible 

Status Denotes whether the tree is a Street/City tree, Heritage Tree, or off-site tree 

Height Height, visually estimated or measured with a TruPulse 200L Rangefinder 

Health Health and vigor of the tree. Ratings are broken down into:  
• Good: The tree is growing well with vigor appropriate for its age – canopy is full 

with good color. Pest or disease issues may be present but have low impact on 
the tree.  

• Fair: The tree is showing signs of stress, exhibited as sparseness of canopy, 
change in foliage color, and minor-moderate signs of pest or disease issues. It 
can recover as long as conditions naturally improve. 

• Poor: The tree is stressed with tip dieback; it is unable to overcome pest & 
disease issues. Immediate long-term intervention and care is needed to avoid 
decline to the point of non-recovery.  

• Very Poor: The tree has significant issues and has declined so far that it is 
unlikely to recover. 

• Dead: No life remains in the tree.  

Structure Architecture & defects of the tree. Ratings are broken down into:  
• Good: The tree has ideal trunk & branch architecture.  
• Fair: Branch defects, poor attachments and decay may be present, but they 

can be mitigated with 1-2 pruning cycles (over 3-5 years). 
• Poor: Defects cannot be mitigated without long term management (10+ years); 

support systems like cabling and bolting may be needed in conjunction with 
pruning to reduce risk to the property.  

• Very Poor: The tree has significant issues that cannot be corrected and may be 
a hazard to the property.  

Dripline  The canopy (“dripline”) radius is visually estimated in feet in each cardinal direction 
(north, east, south, west).  

Appraised 
Value 

An estimate of the value of each Heritage tree is obtained using the Trunk Formula 
Technique outlined in the 10th Edition of the Guide for Plant Appraisal by the Council of 
Tree & Landscape Appraisers (CTLA). The cost to replace a perfect specimen of like-
size is calculated, then depreciated by the subject tree’s current health, structure, form, 
factors that are inherent to the species and property, and external factors that are out of 
the property manager’s control. For young trees, like #190, the cost of a replacement 
tree is used. Removal of non-Heritage, privately owned trees do not require a permit or 
mitigation plantings, so appraised values are not calculated. They are noted with “N/A”. 

Notes (& 
Impact) 

Proximity to the project’s improvements, and the anticipated impact based on tree 
condition, species tolerance to disturbance, future longevity, etc. 
 

Actions Includes recommended actions based on impacts, including tree protection measures. 
Includes reason for removal, if applicable. 

 

A35



Proposed addition at 351 Barton Place, Menlo Park  August 8, 2024 
0044-001 Page 4 

 
 

Michelia Arboriculture, LLC | 2320 Hoytt Ct, Pinole, CA 94564 | 925-515-1362 | jennifer@micheliarborist.com 

ID 
# 

Species DBH 
(in) 

Status Height 
(ft) 

Health Structure Dripline 
(NESW, ft) 

Appraised 
Value 

Notes & Impact Actions 

181 Mock orange 
(Pittosporum 
tobira) 

6  9 Good Poor 7, 5, 6, 3 
(entire 
hedge) 

N/A Slightly thin at meeting point with laurel; 
technically one plant (split into 3 per City 
requirement). Dry soil. Neighbor's driveway is 
about 1' W, client's driveway is ~2' E.  
In proposed driveway expansion.  

Remove for driveway 
expansion.   

182 Mock orange 
(Pittosporum 
tobira) 

6.5  9 Good Poor N/A Remove for driveway 
expansion.   

183 Mock orange 
(Pittosporum 
tobira) 

10  9 Good Poor N/A Remove for driveway 
expansion.   

184 London 
planetree 
(Platanus x 
hispanica) 

~22 Heritage, 
off-site 

70 Good Fair/Fair-
Poor 

15, 20, 30, 
20 

 $6,700.00  No tag, neighbor's tree. Anthracnose / powdery 
mildew (browning/whitening of leaves especially 
at tips). Pruned back from over house. Crowded 
by #185. Brick walkway and old lawn on 
neighbor's side. Concrete walkway along side of 
house has crack; failing fence.  Previously 
topped around 14' above grade on average, 
with 2-5 remaining large shoots per knuckle. 
Shoots are very long and vertical with minor 
branching until the top. 
 
11' from proposed addition. 

For several years after the 
project is completed, avoid 
hardscaping or other 
disturbing activities 
between the proposed 
addition.  
 
Begin irrigating along the 
property line to increase 
tree resilience.  
 
Leave existing concrete 
walkway by garage if 
possible (root protection); 
otherwise cover newly 
exposed soil with plywood 
or wood chips. Protect the 
area between the addition 
and property line with 
mulch or plywood, to 
remain throughout 
construction.  
 
Once the deck is removed, 
hand dig along proposed 
foundation; leave roots for 
arborist review and 
recommendations. Roots 
shall be cut with sharp 
tools and kept moist till 
backfilled.  

185 London 
planetree 
(Platanus x 
hispanica) 

~15 Heritage, 
off-site 

59 Poor Fair-Poor 23, ~23, 14, 
20 

$3,350.00  No tag, neighbor's tree. Very sparse canopy, 
from recurring anthracnose/ powdery mildew. 
Previously topped around 14' with an additional 
set of topping cuts 2' higher - very tall resulting 
shoots, dead and live stems. Minor pruning 
back on this one.  Mostly grass on neighbor's 
side. 12' from proposed addition, in ¼ of root 
system. Low-moderate impact. 

186 Camellia 
(Camelia 
japonica) 

~6 Off-site 15 Fair Fair 10, 10, 10, 6 N/A No tag, neighbor's tree. Slightly sparse canopy 
with mosaic/stippling on lower leaves. About 30-
40% sparse as seen from subject property, 
appears sparser on neighbor's side with dieback 
and dead branches. Planted as screen. 
Dominated by tree above.  
 
6' from proposed addition. Low/low-
moderate impact. 

A36



Proposed addition at 351 Barton Place, Menlo Park  August 8, 2024 
0044-001 Page 5 

 
 

Michelia Arboriculture, LLC | 2320 Hoytt Ct, Pinole, CA 94564 | 925-515-1362 | jennifer@micheliarborist.com 

ID 
# 

Species DBH 
(in) 

Status Height 
(ft) 

Health Structure Dripline 
(NESW, ft) 

Appraised 
Value 

Notes & Impact Actions 

187 White birch 
(Betula 
pendula) 

~14 Off-site 66 Good-
Fair 

Good 15, 12, 8, 15 N/A Tag on fence, neighbor's tree. Slightly sparse 
canopy despite strong growth at top. Narrow 
canopy (independent of competition from fern 
pines).  
22' from proposed addition, 7.5' from 
proposed deck. Low impact. 

Protect with temporary 
fencing or mulch/straw 
wattle. 

188 African fern 
pine 
(Afrocarpus 
falcatus) 

12.5  45 Good Fair 10, 10, 10, 6 N/A Crowded by birch and fern pine.  Decomposed 
granite 2' S of trunk. Codominant, narrow stems 
with bark inclusion at 9' above grade, with 
another narrow split at 14' above grade. 
19' from proposed addition, 10' from 
proposed deck. Low impact. 

Protect with temporary 
fencing or mulch/straw 
wattle.  

189 African fern 
pine 
(Afrocarpus 
falcatus) 

12  32 Good Good-Fair 12, 8, 15, 18 N/A Crowded by birch and fern pine.   Decomposed 
granite 4' S of trunk.  Large low & poorly tapered 
scaffold on S side with bad attachment (has 
been pruned back from house).  
22' from proposed addition, 14' from 
proposed deck. Low impact. 

Protect with temporary 
fencing or mulch/straw 
wattle.  

190 Chinese elm 
(Ulmus 
parvifolia) 

2.5 Street / 
city 

12  Good Good 6, 6, 6, 6  $205 City tree (per client). Recently planted, still has 
stakes. Appraised value based on cost of 24” 
box tree from Devil Mountain Nursery.  
4’ from existing driveway, new driveway 0.5’ 
closer to tree (outside root ball). Low impact. 

Protect with temporary 
fencing or mulch/straw 
wattle.  

A37



Proposed addition at 351 Barton Place, Menlo Park  August 8, 2024 
0044-001 Page 6 

 
 

Michelia Arboriculture, LLC | 2320 Hoytt Ct, Pinole, CA 94564 | 925-515-1362 | jennifer@micheliarborist.com 

Tree Impact Discussion 
 The mature trees on and around the site are found at the front, right, and rear of the property, 
including four off-site trees and one City-owned tree. The trees in the front yard include three non-
Heritage pittosporums (#181-183, Pittosporum tobira) next to the driveway and a recently planted 
Chinese elm (#190, Ulmus parvifolia) in the city easement. The pittosporums have been hedged 
with other plants – despite minor interior dieback, they have dense growth and work well as a 
hedge. Since the driveway expands directly into their planting area, they will need to be removed 
(Figure 1).  
 
The trees in the backyard are relatively healthy. Two African fern pines (#188, 189, Afrocarpus 
falcatus) are clustered close together on your property, right next the neighbor’s birch (#187, 
Betula pendula, Figure 3). The birch has an unusually narrow canopy for its size, which may be 
caused by insufficient water. Although the canopy is slightly sparse, the birch does not have signs 
of dieback yet. These three trees are far enough from the proposed addition that construction will 
have more of an indirect impact (e.g. foot traffic, soil contamination). 
 
Lastly and most importantly, there are three 
off-site trees growing on the neighbor’s 
property to the east alongside the proposed 
addition. A small 6” diameter camellia (#186, 
Camellia japonica, Figure 2) is located next 
to the fence; it was likely planted as a shrub 
and became more of a tree with age. Further 
away are two mature London planetrees 
(#184 & 185, Platanus x hispanica). Both 
are considered “Heritage” trees per City 
ordinance. The larger tree (#184) is about 
22” diameter and is the healthier of the two. 
The smaller ~15” tree (#185) appears to be 
in poor health with a sparse canopy, though 
part of the defoliation may be related to 
powdery mildew and anthracnose leaf 
diseases that affect both trees (Figure 2).  
 
The proposed addition is 11’-12’ from the 
two London planetrees. At this distance, 
there is a lower likelihood of encountering 
the largest roots that anchor the trees and 
provide them with stability. Smaller roots 
may still need to be pruned, which can 
impact the health of the trees. Normally, the 
London planetree is a species that has high 
tolerance to construction impacts. However, 
trees in poor health, like the smaller 
planetree, are less resilient since they are 
already stressed. Fortunately, the addition 
will affect less than 20% of its entire root system. The impacts of construction may be partially 
mitigated with supplemental watering, starting as soon as possible. The irrigation should continue 
throughout construction and extend for an additional season after the project is done.   
 

Figure 2. London planetree #185 is the smaller, less healthy 
Heritage tree on the neighbor’s property. The camellia (#186) 
is visible as a dark shrub directly below it.  

A38



Proposed addition at 351 Barton Place, Menlo Park  August 8, 2024 
0044-001 Page 7 

 
 

Michelia Arboriculture, LLC | 2320 Hoytt Ct, Pinole, CA 94564 | 925-515-1362 | jennifer@micheliarborist.com 

Because the site has already been disturbed by various past improvements, it is not possible to 
predict what roots will be encountered during foundation excavation. To ensure that roots are not 
damaged excessively, the excavation should be done either by hand or with tools that use air or 
water to remove soil around roots. Once the roots are exposed, they can be reviewed by an 
arborist so that more precise recommendations can be provided. To improve root regrowth from 
the cut roots, sharp tools should be used during root pruning and the roots must be kept moist until 
the soil can be backfilled in the trench.   
 
For all the trees that will remain, construction 
can also have an indirect impact on their 
health via soil compaction & contamination. 
Even repeated foot traffic over the soil 
reduces the amount of space that is available 
for root growth, oxygen, and water. Over 
time, tree health can decline as the roots 
struggle to access the resources they need. It 
can take many years for the negative impacts 
to show, at which time it is usually too late 
(and very expensive) to reverse the impacts. 
The simplest way of protecting the soil and 
roots is to install a temporary chain-link fence 
to create a no-impact zone around the trees. 
However, since the property is relatively 
small, the contractors may need to use the 
entire front and back yards to stage materials 
and tools. The fencing would block their work 
zones if installed appropriately. As another 
option, a combination of wood chips, straw 
wattle, and plywood can be used as a 
substitute to create a buffer for the roots and 
the trunks. A thick layer of wood chips and/or 
plywood acts as a buffer over the soil and 
spreads pressure over a larger surface area. 
Rolls of straw wattle can be used to wrap tree 
trunks so the bark is not accidentally 
damaged. Other alternatives can be 
considered but should be discussed with an 
arborist.  
 
  

Figure 3. The trees in or overhanging the backyard (#187-
189 from right to left) won’t be directly affected by 
construction, but their roots and trunks still need to be 
protected from indirect impacts. A combination of temporary 
fencing, wood chips, plywood and/or straw wattle may be 
used.  

A39



Proposed addition at 351 Barton Place, Menlo Park  August 8, 2024 
0044-001 Page 8 

 
 

Michelia Arboriculture, LLC | 2320 Hoytt Ct, Pinole, CA 94564 | 925-515-1362 | jennifer@micheliarborist.com 

Privacy screening 
Though not explicitly required by the City, you are planning to plant several shrubs or trees as 
screening along the property line by the stair windows. Because of the limited side yard space, 
appropriate species are also limited. Here is a selection of trees that fit the criteria of being 
evergreen, relatively narrow, and at least 12’ tall at maturity.  

• Camellia, Camellia japonica – shrub, matches the neighbor’s screening plants; can be 
trained narrow 

• Italian cypress, Cupressus sempervirens – skinny tall tree, keep tree at desired height with 
trimming every couple of years or allow it to grow to its full height 

• Foster holly, Ilex × attenuata 'Fosteri’ – beware prickly leaves, this cultivar has a more 
upright form but may need to be pruned back for clearance.  

• Saratoga laurel, Laurus 'Saratoga' 
 
Tree Protection Recommendations 
PLEASE NOTE: Once the project is approved with the tree protection recommendations outlined in 
this report, any changes to the protection measures must be approved by the City Arborist.  
 
Pre-Demolition Phase 

• Irrigation: As soon as possible, start irrigating along the east property line fence. Irrigation 
increases the resilience of the off-site trees (#184-186) and will mitigate water stress that 
may result from root pruning. A temporary option with soaker hoses may be used - the 
hoses should be left at a slow drip rate for 8 hours once a month.  

• Inform all contractors and subcontractors of the significance of protecting the Heritage and 
City trees, as the financial consequences for tree damage may be significant (City fines are 
assessed based on the appraised values of the trees, not including claims from off-site tree 
owners). A pre-construction meeting may be needed to review the tree protection 
measures and work plan before demolition begins.  

• Inform the Project Arborist of the start date of the project. The City requires regular 
inspections (e.g. 4 week intervals) to ensure that the project is adhering to the tree 
protection recommendations, and that fencing remains in place throughout construction. 

• Ensure that temporary protection measures are installed before equipment arrives or 
demolition begins. The side yard, rear yard, and landscape area next to the driveway 
should be protected where they are highlighted in the tree protection plan. If possible, keep 
the concrete walkway next to the garage, otherwise it shall be replaced with one of the 
options below. Fencing, mulch, straw wattle, and plywood shall be used as follows: 

o Fencing: Install temporary tree protection fencing to enclose the highlighted areas. 
The City of Menlo Park requires 6’ tall chain link fencing mounted on 8’ tall, 2” 
diameter galvanized posts, driven 24” into the ground and spaced no more than 10’ 
apart. Attach signs to the fencing that state “TREE PROTECTION FENCE - DO 
NOT MOVE OR REMOVE WITHOUT APPROVAL FROM CITY ARBORIST.” 

o Straw wattle & wood chips: Wrap the trunks of the on-site trees with straw wattle, up 
to 6’ above grade or to the lowest branch. Secure the wattle to the trunk without 
directly screwing or nailing it in. Cover the soil/landscape area with a 4” thick layer 
of wood chips, optionally adding plywood on top. (Landscape fabric may be placed 
down on the soil first to make it easier to remove the wood chips later, or the wood 
chips can be simply left in place afterwards.) 

o Plywood: Put down sheets of plywood along the side yard between the proposed 
addition and the property line.   

A40



Proposed addition at 351 Barton Place, Menlo Park  August 8, 2024 
0044-001 Page 9 

 
 

Michelia Arboriculture, LLC | 2320 Hoytt Ct, Pinole, CA 94564 | 925-515-1362 | jennifer@micheliarborist.com 

• Once the tree protection measures are completed, the Project Arborist must inspect and 
provide a verification letter to the City before the demolition or building permit is issued.   

• The tree protection measures are to remain in location throughout the project. To modify 
the protection measures, contact the Project Arborist to submit a request in writing to the 
City. Only the City Arborist can authorize removal of the protection measures at the end of 
the project.  

 
Construction Phase 

• Note: in general, if root or branch pruning is needed, the pruning must be supervised by the 
Project Arborist.  

• The addition foundation shall be dug by hand or with water- or air-assisted tools, leaving 
the roots in place for the Project Arborist to review. Once they have been reviewed, they 
can be cleanly cut with sharp tools (handsaw, Sawzall, or circular saw). Make the smallest 
possible cut – perpendicular to the length of the root rather than at a diagonal. Roots must 
then be covered and kept moist until the soil is backfilled. Additional recommendations may 
be provided based on the extent of root pruning. 

• At any time, if damage occurs to any tree, immediately consult the Project Arborist for 
recommendations on how to mitigate the damage.  

• When construction is completed but before fencing is removed, contact the City Arborist for 
a final inspection.  

 
Post-Construction Phase 

• If the project arborist deems it necessary, supplemental irrigation should be provided for 
one growing season after construction is completed (~9 months). For details, see the 
“Irrigation” recommendation under the Pre-Demolition Phase section. 

• To avoid further impact to the off-site trees (#184-186), avoid activities that disturb the area 
between the addition and the property line fence for several years after the addition project 
is completed. Activities include but are not limited to trenching for irrigation, installing 
hardscape, and drainage installation.  

 
This report should be accompanied by a tree protection plan. If the plan is not attached, please 
reach out to me for a copy. Should you have any questions or need clarification, please reach out 
at any time.  
 
Sincerely, 

 
Jennifer Tso 
Michelia Arboriculture, LLC 
Board Certified Master Arborist #WE-10270B 
925-515-1362 | jennifer@micheliarborist.com  

A41

mailto:jennifer@micheliarborist.com


A42



351 Barton Place – ATT A Ex. C – Conditions of Approval 

PAGE: 1 of 2 

LOCATION: 351 Barton 
Place 

PROJECT NUMBER: 
PLN2024-00035 

APPLICANT: Krista and 
Mark Burbridge 

OWNER: Krista and 
Mark Burbridge 

PROJECT CONDITIONS: 

1. The use permit shall be subject to the following standard conditions:

a. The applicant shall be required to apply for a building permit within one year from the
date of approval (by December 2, 2025) for the use permit to remain in effect.

b. Development of the project shall be substantially in conformance with the plans
prepared by Carole Micaelian Architectural Designer consisting of 15 plan sheets,
dated received November 20, 2024 and approved by the Planning Commission on
December 2, 2024, except as modified by the conditions contained herein, subject to
review and approval of the Planning Division.

c. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall comply with all Sanitary District,
Menlo Park Fire Protection District, and utility companies’ regulations that are directly
applicable to the project.

d. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall comply with all requirements of the
Building Division, Engineering Division, and Transportation Division that are directly
applicable to the project.

e. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall submit a plan for any new utility
installations or upgrades for review and approval by the Planning, Engineering and
Building Divisions. All utility equipment that is installed outside of a building and that
cannot be placed underground shall be properly screened by landscaping. The plan
shall show exact locations of all meters, back flow prevention devices, transformers,
junction boxes, relay boxes, and other equipment boxes.

f. Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the applicant
shall submit plans indicating that the applicant shall remove and replace any damaged
and significantly worn sections of frontage improvements. The plans shall be submitted
for review and approval of the Engineering Division.

g. Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the applicant
shall submit a Grading and Drainage Plan for review and approval of the Engineering
Division. The Grading and Drainage Plan shall be approved prior to the issuance of
grading, demolition or building permits.

h. Heritage trees in the vicinity of the construction project shall be protected pursuant to
the Heritage Tree Ordinance.

i. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall pay all fees incurred through staff
time spent reviewing the application.

j. The applicant or permittee shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Menlo
Park or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action, or proceeding
against the City of Menlo Park or its agents, officers, or employees to attack, set aside,
void, or annul an approval of the Planning Commission, City Council, Community
Development Director, or any other department, committee, or agency of the City
concerning a development, variance, permit, or land use approval which action is
brought within the time period provided for in any applicable statute; provided, however,
that the applicant’s or permittee’s duty to so defend, indemnify, and hold harmless shall
be subject to the City’s promptly notifying the applicant or permittee of any said claim,
action, or proceeding and the City’s full cooperation in the applicant’s or permittee’s
defense of said claims, actions, or proceedings.

EXHIBIT D

A43



351 Barton Place – ATT A Ex. C – Conditions of Approval 

PAGE: 2 of 2 

LOCATION: 351 Barton 
Place 

PROJECT NUMBER: 
PLN2024-00035 

APPLICANT: Krista and 
Mark Burbridge 

OWNER: Krista and 
Mark Burbridge 

PROJECT CONDITIONS: 

k. Notice of Fees Protest – The applicant may protest any fees, dedications, reservations, 
or other exactions imposed by the City as part of the approval or as a condition of 
approval of this development. Per California Government Code 66020, this 90-day 
protest period has begun as of the date of the approval of this application. 

2. The use permit shall be subject to the following project-specific conditions: 

a. Simultaneous with the submittal of a complete building permit application, the applicant 
shall submit revised plans showing a minimum two-foot separation between the right 
side property line and the driveway. 

 

 

 
 

A44



City of Menlo Park

351 Barton Place
Location Map

Date: 12/2/2024 Drawn By:4,000 CDH Checked By: CDS1: Sheet: 1Scale:

ATTACHMENT B

B1



351 Barton Place – Attachment C: Data Table 

 PROPOSED 
PROJECT 

EXISTING 
PROJECT 

ZONING  
ORDINANCE 

Lot area 5,350 sf 5,350 sf 7,000 sf min 
Lot width 54.5 ft 54.5  ft 65 ft min 
Lot depth 101.5 ft  101.5  ft 100 ft min 

Setbacks    
 Front 20.5 ft 24.7 ft 20 ft min 
 Rear 20 ft  20.9 ft 20 ft min 
 Side (left) 7.8 ft  8.5 ft 10% of the min lot width, not 

less than 5’ or no more than 
10’ 

 Side (right) 5.5 ft  4.9 ft 

Building coverage 1,866 
34.9 

sf 
% 

1,453 
27 

sf 
% 

1,872 
35 

sf max 
% max 

FAL (Floor Area Limit) 2,255 sf 1,413 sf 2,800 sf max 
Square footage by floor 
 
 
 
 

1,456 
524 
260 
150 

 
15 

 
 

 
 

sf/1st 

sf/2nd 

sf/garage 
sf/covered 
porch 
skylights >12’ 
 
 
 

1,092.2 
320.7 

40 

sf/1st 

garage 
sf/covered 
porch 

  

Square footage of buildings 2,405 sf 1,453 sf   
Building height 21.9 ft  16.1 ft 28 ft max 
Parking 1 covered space*  1 covered space 1 covered and 1 uncovered 

space 
 Note: Areas shown highlighted indicate a nonconforming or substandard situation 
  
Trees Heritage trees 2** Non-Heritage trees 8† New trees 0 
 Heritage trees 

proposed for 
removal 

0 Non-Heritage trees 
proposed for removal 

3 Total Number of 
trees  

7 

*The nonconforming parking configuration is permitted to remain as the property was originally developed with only one compliant covered 
parking space. The driveway would continue function as a second, nonconforming parking space. 
**Indicates off-site trees 
† One non-heritage tree is a street tree and two are off-site 



Community Development 

 

   

 
 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council    
Meeting Date:   12/2/2024 
Staff Report Number:  24-053-CC 
 
Public Hearing:  Consider and adopt a resolution to approve a use 

permit for a change of use from a dance studio to a 
pottery studio for a tenant suite within an existing 
commercial building that is substandard with 
regard to the minimum parking requirement in the 
C-MU (Neighborhood Mixed Use) zoning district at 
1919 Menalto Avenue. The proposed pottery studio 
is considered a special use and is conditionally 
permitted subject to a use permit; determine this 
action is categorically exempt under CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15301’s Class 1 exemption for 
existing facilities.  

 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission adopt a resolution to approve a use permit for a change of 
use from a dance studio to a pottery studio for a tenant suite within an existing commercial building that is 
substandard with regard to the minimum parking requirement in the C-MU (Neighborhood Mixed Use) 
zoning district at 1919 Menalto Avenue, and determine this action is categorically exempt under CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15301’s Class 1 exemption for existing facilities. Additionally, the proposed pottery 
studio is considered a private recreational facility, which is a special use, and requires a use permit. 
 
The draft resolution, including the recommended actions and conditions of approval, is included as 
Attachment A. 

 

Policy Issues 
Each use permit is considered individually. The Planning Commission should consider whether the 
required use permit findings identified in Menlo Park Municipal Code Section (MPMC) 16.78.020 (Special 
Uses, Consideration Factors Prior to Permit Issuance) and (MPMC) 16.82.030 (Permits, Granting) can be 
made for the proposed project. The City’s General Plan includes a variety of goals and associated policies 
to implement those goals that may be considered in evaluating the proposed project, such as: 
• Goal LU-3: Retain and enhance existing and encourage new neighborhood-serving commercial uses, 

particularly retail services, to create vibrant commercial corridors; and 
• Policy LU-3.3: Neighborhood Retail (Preserve existing neighborhood-serving retail and encourage new 

neighborhood retail clusters in appropriate areas that promote existing neighborhood character). 

 

Background 

Site location 
The subject property is located in the Willows neighborhood at 1919 Menalto Avenue, an approximately 



Staff Report #: 24-053-PC 
Page 2 

 

   

 
 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

2,139 square-foot tenant space within a six-unit building that also includes the following addresses/tenants 
providing retail, office and personal service uses: 
• 1921 Menalto Avenue – West Bay Cleaners; 
• 104 Gilbert Avenue – Studio Cake; 
• 106 Gilbert Avenue – The Kitchen Sink Co-op; 
• 108 Gilbert Avenue – Golden State Hauling and Demolition; and 
• 110 Gilbert Avenue – Habibi’s Salon. 
 
The subject tenant space is the corner unit. The subject property is located at the northwest corner of the 
intersection of Menalto Avenue and Gilbert Avenue. An adjoining four-unit building to the north (1923-1929 
Menalto Avenue) and La Hacienda Market (1933 Menalto Avenue) provide additional retail/service uses for 
the small-scale shopping center. La Hacienda Market maintains a separate parking lot adjacent to the 
market. The surrounding neighborhood includes a mix of single-family residences and two-to-four unit 
residential complexes in the R-1-U (Single Family Urban Residential) and R-2 (Low Density Apartment) 
zoning districts. A location map is included as Attachment B. 

Previous Planning Commission review 
The subject parcel, as well as the adjoining parcel (addressed 1923-1929 Menalto Avenue), are 
nonconforming with regard to parking, and the Planning Commission has reviewed multiple use permits for 
changes of use between the two properties. 
 
In 2013, the Planning Commission approved a use permit for operation of Captivating Dance by Nona, a 
dance studio classified as a private recreational facility, in the 1919 Menalto Avenue tenant suite. Below is a 
project summary excerpt from the May 6, 2013 Planning Commission staff report describing Captivating 
Dance’s former operations, provided for comparison with the proposed pottery studio: 
 
The dance studio (private recreational facility) would operate between 2 p.m. and 7:45 p.m., Monday 
through Friday, and 10 a.m. and 3 p.m. on Saturday. The classes would be 45 minutes to one hour 15 
minutes in length, and all sessions would be separated by a 15-minute break that would allow departing 
patrons to free up car and bicycle parking spaces for arriving patrons. The average class size is 10 
students. Many sessions would be led by the business owner and other instructors (one instructor per class, 
typically). The applicant states that many of the students are children, who are local residents and take the 
bus from school, walk, or ride their bicycles to the studio. 
 
Captivating Dance’s initial schedule of classes from 2013 included four to five classes daily, and the 
majority of students were dropped off by individual cars or carpool vehicles. 

 

Analysis 

Project description 
The applicant, Spiffy Pottery Studio, is requesting a use permit to operate a pottery studio (private 
recreational facility) in an existing commercial building where the property is substandard with regard to 
parking. The private recreational facility is also considered a special use, which is a conditional use, and 
would require Planning Commission review even if the property met the parking requirement of the Zoning 
Ordinance. The pottery studio would occupy the tenant suite formerly used by Captivating Dance and no 
architectural modifications to the building are proposed. While both the pottery studio and the previous 
dance studio are considered private recreational facilities, the operations of the uses differ and therefore, a 
use permit is required for the proposed pottery studio. The project plans are provided in Attachment A, 



Staff Report #: 24-053-PC 
Page 3 

 

   

 
 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

Exhibit A, and the project description letter is provided in Attachment A, Exhibit B. 
 
Spiffy Pottery Studio would provide packaged classes, memberships, and specialized workshops and 
programming. During the first three months of operation, the studio plans to host four classes a week (one 
class per day) and gradually expand to six classes a week (one class per day) after approximately one year 
of operations. Each class would include a maximum of 10 students and be taught by two staff members for 
approximately 2.5 hours. General business hours are planned from 7 a.m. to 11 p.m. for members and 10 
a.m. to 10 p.m. for students. No business operations between the hours of 12 midnight and 6 a.m. are 
proposed. Pottery studio class schedules and programming would be subject to change in response to 
business needs and customer demands, but any changes would remain within the proposed hours of 
operation. 
 
The applicant has stated that the pottery studio operations will not result in any of the additional 
“consideration factors prior to permit issuance” stated in MPMC Section 16.78.020, regarding special uses, 
and listed below: 
• Damage or nuisance from noise, smoke, odor, dust or vibration; 
• Hazard from explosion, contamination or fire; or 
• Hazard occasioned by unusual volume or character of traffic or the congregation of a large number of 

people or vehicles. 
 
The open layout of the former dance studio is conducive to the proposed pottery studio and the tenant 
space will be improved with two electrical hobby kilns and limited electrical upgrades and painting. A 
building permit application would be required to ensure interior improvements meet building codes and 
applicable health and safety regulations. 

Parking and circulation 
According to MPMC Section 16.40.030(15), properties in the C-MU district have parking requirements 
based on use types. The existing building is approximately 6,895 square feet, of which 2,139 square feet is 
proposed for the pottery studio (private recreation) in one of the six tenant spaces. The other five tenant 
spaces include a mixture of office and personal service uses. Two parking spaces per 1,000 square feet is 
the minimum required parking for private recreation, office, and personal services uses. Applying this 
parking rate to the square footage for each tenant in the building, the total minimum required parking for the 
subject parcel is 14 parking spaces. 
 
Along Menalto Avenue, exclusive of the parking lot for La Hacienda Market (26 spaces), there are 18 
existing striped parking spaces in front of the three parcels that comprise the shopping center. There are 
five parking spaces in front of the subject parcel and two spaces are directly in front of the proposed studio. 
However, all of these parking spaces are partially located in the public right-of-way and do not count as 
compliant parking spaces for purposes of off-street parking requirements. Consequently, with the spaces 
partially in the public right-of-way and fronting multiple properties, the parking spaces are available to all 
shopping center patrons. There are additional street parking spaces, around the corner on both sides of 
Gilbert Avenue, which can serve the subject property and the greater shopping center. Two existing, 
separate bicycle racks along the Menalto Avenue shopping center frontage, also partially located within the 
public right-of-way, serve business patrons and provide approximately 18 bicycle parking spaces. 
 
The proposed pottery studio is intended to serve the local community and would host fewer classes 
compared to the former dance studio that occupied the space. (The dance studio held four to five classes 
per day, every day of the week, while proposed pottery studio plans to hold one class per day up to six days 
per week). Pottery studio memberships will be limited to 100 members and the applicant anticipates, based 



Staff Report #: 24-053-PC 
Page 4 

 

   

 
 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

on experience, that no more than 15 percent of the total membership will visit the studio each day. Planning 
Division and Transportation Division staff have reviewed the project application and determined that the 
proposed pottery studio will likely have lower circulation and traffic impacts when compared to the former 
dance studio.  
 
The Transportation Division has determined that the scope of work does not trigger a Transportation Impact 
Analysis (TIA) and Transportation Demand Management (TDM) plan with consideration to the significantly 
lower daily trip estimates when comparing the use of the tenant space from the former dance studio 
(approximately 50 daily students) to the proposed pottery studio (approximately 25 daily 
students/members). Given the difference in anticipated users and their likelihood to use similar 
transportation travel modes (e.g., walking, biking, driving), staff concluded that the new tenant/land use 
would generate fewer trips than the former tenant/land use and therefore a TIA and TDM plan are not 
applicable to this project. 

Correspondence 
The applicant has completed outreach to the local community, including a survey to gauge interest in the 
establishment of a pottery studio. The survey results are included within the project description letter 
(Attachment A, Exhibit B). During the development review process, staff received one item of 
correspondence in support of the application and three items of correspondence expressing concern 
regarding business operations between 12 midnight and 6 a.m. (Attachment C). The applicant had originally 
requested a use permit to allow members the option to utilize the studio outside of typical business hours, 
but that use permit request is no longer being pursued in response to the feedback received. In the future, if 
the applicant proposes to allow use of the studio between 12 midnight and 6 a.m., a use permit revision 
would be required. 

Conclusion 
The proposed use would be located in an existing, neighborhood-serving commercial building with bicycle 
parking, which would encourage use of alternate modes of transportation. Although the property does not 
provide any compliant parking spaces, staff believes the existing parking spaces along Menalto Avenue and 
Gilbert Avenue would provide adequate parking for patrons and staff. The proposed pottery studio would 
provide a new neighborhood serving use, which promotes General Plan goal LU-3. Staff recommends the 
Planning Commission approve the proposed project. 

 

Impact on City Resources 
The project sponsor is required to pay Planning, Building, and Public Works permit fees, based on the City’s 
Master Fee Schedule, to fully cover the cost of staff time spent on the review of the project. 
 

Environmental Review 
The proposed project is categorically exempt under Class 1 (Section 15301, “Existing Facilities”) of the 
current California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines. 

 

Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. Public notification also consisted of publishing a notice in the local newspaper 
and notification by mail of owners and occupants within a 300-foot radius of the subject property. 
 



Staff Report #: 24-053-PC 
Page 5 

 

   

 
 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

Appeal Period 
The Planning Commission action will be effective after 15 days unless the action is appealed to the City 
Council, in which case the outcome of the application shall be determined by the City Council. 

 

Attachments 
A. Draft Planning Commission Resolution 

Exhibits to Attachment A 
A. Project Plans 
B. Project Description Letter 
C. Conditions of Approval 

B. Location Map 
C. Correspondence 
 
Report prepared by: 
Calvin Chan, Senior Planner 
 
Report prepared by: 
Tom Smith, Principal Planner  
 
 



ATTACHMENT A 

1 

PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 2024-0XX 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
MENLO PARK APPROVING A USE PERMIT TO ALLOW A CHANGE OF 
USE OF A TENANT SUITE FROM A DANCE STUDIO TO A POTTERY 
STUDIO (PRIVATE RECREATIONAL FACILITY) WITHIN AN EXISTING 
COMMERCIAL BUILDING AT A PROPERTY THAT IS SUBSTANDARD 
WITH REGARD TO THE MINIMUM PARKING REQUIREMENT IN THE 
C-MU (NEIGHBORHOOD MIXED USE) ZONING DISTRICT

WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park (“City”) received an application requesting a use permit 
to allow a change of use of a tenant suite from a dance studio to a pottery studio (private 
recreational facility) within an existing commercial building at a property that is substandard 
with regard to the minimum parking requirement in the C-MU (Neighborhood Mixed Use) 
zoning district (collectively, the “Project”) from Jeffrey Liang of Spiffy Pottery Studio 
(“Applicant”) on behalf of Menalto LLC (“Owner”) located at 1919 Menalto Avenue (APN 
062-366-160) (“Property”). The Project use permit is depicted in and subject to the
development plans and project description letter, which are attached hereto as Exhibit A,
and incorporated herein by this reference; and

WHEREAS, the Property is located in the Neighborhood Mixed Use (C-MU) zoning district. 
The C-MU zoning district supports a variety of retail services, personal services, restaurant, 
and residential uses; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed Project complies with all objective standards of the C-MU zoning 
district, apart from the required minimum parking for the site; and 

WHEREAS, although the proposed Project would continue to have substandard parking for 
the site, the proposed Project would be neighborhood serving, as it is walkable for the 
neighboring community and, within the public right-of-way, there are also bicycle parking 
spaces and multiple shared vehicle parking options for patrons; and  

WHEREAS, the proposed pottery studio is considered a special use and is conditionally 
permitted; and 

WHEREAS, the Project requires discretionary action by the City as summarized above, and 
therefore the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA,” Public Resources Code Section 
§21000 et seq.) and CEQA Guidelines (Cal. Code of Regulations, Title 14, §15000 et seq.)
require a determination regarding the Project’s compliance with CEQA; and

WHEREAS, the City is the lead agency, as defined by CEQA and the CEQA Guidelines, 
and is therefore responsible for the preparation, consideration, certification, and approval of 
environmental documents for the Project; and  

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from environmental review pursuant to CEQA Guidelines 
§15301 (Existing Facilities); and

A1



Resolution No. 2024-0XX 

2 

WHEREAS, all required public notices and public hearings were duly given and held 
according to law; and 

WHEREAS, at a duly and properly noticed public hearing held on December 2, 2024, the 
Planning Commission fully reviewed, considered, and evaluated the whole of the record, 
including all public and written comments, pertinent information, documents and plans, 
prior to taking action regarding the proposed Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE MENLO PARK PLANNING COMMISSION HEREBY 
RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  Recitals.  The Planning Commission has considered the full record before it, 
which may include but is not limited to such things as the staff report, public testimony, and 
other materials and evidence submitted or provided, and the Planning Commission finds 
the foregoing recitals are true and correct, and they are hereby incorporated by reference 
into this Resolution. 
 
Section 2.  Conditional Use Permit Findings.  The Planning Commission of the City of Menlo 
Park does hereby make the following Findings:  

The approval of the use permit for a change of use from a dance studio to a pottery studio 
within a tenant suite of an existing commercial building at a property that is substandard 
with regard to the minimum parking requirement is granted based on the following findings, 
which are made pursuant to Menlo Park Municipal Code (MPMC) Sections 16.78.020 and 
16.82.030: 

1. That the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the use applied for will, under 
the circumstance of the particular case, not be detrimental to the health, safety, 
morals, comfort, and general welfare of the persons residing in the neighborhood of 
such proposed use, or injurious or detrimental to property and improvements in the 
neighborhood or the general welfare of the city because: 

a. Consideration and due regard were given to the nature and condition of all 
adjacent uses and structures, and to general plans for the area in question 
and surrounding areas, and impact of the application hereon. The proposed 
Project is designed in a manner which is consistent with the goals, policies, 
and objectives of the General Plan and applicable Municipal Code and 
Zoning Ordinance requirements, and more specifically the Project would be 
compatible with the surrounding uses.  

b. The proposed project would remain substandard with regard to the parking 
requirements for the C-MU zoning district. However, existing bicycle parking 
spaces and vehicular parking spaces are available, located partially in the 
public right-of-way, in front of and surrounding the property. 

c. The proposed Project is designed to meet all the applicable codes and 
ordinances of the City of Menlo Park Municipal Code, and the Planning 
Commission concludes that the Project would not be detrimental to the 
health, safety, and welfare of the surrounding community as the proposed 

A2



Resolution No. 2024-0XX 

3 

pottery studio would be located in a small-scale mixed-use commercial 
building compatible with the surrounding residential neighborhood. 

2. In addition to the criteria outlined in MPMC 16.82, special uses are subject to the 
following additional factors to determine if the use will not be unreasonably 
incompatible with uses permitted in the surrounding areas: 

a. Damage or nuisance from noise, smoke, odor, dust, or vibration; 
b. Hazard from explosion, contamination or fire; and 
c. Hazard occasioned by unusual volume or character of traffic or the 

congregation of a large number of people or vehicles. 

The above factors are not present with the proposed use, in that the operations would not 
create damage or nuisances to neighboring properties or uses. The project would be subject 
to applicable building code requirements which would reduce potential hazards. Furthermore, 
the proposed operations were evaluated by the City’s Transportation Division, which 
determined the use would not create negative impacts on parking and circulation in the vicinity 
of the project site. 
 
Section 3.  Conditional Use Permit.  The Planning Commission approves Use Permit No. 
PLN2024-00039, which use permit is depicted in and subject to the development plans and 
project description letter, which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference as Exhibit A and Exhibit B, respectively. The Use Permit is conditioned in 
conformance with the conditions attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference 
as Exhibit C.   
 
Section 4.  Environmental Review.  The Planning Commission makes the following findings, 
based on its independent judgment after considering the Project, and having reviewed and 
taken into consideration all written and oral information submitted in this matter: 

 
1. The Project is categorically except from environmental review pursuant to Cal.  

Code of Regulations, Title 14, §15301 et seq. (Existing Facilities). 
 
Section 5.  Severability.  If any term, provision, or portion of these findings or the application 
of these findings to a particular situation is held by a court to be invalid, void or 
unenforceable, the remaining provisions of these findings, or their application to other 
actions related to the proposed Project, shall continue in full force and effect unless 
amended or modified by the City. 

I, Kyle Perata, Assistant Community Development Director of the City of Menlo Park, do 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing Planning Commission Resolution was duly and 
regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said Planning Commission on December 2, 
2024, by the following votes: 
 

AYES:   

NOES:   

A3



Resolution No. 2024-0XX 

4 

ABSENT:   

ABSTAIN:   
 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said 
City on this ____ day of December 2024. 
 
PC Liaison Signature 
 
 
______________________________ 
Kyle Perata 
Assistant Community Development Director 
City of Menlo Park 
 
 
Exhibits 

A. Project Plans 
B. Project Description Letter 
C. Conditions of Approval 

A4



1933 Menalto ave 
La Hacienda Market

1929 Menalto ave 
Cafe Zoe

Cross road

1927 Menalto ave 

1925 Menalto ave

1923 Menalto ave
Parcel number: 062366160

1921 Menalto ave

1

2

4

3

7

5

6

8

9

11

10

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

1919 Menalto ave
new Spiffy Pottery Studio

2,139 sf

Gilbert avenue

M
en

al
to

 a
ve

nu
e

19
20

 M
en

al
to

 
av

en
ue

19
28

 M
en

al
to

 
av

en
ue

19
40

 M
en

al
to

 
av

en
ue

19
22

 M
en

al
to

 
av

en
ue

19
18

 M
en

al
to

 
av

en
ue

10
4 

G
ilb

er
t a

ve
nu

e

10
8 

G
ilb

er
t a

ve
nu

e

10
6 

G
ilb

er
t a

ve
nu

e

103 Gilbert avenue

11
0 

G
ilb

er
t a

ve
nu

e

sidewalk

sidewalk

si
de

w
al

k
si

de
w

al
k

Tree Tree

0' 40'20' 80'

al
le

y

Arerr a plan: 1919 Menalto avenue
1" = 40' Scale 1

Parking lot 
26 parking spots in total

Parking lot 
23 parking spots in total

Street parking 9 parking spots in total

Bicycle rack

Bicycle rack

Bicycle rack

i. Any frontage improvements which are damaged
as a result of construction will be required to
be replaced. All frontage improvement work shall
be in accordance with the latest version of
the City Standard Details.

ii. An encroachment permit from the Engineering
Division is required prior to any construction
activities, including utility laterals, in the public right
of way.

EXHIBIT A

A5



Tree Tree

Site plan: 1919 Menalto avenue
1" = 10' Scale 2

0' 10'5' 20'

1921 Menalto ave

1

2

4

3

5

6

1919 Menalto ave
new Spiffy Pottery Studio

2,139 sf

Gilbert avenue

Exsiting and no structural
 modification needed

10
4 

G
ilb

er
t a

ve
nu

e

sidewalk

A6



1919 Menalto ave
new Spiffy Pottery Studio104 Gilbert avenue108 Gilbert avenue

106 Gilbert avenue110 Gilbert avenue

Gilbertrr ave elevation: 1919 Menalto avenue
1/16" = 1' Scale 5

Menalto avenue elevation: 1919 Menalto avenue
1/4" = 1' Scale 4

1919

Accessible entry sign

A7



Floor plan: 1919 Menalto avenue
1/8" = 1' Scale 3

0' 8'4' 16'

1921 Menalto ave

Entrance door 

Window

Window

Double door 

Closet
6.7' x 6'

Room 2 storage
8.5' x 9.8'

Room 1 
teaching class space 

66.7' x 28.7'

Room 3 
glaze room
8.5' x 9.8'

Room 4
Storage

5.8' x 9.7'

Restroom 1
8.5' x 9.8'Restroom 2

5.8' x 8.2'

Kitchen
6' x 10.7'

Water heater room
5.8' x 2.5'

Gilbert avenue

Exsiting and no structural
 modification needed

10
4 

G
ilb

er
t a

ve
nu

e

A8



1919

1919 Menalto ave
new Spiffy Pottery Studio

1919 Menalto ave
new Spiffy Pottery Studio 1921 Menalto ave

104 Gilbert avenue108 Gilbert avenue

106 Gilbert avenue110 Gilbert avenue

Gilbertrr ave strerr etscape: 1919 Menalto avenue
1/16" = 1' Scale

1/16" = 1' Scale

7

Menalto avenue strerr etscape: 1919 Menalto avenue
6

A9



Spiffy Pottery Studio

Project description:

Spiffy Pottery Studio is gaining interest in Menlo Park and the Palo Alto area and will hit its 
capacity by the end of 2024. Spiffy Pottery Studio is centered around the practice of creative 
expression and aims to progress from an idea to a flourishing community.

We will provide 4 weeks of classes, memberships, workshops, and kids summer camp. Due 
to the open space nature of the property, there will be no structural alteration needed to the 
building. 2 additional 240V outlets will be added for 2 electrical hobby kilns. We are expecting 
a minor interior remodeling such as repainting walls. We are also considering refreshing the 
exterior of the building since some parts of the exterior wall will need to be repainted. 

We have also been talking to the local community to gauge the interest in setting up a pottery 
studio in the The Willow area. As a result, people are looking forward to having a pottery 
studio in the neighborhood and are eager to be part of the creative community. The survey 
results will be attached to this document.

Thank you for your time and please let me know if any additional information is needed, I am 
looking forward to hearing from you.

Sincerely, 
Jeffery Liang 
Owner

(925)-752-1585

jeff@thespiffystudio.info

EXHIBIT B

A10



Spiffy Pottery Studio Business Plan:

Spiffy Pottery Studio provides Creativity and Community with clay.

Spiffy
Studio
LLC
Fictitious name: Spiffy Pottery Studio
Business owner name: Jeffery Liang 
Business phone: (925)-752-1585
Business email: jeff@thespiffystudio.info
Business address: 1919 Menalto Ave, Menlo Park, CA 94025

Spiffy Pottery Studio as it is:

Spiffy Pottery Studio currently ganing interests in Menlo Park and Palo Alto area, and 
will hit its capacity by end of 2024


Spiffy Pottery Studio aims to progress from an idea to a flourishing community with 
well-sourced investor capital fueled by the founder, Jeffery's


● Perseverance over time
● Approach to life-long learning
● Willingness to take advice and pivot

The studio is centered around the practice of creative expression. To be a conduit for an
awareness of being. Through this practice we let out what comes in—an essential
aspect of wellbeing.

Required Licenses and Permits:

● Business license obtained through the Office of Small Business
● Fictitious name (Spiffy Pottery Studio) obtained through the Office of Small


Business

● Change of use permit for 1919 Menalto Ave, is to be determt with City of 
Menlo Park Planning Division 

Spiffy Pottery Studio

A11



Storefront:

The necessary changes for 1919 Menalto Ave. are:

● to install 2 240v outlets
● to replace the kitchenette with a two-basin sink
● change of use

 
Spiffy Pottery Studio operating hours:

It is acknowledged that the application no longer requests use permit approval for 
business operations between midnight and 6:00 AM

(a) Members studio hours : Mon - Sun 7am- 11pm access with indiviual door code
(b) Students studio hours: Mon - Sun 10am-10pm access with door code until end of 
4 weeks class package. 
(c) Staff: Mon - Sun 12:00 pm to 5:30 pm, 6:30 pm to 9:00pm and Sat 11:00 am to 
1:30 pm. Staff will only be present in the studio according to the hours listed above.
(d) Following the scheduled listed above, members and students can arrive and use 
the space prior to/without staff.

 
Class content and hours (each class hold maximum 10 student and 2.5 hours 
duration):

Operations:

Following Municipal Code section 16.78.020, Spiffy Pottery Studio will not cause " (1) 
Damage or nuisance from noise, smoke, odor, dust or vibration; (2) Hazard from explosion, 
contamination or fire; (3) Hazard occasioned by unusual volume or character of traffic or 
the congregation of a large number of people or vehicles." 

Studio waste management is as follows:

(a) Sinks will be fitted with designated clay traps, and clay caught in clay traps will be 
routinely discarded as solid waste into grey/black trash bins. No contamins will be going 
down the drain. 
(b) A minimal amount of glazes will be sorted and discarded as solid waste in the gray/black 
trash bin. No contamins will be going down the drain. 
(c) Kilns will be fitted with vents to channel heated air to the outside of the building during 
kiln operation. The environment for the kiln will be designed following the manufacturer's 
recommended safety guidelines and materials. 
(d) At any time, the number of people in the studio will be controlled by staff and limited 
access will be managed by a security system. A maximum of 10 students will be attending 
per class to prevent potential congestion in the studio..

A12



According to our projections, the studio will reach its maximum capacity in the 12th month. 
This means there will be one class held each day, except on Sundays, and memberships 
will be limited to 100 members. Based on our experience, we anticipate that no more than 
15% of the total members will visit the studio each day. Therefore, our Average Daily Trip 
(ADT) will be: 10 students + 15 members + 2 staff = 27.

From Table 2, we can see that Captivating Dance has five classes scheduled on Monday, 
with approximately 10 students in each class. This results in a total of 50 students 
attending on Monday alone. In comparison to our proposed ADT projection, this number of 
visitors is significantly higher than our estimated attendance.

Transportation Impact Analysis

According to San Mateo County’s TDM requirement, Spiffy Pottery Studio is exempt from 
San Mateo County’s TDM checklist because ADT(Average daily trip) is lower than 100. 

Studio operation experience:

The Studio owner Jeffery has been professionally working in the clay industry for 5 years 
and has worked at several studios as an instructor and studio manager located in San 
Francisco. Throughout the years a system of safety operating protocol had been refined 
and practiced at the studios that Jeffery has worked at. Spiffy Pottery Studio will be built 
with the same standards and guidelines. It is important to us to provide a well-designed 
establishment to ensure the safety of the employees, community, and the environment. 

Table 1 : Class schedule projection at the12th month of operation

Day Daily class schedule (One class per day)
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday

6:30 pm - 9:00 pm

6:30 pm - 9:00 pm
6:30 pm - 9:00 pm

6:30 pm - 9:00 pm

11:00 am - 1:30 pm
No class on Sunday

6:30 pm - 9:00 pm

Sunday

The studio will be hosting only 4 classes on weekdays for the first 3 months of 
operation. Classes scheduled are subject to change, the schedule may shift in 
response to business needs/customer demands, however by the 12th month into 
the operation we will be expecting to have 6 classes a week in total which is our 
projected maximum number of classes for our studio. Please refer to "Table 1"

A13



Table 2 

Community Outreach:

To whom it may concern, the nature of pottery is considered a peaceful yet quiet activity. 
Spiffy Pottery Studio is located in a community-centered residential environment, and here 
are the practices we are implementing to sustain a low-noise operation. The solutions are 
as follows..

1. Our business hours will be 7 am-11 pm for the members and 10 am-10 pm for the 
students. By doing so, we will be able to spread out the congestion inside the studio and to 
the local traffic.

2. All equipment selected to be operating inside the studio is designed to be low noise.

3. When signing up as a student or a member or during business hours we will make sure 
everyone understands the studio guidelines of being mindful of noise control and 
establishing awareness as part of our studio culture. 

4. Spiffy Pottery Studio will not be playing loud music. 

Trash management:

The studio will be using trash cans as follows:
20-gallon organic cart QTY: 1, Pick up once a week 
64-gallon recycling cart QTY: 1, Pick up once a week 
64-gallon garbage cart QTY: 1, Pick up once a week

Organic, recycling, and garbage carts will be stored in storage room 4. Carts will be placed 
at the trash pick-up location according to the schedule.

A14



Address Tenant Square Footage
1919 Menalto Avenue
1921 Menalto Avenue
104 Gilbert Avenue
106 Gilbert Avenue
108 Gilbert Avenue
110 Gilbert Avenue

2,139
1,755
727
758
758
758

Vacant / Proposed Spiffy Potter Studio Space

Studio Cake
West Bay Cleaners

The Kitchen Sink Co-op

Habibi's Salon
Golden State Hauling & Demolition

Square footages and current tenants of all spaces at the six-unit building

A15



Menlo Park/ Palo Alto area survey results 

A16



A17



A18



A19



A20



1919 Menalto Avenue – Attachment A, Exhibit C 

PAGE: 1 of 1 

LOCATION:  
1919 Menalto Avenue 

PROJECT NUMBER: 
PLN2024-00039 

APPLICANT:  
Jeffrey Liang, 
Spiffy Pottery Studio 

OWNER: 
Menalto LLC 

PROJECT CONDITIONS: 

1. The use permit shall be subject to the following standard conditions:

a. The applicant shall be required to apply for a building permit within one year from the date of
approval (by December 2, 2025) for the use permit to remain in effect.

b. Development of the project shall be substantially in conformance with the plans prepared
Jeffrey Liang, consisting of five plan sheets, dated received November 19, 2024, and the
applicant’s project description letter, dated received November 19, 2024, and approved by the
Planning Commission on December 2, 2024, except as modified by the conditions contained
herein, subject to review and approval of the Planning Division.

c. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall comply with all Sanitary District, Menlo
Park Fire Protection District, and utility companies’ regulations that are directly applicable to the
project.

d. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall comply with all requirements of the Building
Division, Engineering Division, and Transportation Division that are directly applicable to the
project.

e. Prior to building permit issuance, if applicable, the applicant shall submit a plan for any new
utility installations or upgrades for review and approval by the Planning, Engineering and
Building Divisions. All utility equipment that is installed outside of a building and that cannot be
placed underground shall be properly screened by landscaping. The plan shall show exact
locations of all meters, back flow prevention devices, transformers, junction boxes, relay boxes,
and other equipment boxes.

f. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall pay all fees incurred through staff time
spent reviewing the application.

g. The applicant or permittee shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Menlo Park or
its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action, or proceeding against the City of
Menlo Park or its agents, officers, or employees to attack, set aside, void, or annul an approval
of the Planning Commission, City Council, Community Development Director, or any other
department, committee, or agency of the City concerning a development, variance, permit, or
land use approval which action is brought within the time period provided for in any applicable
statute; provided, however, that the applicant’s or permittee’s duty to so defend, indemnify, and
hold harmless shall be subject to the City’s promptly notifying the applicant or permittee of any
said claim, action, or proceeding and the City’s full cooperation in the applicant’s or permittee’s
defense of said claims, actions, or proceedings.

h. Notice of Fees Protest – The applicant may protest any fees, dedications, reservations, or other
exactions imposed by the City as part of the approval or as a condition of approval of this
development. Per California Government Code 66020, this 90-day protest period has begun as
of the date of the approval of this application.

EXHIBIT C

A21



City of Menlo Park

1919 Menalto Avenue (PLN2024-00039)
Location Map

Date: 12/2/2024 Drawn By:4,000 CC Checked By: TS1: Sheet: 1Scale:

ATTACHMENT B

B1



1

Chan, Calvin

From: Lusann Yang <lusann@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, November 20, 2024 10:34 AM
To: Chan, Calvin
Subject: support for Spiffy Pottery Studio

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Unless you recognize the sender's 
email address and know the content is safe, DO NOT click links, open attachments or reply. 

Calvin,  

My name is Lusann Yang, and I'm a homeowner and resident of 1143 Woodland Ave. 

I'm writing because I received a notice about a planning commission meeting regarding a use permit request for 
Spiffy Pottery Studio at 1919 Menalto Ave.  

I am completely and utterly delighted at the thought of a neighborhood pottery studio and I am thoroughly 
supportive. A pottery studio is not only a place of art and creativity - it is also serves as a safe third space where 
people of all ages can mingle.  

best, 
Lusann 

ATTACHMENT C

C1



1

Chan, Calvin

From: DOwen1701 <dowen1701@aol.com>
Sent: Thursday, October 10, 2024 4:06 PM
To: Chan, Calvin
Subject: 1919 Menalto Ave. use permit

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Unless you recognize the sender's 
email address and know the content is safe, DO NOT click links, open attachments or reply. 

Dear Calvin Chan: 
I live at 1922 Menalto Ave. and I received a mailer stating that the address of 1919 Menalto 
Ave. has a request for a use permit to operate a pottery studio.  It further states that the 
users want to have access between the hours of twelve midnight and 6 a.m.  I am totally 
opposed to this time period being used for business!  Here are my reasons: 

1. My neighbors and I get trucks in the early morning around 5 and 6 a.m. to deliver to the
grocery store across the street.  Between their loud engines and beep-beep noise when backing
up it is very hard to sleep at that time.

2. We have two dance studios across the street sometimes playing loud annoying music
throughout the day.

3. There is a cafe also across the street that sometimes plays distracting music on certain days.

4. Often there are noisy cars or people playing loud music as they drive by.  Sometimes they
leave their blasting music on while they are temporarily parked at the grocery store while they
shop.

The cacophony of annoying sounds throughout the day is already quite upsetting.  Adding yet 
another disruption to the only time that is relatively quiet is totally unacceptable!  Even people 
talking in low voices while neighbors and I are trying to sleep would be distracting (during some 
weather our windows need to be open and we'd be even more susceptible to sounds).  The 
business section across the street may be zoned for businesses but it is right next to a 
residential area and consideration must be made for quality of life to those residences. 

Please do NOT grant this permit during late night and early morning hours.  It is not fair to my 
neighbors and I to endure even more disturbances.  Thank you. 

Derek Owen 
1922 Menalto Ave. 
Menlo Park, CA 94025
(650) 322-6348 
C2



1

Chan, Calvin

From: Elizabeth McCarthy <emtmcc@yahoo.com>
Sent: Monday, October 14, 2024 7:31 PM
To: Chan, Calvin
Subject: 1919 Menalto use permit comment

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Unless you recognize the sender's email address and 
know the content is safe, DO NOT click links, open attachments or reply. 
 
Hello: 
 
I am writing in regards to the use permit application by Jeffery Liang for 1919 Menalto Ave. The use permit request 
includes business operations between the hours of 12 midnight and 6 AM, for 24-hour access to the business. 
 
For the past 16 years I have lived directly across the street from 1919 Menalto Avenue. This is a family neighborhood. 
We residents have a reasonable expectation for peace and quiet during normal sleeping hours. A 24-hour business is not 
appropriate at this location. It would bring unnecessary noise and activity, with no justifiable greater good for the 
community. 
 
Having a 24-hour business would infringe on my right to peaceful enjoyment of my home. Moreover, it is not in 
alignment with the values of the City, to promote a livable community. 
 
I strongly urge the city to reject this application. 
 
Sincerely, 
Elizabeth McCarthy 
1920 Menalto Avenue 

C3



1

Chan, Calvin

From: Jane Price <jane_price@comcast.net>
Sent: Tuesday, October 15, 2024 3:02 PM
To: Chan, Calvin
Subject: Fwd: 24 hour pottery studio at 1919 Menalto Ave in Menlo Park

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Unless you recognize the sender's 
email address and know the content is safe, DO NOT click links, open attachments or reply. 

 
 

Hello, I live directly across the street from the proposed 24 hour pottery studio on the corner of Menalto Avenue 
and Gilbert Street.  
 
I objected this studio being open 24 hours. It will cause car noise and people talking at night when residents are 
trying to sleep. 
 
The storefront is in a very small shopping area. The businesses in that area all closed at reasonable hours and 
are not open all night. 
 
Please encourage the Person who wants to open this to find a space that is in a more suitable area. 
 
Thank you 

C4



Community Development 

 

   

 
 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

Planning Commission    
Meeting Date:   12/2/2024 
Staff Report Number:  24-054-PC 
 
Regular Business:  Review of draft 2025 Planning Commission meeting 

dates  

 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission provide feedback on the proposed 2025 Planning 
Commission calendar, included as Attachment A. 

 

Policy Issues 
Review of the draft Planning Commission calendar does not raise any particular policy issues. 

 

Background 
Each year, the Planning Commission reviews the Planning Commission calendar for the upcoming year. 

 

Analysis 
Attachment A identifies the proposed 2025 Planning Commission meeting dates. The proposed meeting 
dates were selected with consideration of the following factors:  
 
• Typical schedule of two meetings per month on Mondays; 
• City holidays and other noted celebrations and religious holidays; 
• Reduction of scheduling conflicts with other City Commission meetings; and 
• Avoidance of back-to-back meetings when possible. 
 
At times, the Planning Commission may also need to schedule study sessions or special meetings. These 
meetings can be scheduled on an as needed basis, and therefore, have not been identified on the calendar. 
 
In addition to the above listed factors, the draft 2025 Planning Commission calendar takes into account 
Columbus Day/Indigenous Peoples’ Day, which while not a City holiday, is observed by the local school 
districts and some government and private sector organizations. At the December 2 meeting, the 
Commissioners should be prepared to discuss their schedules to determine if any modifications are needed 
to the draft schedule. Staff recognizes that schedule conflicts may arise in the future, but if the Commission 
can determine if any meeting dates would result in a lack of a quorum, these dates should be avoided now. 
For example, if a Planning Commissioner is aware of a particularly problematic conflict with a local school 
break, that can be discussed at this meeting. 
 
The Planning Commission may make a formal motion/second and vote to approve the draft calendar (with 
or without revisions), or Commissioners may provide individual input for staff to review and finalize 
administratively. Once the Commission has approved the 2025 meeting dates or provided direction to staff, 



Staff Report #: 24-054-PC 
Page 2 

 

   

 
 

City of Menlo Park    701 Laurel St., Menlo Park, CA 94025  tel 650-330-6600  menlopark.gov 

staff will provide the City Clerk with the information and update the City’s webpage. 

 

Impact on City Resources 
Review of the draft Planning Commission calendar does not affect City resources. 

 

Environmental Review 
Review of the draft Planning Commission calendar is not a “project” under the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA), and thus no environmental review is required. 

 

Public Notice 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with the agenda items being listed, at least 72 
hours prior to the meeting. 

 

Attachments 
A. Draft 2025 Planning Commission Calendar 

 
 
Report prepared by: 
Kyle Perata, Assistant Community Development Director 



S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 1 1

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 9 10 11 12 13 14 15

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

27 28 29 30 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

27 28 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30

31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 1 1 2 3 4 5 6

5 6 7 18 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 28 29 30 31

30

             Note: meeting dates are subject to change

January February

PLANNING COMMISSION 

April May June

March

DRAFT MEETING DATES FOR 2025

   PC MEETINGS CITY HALL CLOSED

July August September

October November December

ATTACHMENT A


	20241202 PC Agenda
	E1_816 Santa Cruz staff report
	ATT A - Resolution
	Exhibit A - Plans
	Exhibit B - Project Description Letter
	Exhibit C - SP Standard and Guidelines Worksheet
	Exhibit D - COA

	ATT B - Location Map
	ATT C - Neighbor Correspondence

	F1_351 Barton staff report
	ATT A - Resolution
	Exhibit A - Project Plans
	Exhibit B - Project Description 
	Exhibit C - Arborist Report
	Exhibit D - COA

	ATT B - Location Map
	ATT C - Data Table

	F2_1919 Menalto Ave staff report
	Attachment A - Resolution
	Exhibit A - Project Plans
	Exhibit B - Project Description Letter
	Exhibit C - Conditions of Approval

	Attachment B - Location Map
	Attachment C - Correspondence

	G1_2025 PC Calendar staff report
	ATT A - 2025 Draft PC Meeting Dates


